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Company Profile
RETH4E

NVC International Holdings Limited (formerly known as NVC Lighting
Holding Limited) (the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is a well-known lighting product supplier in the industry, mainly
engaged in the design, development, production, promotion and sales of
various lighting products. After the completion of the disposal of majority
equity of lighting business of NVC in the PRC in late 2019, the Group,
in addition to its international lighting business, formally started a new
chapter for strategic adjustment and business transformation, focused
on creating environmental, safe and healthy smart home and commercial
office environment and promoted the Group to grow to be a global brand
service provider for industrialised, chain-based and one-stop solutions.
The Group has production plants in Zhejiang, Shanghai, Zhuhai in China
and Vietnam, etc. It also has overseas product development centers that
meet European standards. We have set up operation agencies in more
than 40 countries and regions around the world.

Since the establishment in 1998, we always insist on independent
innovation in product research and development, and are committed
to providing efficient, energy-saving, healthy and comfortable lighting
solutions for the fields of construction, transportation, urban lighting,
supermarket, hotel, office, housing, school and industry. On 20 May
2010, the Company’s shares were listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 02222). On 12 December 2019, the
Group officially completed the disposal of the majority equity of lighting
business of NVC in the PRC. Since then, the Group has shifted the focus
of traditional lighting business from the PRC professional lighting to
international professional lighting. Meanwhile, we have shifted the focus
on promoting non-lighting products for quality smart life solutions.

Our products and application solutions are selected and used by a
number of famous projects and brands, the Group was the lighting and
service cooperative partner of the Olympic Council of Asia in 2011 and
provided lighting products and solutions for famous projects including
Rio Olympic Games, G20 Hangzhou Summit, Milan Expo, Guangzhou
Asian Games, Shanghai World Expo, Beijing Olympic Games, Royal
Wharf in London, Birmingham Airport in the UK, Villas of Saudi Arabia
Sabic Group, and Qatar Beverly Hills. The Group has been committed
to beautifying the commercial and living space with artificial lighting and
protecting the ecological environment with environmental-friendly and
energy-saving lighting. The Group started to launch a new brand strategy
in 2020. The new brand mission of “Life As You Wish e 524 5E U {/RFfrFE”
was put forward to connect the corporate vision and brand mission with
the construction of human daily life and conduct business operation from
a perspective with more humanistic value.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report
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For the Years Ended 31 December

Continuing Operations

Revenue

Gross profit

Gross profit margin (Note 1)

Profit/(Loss) before income tax

Profit/(Loss) margin before
income tax (Note 1)

Profit/(Loss) for the year from
continuing operations

Net profit/(loss) margin from
continuing operations
(Note 1)

Profit for the year from
discontinued operations

Profit/(Loss) for the year from
continuing and discontinued
operations (Note 2)

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Note 1: Gross profit margin equals to gross profit divided by revenue;

RBEELY

WA

=7

ERX (fyit1)

FrgIATFIE,/ (518)

FrisinAIFIE/
(B48) = (1)

RELEXEL
RERE,/ (B18)
FHRE/ (B8 %
(Hraz1)

FREEEEEL
RERN

RBEEEBR
FRELEERY
REFHE,/ (1)
(Hriz2)

WT&FMEM
TREEBAN
JFER D

2023
20235
Us$’000

FE

235,978
67,318
28.5%
40,436
17.1%

37,650

16.0%

37,650

35,713
1,937

Financial Highlights

RA TS 22

HE12H31BLEEE
2022 2021 2020 2019
2022% 20215 2020 20194
US$'000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
TEn FTEr FTEx TR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&5 (&) (R E5)) (R E7)
279,468 368,357 340,809 322,379
63,850 102,744 97,550 77,361
22.8% 27.9% 28.6% 24.0%
(3,425) 9,770 (1,807) (793)
(1.2%) 2.7% (0.5%) (0.2%)
(5,547) 5,191 (2,901) (12,657)
(2.0%) 1.4% (0.9%) (3.9%)
- - - 549,785
(5,547) 5,191 (2,901) 537,128
(9,785) 902 (7,506) 533,039
4,238 4,289 4,605 4,089

profit/(loss) margin before income tax equals to profit/(loss) before

income tax divided by revenue; net profit/(loss) margin equals to

profit/(loss) for the year divided by revenue.

Note 2: Profit/(Loss) for the year represents profit/(loss) before netting off

profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests.

HfaET (EBRERERERBRUEA 5 FRSRETF]HE

/ (B518) RERFBMAFIRE, (BB k%
DU 73R8, (518 RSN A EFHE,/

(B518) BRUABA o

Mtz : REFE, (B518) BNBRIFEFIE R

HAREFERIRFE, (B8 -
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Financial Highlights
AT E

As at 31 December ’12H31H

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

2023F 20224 20215 20204 20194

US$’000 US$'000 US$’'000 US$'000 US$'000

FTET FTER TEn TEn FTEn

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(&) (& 5) (E75) (E751)

Non-current assets ERBEE 350,596 322,945 317,198 310,852 328,037

Current assets REBEE 241,507 266,077 364,517 359,509 450,934

Current liabilities RBEaE 79,178 106,640 152,171 146,377 275,973

Net current assets BRBBEE 162,329 159,437 212,346 213,132 174,961

Total assets less current liabilities AEE R AT EE 512,925 482,382 529,544 523,983 502,998

Non-current liabilities E|HGEIN=N 10,324 10,974 14,385 15,944 16,472

Total equity Fag 502,601 471,408 515,159 508,039 486,526

Including: Hep:

Equity attributable to owners AREERA

of the Company FE(L R 483,771 454,492 501,150 494,203 475,865

Non-controlling interests RS 18,830 16,916 14,009 13,836 10,661

Current ratio (Note 7) RELE (Haz1) 3.0 2.50 2.40 2.46 163

Note 1: Current ratio equals to current assets divided by current liabilities. Hat1 Bt RE R B ER LRGN A G-

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report



Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present to you the 2023 annual report of
the Group.

Review in 2023:

In 2023, in the face of the global economic slowdown, coupled with the
Russian-Ukrainian war and the high inflation index, the market economy
environment was constantly changing, and all the industries were facing
major challenges in their operation. Major banks and financial institutions
had lowered their GDP growth forecasts for various countries one after
another, resulting in a sharp drop in their confidence in economic growth
this year. The global economy growth was expected to slow to 2.7% in
2023 according to the latest World Economic Outlook published by the
International Monetary Fund (“IMF”).

With the continued downturn in the economic environment, the demand
in the consumer market declined as a whole, and the competitive
pressure in the terminal market further increased. It is of particular
importance to reduce product costs to enhance the competitiveness of
the Group’s products. The Group has been adjusting its procurement
strategy. It has adopted annual price negotiation and price negotiation
for large-value orders, monitored the trend of bulk raw materials and
its correlation with the pricing of purchased materials, and promoted
technological reforms to ensure the reduction of procurement costs.

During the Reporting Period, international lighting business was still
the Group’s core business and contributed a majority of revenue to the
Group. Although the Group faced a difficult economic environment,
in order to maintain a healthy development of the Group’s business,
the Group implemented a number of reform measures, including
development of new product designs, launch of new products, evaluation
of of the Group’s procurement strategies, which helped enhance
the competitiveness of the Group’s products in terms of prices and
functionalities.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRS

Outlook for 2024:

In 2024, international lighting business will still be the core business of
the Group. In additional to this, the Group will continue to promote the
development of indoor air quality business, which will help enhance the
Group’s revenue stream in the future. Although the global economic
environment for 2024 remains uncertain, the Group believes that the
series of reform measures implemented in 2023 will provide a number
of benefits to the Group in 2024. In particular, it is expected that the
innovations and efforts of the Group’s research and development team,
will enable the Group to expand its product portfolio in a speedy and
cost-efficient way. The Group intends to promote cost-effective and
intelligent products to the customers. Further, the Group will proactively
improve its brand image to enhance its brand awareness in the
international markets.

North American Market

In the North American market, the Group will continue to strengthen the
development of core product lines, and new product planning will follow
the principles of platformization, standardization, modularization and
serialization to improve the level of self-production and cost optimization.
The Group will also optimize the new product development process
and shorten the development cycle to speed up the introduction of new
products to the market, and will continue to focus on promoting new
products under the ETI brand through multiple channels and methods.
The Group will invest more resources in expanding sales through existing
channels. In terms of the commercial channels, we will reorganize the
sales team in the United States and actively introduce new distributors
of lighting channel to promote new products under the ETI brand
widely. In 2024, the AURA linear light products will be launched in the
North American market. This is a brand-new product series and a key
development direction in the future, expected to be launched in late
2024. Inventory control will remain a key task in 2024, and we will
continue to implement the currently effective destocking strategy to
control inventory levels.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report
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Japanese Market

It is expected that Japan’s overall economy will continue to be depressed
in 2024, and consumption desire will decline. Coupled with the
environment of declining population year after year, the Japanese lighting
market has a clear tendency to shrink. In addition, the wave of price
increment in 2023 will lead to a decline in market demand, and retailers
will take active action to develop their own brands to lower retail prices
and increase profits. The business model of private brands will accelerate
development, and competition in the lighting market is expected to
become more intense.

The sales strategy in the Japanese market in 2024 continues to focus
on technological innovation, quality-first and profit orientation. Our
key measures include improving production efficiency, focusing on
inventory management, reducing logistics costs, strengthening discount
management, expanding market share and expanding the e-commerce
market, with a view to contributing more profits to the Group.

UK and Nordic Markets

The management of the Group anticipates the sale performance in the
UK and Nordic Markets to improve in 2024 due to the upcoming launch
of a portfolio of standard products by DERNIER & HAMLYN (“D&H”) and
the emergence of new project opportunities. The Group will strive to
improve the gross profit margin of its UK and Nordic lighting business by
introducing high value products to the wholesale market and focusing
on lighting project development. The management of the Group will aim
to improve the operation efficiency by enhancing inventory management
with a view to improving the financial performance of the Group. Also, the
Group will put more resources in developing more new D&H products and
promoting D&H products to secure more sale orders. With the progress
of D&H bespoke lighting product projects, it is expected that the Group’s
revenue and financial performance in the UK and Nordic will be further
enhanced..

Chairman’s Statement

ERHRS
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRS

Other Overseas Markets

The Group has formulated a three-year business plan for the Southeast
Asian market, which includes specific business strategies, product cycle
and marketing plan. Year 2024 will be a critical turning year for the Group
in the Southeast Asian market. We will carry out business through dual
channels of project and distribution, focusing on the four key markets
including Singapore, Vietnam, Pakistan and Sri Lanka and the increase of
market share of other existing customers. We will strive to expand other
potential markets through business development to ensure continued
business growth. In terms of products, we will focus on key product
planning for market segments of key projects and enrich product lines
in each key market segment. We will renovate and design showrooms
in our offices in Singapore and Vietnam to promote our key product
lines through customer product briefings and trainings. Furthermore, a
localized website for Singapore/Vietnam is expected to be launched in
the first half of 2024. In terms of new product launches, we will utilize
new product-content marketing, such as key product videos, project
cases, application manuals, display boxes and recommendations from
customers. In 2024, we will selectively participate in some regional
exhibitions and customer seminars to enhance the publicity of NVC’s
brand and products.

In Middle East and North African markets, the Group will continue to
focus on the construction project business in cooperation with Chinese-
funded construction companies. Further, the Group will reshape the
brand in these regions and introduce UK NVC product line to focus on
high-end customer market.

Brand Building, Product Development and Internal
Management

2023 marked the first year of the post-pandemic era, with global
economic turbulence. The Group adopted a cautious yet progressive
approach in its brand strategy, focusing on reviewing and upgrading the
brand portfolio within the Group to actively prepare for future business
development. During the year, we upgraded the group brand’s visual
identity system and core slogan, and subsequently launched a brand-
new official website to align with the Group’s more diverse business
and international image. New brand identity, values and other elements
will also be unveiled in 2024. Furthermore, the Group has updated the
brand logo and visual identity system for its lighting brand “ETI” in North
America, which will be officially implemented in 2024. Additionally, in the
North American region, we introduced the new lighting brand “AURA”,
expanding the diversity of the Group’s lighting business and brand
portfolio. In other various business regions, each brand will continue its
promotion efforts through online and offline media, as well as at trade
shows, exhibitions, and other large-scale events, further enhancing brand
exposure and influence.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report
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As market competition further intensifies, the cost competitiveness of
products needs to be further improved. In terms of the supply chain,
price control of raw materials will be a key concern of the Group.
The Group will strengthen management in terms of material prices,
inventory control and team personnel optimization. The Group intends
to further improve the competitiveness of its future products and
transform the same into the Group’s comprehensive strength through
the following means: annual bidding and price negotiation; promotion
of localized procurement in Vietnam; continuing the implementation
and improvement of Just-In-Time (JIT) delivery strategy to reduce raw
material inventory; accelerating the comprehensive self-production of
blow moulding, extrusion and roll parts; and introducing new processes
and technologies and other cost control plans. In addition, the Group will
continue to promote the digitalisation and informatisation construction
throughout the Group. In 2024, the Group is devoted to promoting
the enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) system transformation of its
subsidiaries, so as to achieve cross-regional cooperation globally and
resource sharing among main businesses, thereby enhancing the overall
operating efficiency of the Group. Meanwhile, the Group will enhance
its ERP function and, by adding different functions, further enhance its
governance effectiveness.

Acknowledgement

Our stable development for over 20 years depends on the wholehearted
contributions and persistent support from the Board and all staff
members. | would like to express my heartfelt thanks to the long-term
support of all shareholders, clients, suppliers and distributors. In the
future, we will strive forward steadily as in the past with full responsibility
to all shareholders, clients, suppliers and distributors, with an aim to
make the Group’s brand “NVC International” a world-wide respected
brand and secure satisfactory results to repay the support from various
sectors.

WANG Donglei
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEmEAD

Market and Performance Review

In 2023, in the face of the global economic slowdown, coupled with the
Russian-Ukrainian war and the high inflation index, the market economy
environment was constantly changing, and all the industries were facing
major challenges in their operation. Major banks and financial institutions
had lowered their GDP growth forecasts for various countries one after
another, resulting in a sharp drop in their confidence in economic growth
this year. The global economy growth was expected to slow to 2.7% in
20283 according to the latest World Economic Outlook published by the
IMF.

With the continued downturn in the economic environment, the demand
in the consumer market declined as a whole, and the competitive
pressure in the terminal market further increased. It is of particular
importance to reduce product costs to enhance the competitiveness of
the Group’s products. The Group has been adjusting its procurement
strategy. It has adopted annual price negotiation and price negotiation
for large-value orders, monitored the trend of bulk raw materials and
its correlation with the pricing of purchased materials, and promoted
technological reforms to ensure the reduction of procurement costs.

During the Reporting Period, international lighting business was still
the Group’s core business and contributed a majority of revenue to the
Group. Although the Group faced a difficult economic environment, in
order to maintain a healthy development of the Group’s business, the
Group implemented a number of reform measures, including development
of new product designs, launch of new products, evaluate the Group’s
procurement strategies, which helped enhance the competitiveness of the
Group’s products in terms of prices and functionalities.

Selling and Distribution
The Group has established sales networks and channels in major
countries and regions including North America, Europe, Australia, East

Asia, Middle East, Southeast Asia and the PRC, leveraging its extensive
marketing experience and superior globe-based operation team.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

North American Market

In 2023, the world economic recovery was weak with a relatively sluggish
overall performance of global trade. The market value of housing in North
America has dramatically increased in the past few years since 2019.
Since 2019, but the transaction volume of housing decreased significantly
recently, and the retail industry in the North American market continued to
decline.

During the year, the Group continued to adjust its sales strategy in the
United States, combined with optimizing supply chain management, to
fully utilize the advantages of current delivery arrangements. In addition,
the Group strictly managed the U.S. inventory by conducting classified
management based on inventory ageing and the market competition
of products and adopting different promotional methods to implement
destocking strategies for different categories. It has achieved excellent
results by significantly reducing sluggish inventory. The retail strategy in
2023 had a breakthrough compared with previous years. The ETI brand
has been redefined and packaged by adding elements of home lighting
fixtures to enter the North American retail market and provide different
product portfolios and solutions to major building materials retail stores.
The Group successfully secured several product projects from one of the
largest building materials supermarkets in North America.

In the wholesale channel and project channel, although the overall market
was not optimistic, the Group still believed that the market prospect is
till promising after conducting detailed market researches. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was under the process of developing a new
product series. In the tradeshow of 2023, the feedback from the potential
customers to this new product series is positive, which is expected to
improve the Group’s profitability in the future.

Japanese Market

In 2023, the Japanese market continued to suffer from high inflation,
slowing exports and a sluggish manufacturing index. The continued
decline in real wages has suppressed the purchasing power of Japanese
households to a great extent. The high costs brought about by the
depreciation of the Japanese Yen suppressed the profit margin of lighting
brand owners. In order to ensure their profits, lighting brand owners
increased their retail prices.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEmEAD

The overall demand in the retail channel of the lighting market has shrunk
compared to the Corresponding Period. Despite the drastic changes in
the external environment, the Group’s retail channel sales performance
still exceeded expectations, mainly due to many factors including the
launch of new products and an increase in retail prices. These factors
resulted in an increase in overall sales in the retail channel. Moreover,
sales in the commercial channel also enjoyed an increase compared with
the previous year, mainly due to the launch of new products.

UK and Nordic Markets

The UK and Nordic markets were impacted in the second half of 2023
by significant increases in interest rates. This caused a slow-down in
consumer demand, and in particular impacted the residential property
markets. Despite these challenges, the management team in the UK
remained committed to maintaining stable financial performance of the
UK and Nordic markets. The UK and Nordic sales teams focused on
developing the brand reputation and driving lighting products demand
in the UK and Nordic markets. Also, it drove the product mix to the
more added value and higher margin channels. With integration and
centralization of Nordic operations, the profitability was improved by cost
synergy in Nordic market. Furthermore, the Group focused on promoting
D&H, a century-old high-quality luxury lighting manufacturer in the UK,
and offering bespoke lighting products to customers. With the high
margin bespoke products, it maintained stable gross profit margin for the
UK and Nordic markets.

UK NVC also retains its commitment to managing processes using
International Organization for Standardization (ISO) standards, and along
with the ISO 9001/14001/45001 in place at the end of 2022 in the UK
and Nordics, and added ISO 22301 (Business Continuity), and ISO 50001
(Energy Management) to the operating standards. From a sustainability
perspective, UK NVC is now certified as “Gold” by Ecovadis.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other Overseas Markets

The Southeast Asian market is mainly composed of three parts, namely
the overseas market, the local market in Singapore and the local
market in Vietnam. The overseas market mainly includes countries
such as Pakistan, Sri Lanka, Uruguay and Mongolia. In 2023, the
Group’s development in the overseas markets was affected by the
local economic and political environment in different ways. Singapore’s
housing construction industry grew slowly, with the growth of only 1%
for the full year of 2023. Singapore’s lighting industry had been directly
affected by this, but more growth can be expected in 2024. Vietnam'’s
economy continued to be sluggish throughout the year, and its real
estate market, in particular, had been greatly affected. These factors
directly affected the lighting industry, especially the commercial lighting
market. For some key overseas markets such as Uruguay, thanks to
its steady economic growth, Uruguay abounded with opportunities for
local lighting projects. Our performance in Uruguay improved in 2023
and benefited from economic growth across South America. Pakistan’s
economic growth has been sluggish throughout the year, and its import
restrictions directly led to restricted imports of lighting products in the
first half of the year, which were eased in the second half of the year. Sri
Lanka was in an economic crisis due to national bankruptcy. However,
due to the advancement of national reforms, local infrastructure projects
began to increase, and its performance was expected to improve next
year. The Group’s management is constantly adjusting strategies when
facing the ever-changing market environment. In 2023, the business
model was transformed to focus on participating in engineering projects,
and the gross profit margin increased accordingly. The Group’s customers
are mainly project distributors, while expanding to include project
contractors, designers, consultants and end owners.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s development in Middle East
and North Africa focused on national infrastructure construction, and
local sizable projects and strengthened cooperation with Chinese-
funded construction companies. Further, the Group made substantial
adjustments in brand building and product strategy. In 2023, the
Group held a distributor conference in Dubai for the distributors in
Middle East and Africa with the theme of “Change”. At the conference,
the product portfolio, optimisation of promotional websites, brand
positioning, management structure and other adjustments were
introduced. Specifically, it covered the introduction of mature product
series, the establishment of separate promotional websites for Middle
East and Africa, the reshaping of the NVC brand and the avoidance of
homogeneous low-price competition.
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Brand Image Building and New Product Research and
Development

“Light”, “air”, and “water” are the three key elements of the Group’s
business development and also the three main threads of brand building.
In 2023, “light” remains the continuous driving force and core foundation
of the Group’s development. In order to adapt to the ever-changing
market environment and align with the Group’s development direction of
becoming a global brand service provider with industrialization, supply
chain integration, and one-stop solutions, the Group has not only re-
evaluated our brand identity and image but has also upgraded the image
of the Group’s brand and various overseas lighting brands. Additionally,
a new lighting brand, “AURA”, has been introduced for the new business
areas, enriching the group’s brand portfolio. In various business regions,
through various marketing activities, each brand continues to connect
and capture the minds of different target customers.

In the “air” and “water” aspects, as the Group continues to develop
indoor air quality products, corresponding brand building and promotional
efforts have also gained momentum.

In 2024, the Group will continue to upgrade and promote its century-
old premium lighting brand, D&H, while continuing to vigorously promote
other lighting and non-lighting brands to enhance the visibility of each
brand in the international market.

The Group’s strategy is to illuminate the world with an unmatched
portfolio of LED lighting solutions. We accomplish this through a
vertically integrated global supply chain, deep partnership with our global
network of independent distributors and a diverse portfolio of brands,
applications, and products in the lighting and electricals sectors. The
Group attaches great importance to the research and development of
innovative technologies. The research department propelled the operating
model of “synchronous development and concurrent engineering” within
the Company by adhering to the R&D concept of “innovation, speed,
quality and cost” and the R&D ideas of “three generations (production
generation, development generation and pre-research generation)”,
greatly speeding up the efficiency of new product research and
development. In 2023, the Group successfully developed a series of
lighting products, including cabinet light series, Bluetooth speaker light
series and garage light series. In 2023, we completed the platformization,
serialization, modularization and standardization of major product
categories, and we also established manufacturing workshops in our
factory in Vietnam and introduced a series of blow moulding, extrusion
and roll manufacturing processes and equipment which had enhanced
the competitiveness of our manufacturing system.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s Main New Products

The Group focuses on developing creative research and development
capability and providing customers with professional and optimised
lighting and non-lighting solutions. It aims to promote the global energy-
saving and emission-reduction and enhance green lighting industry
forward to more sustainable, healthy and well-regulated growth. The
Group has now established sales networks in major countries and regions
such as North America, Europe, Australia, East Asia, the Middle East and
Southeast Asia. The Group develops and promotes products according
to regional characteristics and customer needs, providing distributors,
project customers and consumers with customised and differentiated
products and services. The following shows the main new products
developed and successfully marketed by the Group during the Reporting
Period.

Flush Mount
RAHERIEE

Flush Mount
EAHFERIEE
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Financial Review
Sales Revenue

Sales revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts. During the Reporting Period,
the sales revenue of the Group amounted to 235,978,000, representing
a decrease of 15.6% as compared with the sales revenue in the
Corresponding Period.

For business management need and the nature of business units based
on the products and market, the Group classified the reportable operating
segments as follows:

Revenue by geographical locations, NVC brand sales and non-NVC
brand sales

The table below sets forth the sales revenue by geographical locations,
NVC brand products and non-NVC brand products and the growth rate
of each item. Our non-NVC brand products primarily consist of ODM
products.

FA %5 o] B8
HEWA

HEWARCEEYNBEEE K0k
BREMTHNRERE RREFEERN ~EE
IS SHE W A 2235,978F £ 77> EXREHARY
HE W AR I15.6%°

HREEEERERAEMMN B IHERE
BETONE ZEROUTREES
pa

B IE(E R &1 i FFE 1+ a7
EZFHIHA

TREHIZMBUERETLEERNIF
ErTmMERSONBEERARKER
WIRER - ZMANFELTRRERTER
ODMZE m 48 Ak ©

Year ended 31 December

HE12B31HILLFE
2023 2022 Growth rate
20234 2022% HBRE
US$’000 US$’000
FET FET
(restated)
(&&&E75)
Sales revenue from the PRC KEFENHE KA
market
Non-NVC brands EEL R 14,041 17,492 (19.7%)
Subtotal iY-ia 14,041 17,492 (19.7%)
Sales revenue from REBFHEERA
international markets
NVC brands Eolunn 36,839 43,097 (14.5%)
Non-NVC brands EEL R 185,098 218,879 (15.4%)
Subtotal i¥-1a 221,937 261,976 (15.3%)
Total =11 235,978 279,468 (15.6%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group continues to focus on the lighting products in overseas
markets. During the Reporting Period, sales revenue from the PRC
decreased by 19.7%, due to the increasingly fierce competition from
other competitors. Meanwhile, international sales decreased by 15.3%,
mainly due to the weak demand resulted from serious inflation issues
and the weak economy in international market. This led to a decrease in
the overall sales revenue by 15.6% comparing with the Corresponding
Period.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales mainly consists of the cost of raw materials, outsourced
manufacturing costs, labor costs and indirect costs. Major raw materials
of the Group include iron, aluminum and alloys, glass tubes, electronics
components and LED packaged chips. Outsourced manufacturing costs
primarily include the cost of purchased semi-finished products used
in the production of our products and finished products produced by
other manufacturers. Indirect costs primarily include water, electricity,
depreciation and amortisation and others. The table below sets forth the
composition of our cost of sales:

EEE A

AEBEBITHEUEBE INRAEAER-
BREFEEARNRE R ERHEEWRARD
19.7% RARHEMBRFHFHNHF A=
A MBI RS E R 1 15.3% Ty E AN
BIREAEBRERERDTHBEERRERTE
KRER - EERBERBEEWRARB IR D
15.6%°

HEME

HERATTEZBERMERE IEEE
REBTIHARERZRER AEENEE
EMEEEE - mRaE - KREBE - BEFTT
B LUKRLEDHERRZE - INEEEMEE
EOHERBHEMRNEBEENFRAAUR
MU BAREMPNEREENMAE - FEE
ERNATEGEK B TEMBHUK
Hithe TRIRIBEMABIEM :

Year ended 31 December

HE12B31ALEE
2023 2022
20235 20224

Percentage in Percentage in
US$’000 revenue (%) US$’'000 revenue (%)
flr 4 A EE Ay WA EE 451
FErx (%) FEx (%)

(restated)

(& 5)

Raw materials (including outsourced Rkl (29N 4E E R )

manufacturing costs) 144,179 61.1% 183,925 65.8%
Labor costs RN N 15,373 6.5% 16,868 6.0%
Indirect costs BEER 9,108 3.9% 14,825 5.3%
Total &5t 168,660 71.5% 215,618 77.2%

During the Reporting Period, the cost of sales as a percentage in revenue
decreased from 77.2% to 71.5%, while the gross profit margin increased
from 22.8% to 28.5%, which was mainly attributable to the commodities
prices and shipping cost have become normalised.

RREEERN  HERAHWBRABNBT DL
WT7T7.2%EET1.5%  EFEN22.8%IZE
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit is calculated as the net value of sales revenue less cost of
sales.

During the Reporting Period, gross profit was US$67,318,000,
representing an increase of 5.4% as compared with the gross profit of
sales from the continuing operations of the Corresponding Period, and
gross profit margin of sales increased from 22.8% to 28.5%.

The table below shows the gross profit and gross profit margin by
geographical locations and NVC brand products and non-NVC brand
products for the periods indicated:

EMREF R
ENEHERAREHERRBRAFER

REREFEN BIREFNA67,318F =75
REPNFESEERNHEEEF LM
5.4% HE EFIER22.8%IEE28.5%

TRIRATBENZEEMERELS
BEARIELTAEESNENRENE:

Year ended 31 December

HE12B31ALEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
US$’000 US$'000 (%)
FEr FEr (%)
(restated)
(FRE5)
Gross profit from PRC sales: PESHEEENERN
Non-NVC brands FEELT R 1,719 12.2% 1,953 11.2%
Subtotal &t 1,719 12.2% 1,953 11.2%
Gross profit from international EIfRtHE EERER -
sales:
NVC brands EtmmE 12,688 34.4% 18,712 31.8%
Non-NVC brands FEL MR 52,911 28.6% 48,185 22.0%
Subtotal &t 65,599 29.6% 61,897 23.6%
Total a5t 67,318 28.5% 63,850 22.8%

The Group faced the impact of high commodities and freight cost since
2021. However, the Group had implemented the following measures to
mitigate the impact. Firstly, the Group gradually transferred the best-
selling product lines to Vietnam factories where more preferential trade
policies are provided, and strengthened procurement and technology
to reduce costs, which mitigated the impact of high commodities price;
secondly, the Group expanded its exposure in Nordic market, where
it generated more gross profit to the Group; and lastly, it accelerated
the development and promotion of new products, and provided
customisation products and services to increase the added value and
gross profit margin of new products, which contributed to the gradual
increase in the proportion of new products with high gross profit margin,
leading to an effective increase in the overall gross profit margin. With the
combined effects, the overall gross profit margin of the Group during the
Reporting Period increased from 22.8% to 28.5% as compared with the
Corresponding Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other Income

Our other income mainly consists of government grants and other
subsidies, bank and other interest income, surcharges from suppliers,
rental income, consultancy service income, trademark licensing fee
and others (the breakdown of which is provided in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statement in this report). We received various
types of government grants in the form of tax subsidies, incentives
for research and development activities and expansion of production
capacity of energy-saving lamp. During the Reporting Period, other
income of the Group decreased as compared with the other income from
the Corresponding Period, which was mainly due to combined effects
of decrease in government grants and other subsidies, bank interest
income, and increase of rental income.

Other Gains and Losses

This item represents the Group’s net foreign exchange gains (losses),
losses on fair value changes of held-for-trade investments, (loss) gain
on disposal of property, plant and equipment and others during the
Reporting Period.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution costs mainly consist of freight costs,
advertising and promotion expenses, staff costs and other costs including
office expenses, customs clearance expenses, travelling expenses,
depreciation and amortisation, insurance fees and other miscellaneous
costs.

During the Reporting Period, the selling and distribution expenses were
US$34,851,000, representing a decrease of 12.8% as compared with the
selling and distribution costs from the Corresponding Period. The selling
and distribution expenses as a percentage in revenue increased from
14.3% to 14.8%, which is mainly resulted from an increase of market
research fee.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly consist of staff costs, amortisation
and depreciation, office expenses and other expenses including tax
expenses, audit fees, other professional fees, and other miscellaneous
expenses. These taxes mainly include land use tax and stamp duty in
connection with our administrative functions.
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During the Reporting Period, the administrative expenses were
US$36,572,000, representing an increase of 9.4% as compared
with the administrative expenses from continuing operations of the
Corresponding Period, which was mainly due to the return to normal
business activities after the COVID-19 pandemic. Our administrative
expenses as a percentage in revenue slightly increased from 12.0% for
the Corresponding Period to 15.5% for the Reporting Period.

Finance Costs

Finance costs represent the expenses of interest on bank loans, interest
on lease liabilities and interest on vendor financing.

Share of Results of Associates

This item represents the Group’s share of net profits or net losses in the
associates during the Reporting Period.

Impairment reversal assessment of interests in an associate,
Brilliant Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd.

More details about the impairment reversal assessment of interests in an
associate are provided in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements
on pages 252 to 256 of this annual report.

Income Tax

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s income tax increased to
US$2,786,000 as compared with the income tax from the Corresponding
Period. It is mainly due to the increase of current income tax provision
from Hong Kong profits tax and other countries including Vietnam, during

the Corresponding Period.

Profit for the Year (including Profit Attributable to Non-
controlling Interests)

Due to the factors mentioned above, our profit for the year (including
profit attributable to non-controlling interests) was US$37,650,000 during
the Reporting Period.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company for the Year

Due to the factors mentioned above, profit attributable to owners of the
Company was US$35,713,000 during the Reporting Period.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Non-controlling Interests

During the Reporting Period, profit for the year attributable to non-
controlling interests was US$1,937,000.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

RREFEERA EEERABRABEFELSE
EHR o EIBERIENM.4% > £36,572TF =
T T EEBRNCOVID-19E 5% 275 58
MELEE - EEEARMGW A LA HRH
M12.0%EM EAEREFERN15.5%°

MBER

PHERBSRBRTERMNE -HEERME
RHEERENSZH-

NS 3

FERBRBEFEAEEEBEHEAT
REARFMN BN AERFERMNEE

i — K B A B Brilliant Lights
International Holding Pte. Ltd.HY# &%
A E B B 3

B —REE QB oA B R T
MIERFELRAEFRFE52EEF 2568
rE M BmREE24 -

FRrigiR

RBEFER ZEEFRSRERBRZF
SIRBME2,786T X TEEHNE R
MERLEEERENNEMERBEHR
PRSI B s R HAtE MNP 2K o

AR (B 45 FE 12 I 14 1 5 (G AU )

HR AR RREFER BN KR
FEXB (BEIETRMEREELTE) &
37,650F & °

EYNSIE ZE DN SR R 2 b

MR ERER RESFER ZATHE
ABIERAFR B A35,713F &7

JEHE M R PG I AN 7

RIEFERN JFEFIMERIEGNARE
F)EA1,937F =0



Cash Flow and Liquidity

Cash flow

The table below sets out selected cash flow data from our consolidated

statement of cash flows.

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEmEAD

MRS RBHEIE-

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows

At the end of the Reporting Period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group were mainly denominated in US$, RMB, HK$, GBP, JPY, SGD
and VND. RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.

RETEEAE, FrR) REREBFH
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FNRE KRR EEY

EREHZEFHE

MR ERERERTES]
BIRERIFEEFEY

e
TREHNRBEMNGERERERFEHIE
31 December
12HA31H

2023 2022
2023 20224
US$’ 000 US$’ 000
FE7T FET
(Restated)
(&E=7))
35,095 108,273
25,206 (71,075)
(30,924) 28,819
(29,377) (54,844)
(85,057) 148,732
(6,161) (8,831)
108,273 85,057
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEmEAD

Liquidity e
FREEEREESTH TN

Sufficiency of net current assets and working capital

The table below sets out our current assets, current liabilities and net TFTRFHIINBEEERBNBEE N H
current assets as at the end of the Reporting Period. BEERERBEE-

Year ended 31 December

HE12B31HLLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
US$’°000 US$’000
FEnx FET
(restated)
<=2
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories 78 45,236 64,305
Trade and bills receivables B REHEERER 49,464 45,853
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HEWERRR  RBE RTEN R 13,437 12,346
Tax recoverable AR - 622
Financial assets at fair value through BAnBEFAERD ((BanEE
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) AR NEmEE 3,939 4,327
Pledged bank deposits ILIRRIERTTERR - 53,567
Fixed deposits with maturity of HARBR=EBENERER
more than three months 21,158 -
Cash and cash equivalents BERREEEY 108,273 85,057
Subtotal current assets RENE E Nt 241,507 266,077
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAaE
Trade payables B 5 TR 39,445 32,792
Other payables and accruals HihEN R A TEIR E A 29,501 24,790
Contract liabilities ERaE 5,516 5,601
Borrowings EEN 1,699 39,034
Deferred income IR IE W 2 142 145
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,793 1,547
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAREBESABZNESHERE - 1,068
Tax liabilities mEasE 1,082 1,663
Subtotal current liabilities mENEE 79,178 106,640
NET CURRENT ASSETS BREBEE 162,329 159,437
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the total net current
assets of the Group amounted to US$162,329,000 and US$159,437,000,
respectively, and the current ratio was 3.05 and 2.50, respectively. In light
of our current liquidity position and our projected cash inflows generated
from operations, the Directors believe that the Group has sufficient
working capital for our present requirements and for the next 12 months.

Capital Management

The table below sets out our gearing ratio as at the end of the Reporting
Period.

EEEmEAD

20235124831 EI%D2022EE12}§31 H> K
EENEREELRED R A162,320F FE
TT 159,437 F E T > /m%jjtt$ 7 Al %A3.05
22.50° EER F M B Bl B R BN M AR OR K TAER
REEMEENRERA EFBALE

EEEREMNEEE T URMN BRI KKK
12EANEZFEK
BEXER

TREIINBEFERNEFTBB LR

Year ended 31 December

HE12B31HLEEE

2023 2022
20235 20224
US$’000 US$’000
FE=7x FEx
(restated)
(#= & 7)
Borrowings LEEE N 1,699 39,034
Total debt B EET 1,699 39,034
Less: cash and cash equivalents and Fixed B IRERIREEEYRERES
deposits with maturity of more than —ERNEHRER
three months (129,431) (85,057)
Net debt BES N/A N/A
iEH eyl
Total equity attributable to owners of the KRNEER AEGRER
Company 483,771 454,492
Gearing ratio BEARAELEE N/A N/A
iEH i A

The primary goal of our capital management is to maintain the stability
and growth of our financial position. We regularly review and manage
our capital structure and make corresponding adjustments, after taking
into consideration changes in economic conditions, our future capital
requirements, prevailing and projected profitability and operating cash
flows, projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. We manage our capital by monitoring our gearing ratio
(which is calculated as net debt divided by the total equity attributable to
owners of the Company). Net debt is the balance of borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents and Fixed deposits with maturity of more than three
months.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEmEAD

Inventories

The balance of inventories represents our balance of stock of raw
materials, work in progress and finished goods as at the end of the
Reporting Period. We monitor our inventories on a regular basis.

More details about the inventories are provided in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 261 of this annual report.

Trade and bills receivables

Trade receivables of the Group mainly represented proceeds receivable
from sale of goods. The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit periods generally range from 30 to 180
days for major customers. Each major customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivables balance.

More details about the trade and bills receivables are provided in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 257 to 259 of this
annual report.

Trade and bills payables

More details about the trade and bills payables are provided in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 263 to 265 of this annual
report.

Borrowings

More details about the borrowings are provided in note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements on pages 269 to 270 of this annual
report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Expenditure

We funded our capital expenditure with cash generated from operations
and bank loans. Our capital expenditure is primarily related to expenditure
on property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets. During
the Reporting Period, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to
US$6,982,000, mainly attributable to the increase in cost of machinery
equipment and other intangible assets.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangement

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any outstanding
derivative financial instruments and off-balance sheet guarantees for
outstanding loans. The Group did not engage in trading activities
involving non-exchange traded contracts during the Reporting Period.

Capital and Other Commitments

As at 31 December 2023, the capital commitments in respect of
purchase of property, plant and equipment were US$971,000 (31
December 2022: US$845,000).

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Reporting Period, the continuing connected transactions of
the Group did not exceed the annual caps previously disclosed in the
relevant announcements of the Company.

Mergers, Acquisitions, Investments and Disposals

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group made no material acquisition,
merger, investment or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures and there were no significant investments held during the
Reporting Period.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no material investments or
additions of capital assets authorised by the Board as at the date of this
report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEmEAD

Issue of New Shares under Specific Mandate and
Use of Net Proceeds

On 9 July 2023, the Company and Canopy Capital Limited (being the
“Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Subscriber conditionally agreed to
subscribe and the Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total
of 845,456,130 new Shares (the “Subscription Shares”). The subscription
price of HK$0.083 per Subscription Share represented a premium of
approximately 16.9% to the closing price of HK$0.071 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 7 July 2023, being the last full trading
day in the Shares prior to the date of the Subscription Agreement; and
a premium of approximately 23.9% to the average of the closing prices
of approximately HK$0.067 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
for the last five trading days immediately before 9 July 2023, being the
date of the Subscription Agreement. The Subscription Shares represent
approximately 20.0% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of the Subscription Agreement and approximately 16.7% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment
and issue of the Subscription Shares. According to the par value of
US$0.0000001 each Share prior to the share consolidation which took
effect on 27 October 2023, the nominal value of the Subscription Shares
was US$84.55.

The gross proceeds of this subscription amounted to approximately
HK$70.2 million. After deducting all professional fee and related
expenses, the net proceeds from the issue of the Subscription Shares
amounted to approximately HK$69.7 million (equivalent to US$8.9
million). The net price for each Subscription Share was approximately
HK$0.082. For more details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 9 July 2023 and the circular of the Company dated 4
August 2023. The subscription was approved by the Shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 21 August 2023
and completed on 25 August 2023.

During the Reporting Period, US$1.0 million of the net proceeds had
been used for the overseas business development and expansion and
US$0.7 million of the net proceeds had been used for implementation of
global ERP and warehouse system. The unutilized proceeds for overseas
business development and expansion and general working capital
amounted to US$6.3 million and US$900,000, respectively. Depending
on actual business needs, it is estimated that the unutilized net proceeds
will be fully utilized in accordance with its intended purposes previously
disclosed by the Company within the next two years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Share Consolidation

On 25 October 2023, the Company held an extraordinary general
meeting and an ordinary resolution was passed to approve the
consolidation of every ten issued and unissued existing ordinary Shares
with a par value of US$0.0000001 each in the authorised and issued
share capital of the Company into one consolidated Share with a par
value of US$0.000001 each in the share capital of the Company. The
share consolidation became effective on 27 October 2023 and the total
number of issued Shares became 507,273,677 Shares. For details of the
share consolidation, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 18 September 2023 and 25 October 2023 and the circular of the
Company dated 9 October 2023.

Other Significant Investment and Performance

Except for the information disclosed in other parts of this annual report,
the Group did not make or hold any significant investments (including any
investment in an investee company with a value of 5 percent or more of
the Group’s total assets as of 31 December 2023) during the Reporting
Period.

Pledge of Assets

The Group’s borrowings had been secured by the pledge of the Group’s
assets and the carrying amounts of the respective assets are as follows:
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Trade receivables
Pledged bank deposits

Market Risks

We are exposed to various market risks in the ordinary course of
business. Our risk management strategy aims to minimise the adverse
effects of these risks to our financial results.

2023 2022
2023 20224
US$’ 000 US$’ 000
FET FE=T
(Restated)

(REF)
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7,591 61,814

™ 15 & B
EHEEBBRET AMEESETEA

ZoRMMNEAREERREETRELRAR
HEMUBEENZERERME-

BTEFERARASE 202355

31



32

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEmEAD

Foreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to transactional currency risk. Such risk arises from sales
or procurement by an operating unit in currencies other than its functional
currency. As a result, we are exposed to fluctuations in the exchange
rate between the functional currencies and foreign currencies. During the
Reporting Period, the Group had entered into several forward exchange
contracts in place to hedge the foreign exchange exposure and did not
experience any material difficulties or negative impacts on our operations
or liquidity as a result of fluctuations on currency exchange rates.

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to fluctuations in the prices of raw materials which are
influenced by global changes as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could adversely
affect our financial performance. We did not enter into any commodity
derivative instruments to hedge the potential commodity price changes.

Liquidity Risk

We monitor our risk of having a shortage of funds by managing the
maturity of our financial instruments, financial assets and liabilities and
projected cash flows from operations. Our goal is to maintain a balance
between continuity and flexibility of funding through the use of bank
loans and other interest-bearing loans. Our Directors have reviewed our
working capital and capital expenditure requirements and determined that
we have no significant liquidity risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Credit Risk

Our major credit risk arises from exposure to a substantial number
of trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables from
debtors. We have policies in place to ensure that the sales of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit limit, and we have
strict control over credit limits of trade receivables. Our cash and short-
term deposits are mainly deposited with registered banks in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Singapore. We also have policies that limit our
credit risk exposure to any financial institutions. The carrying amounts
of trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents and short-term deposits included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent our maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to our financial assets. We have no other financial assets
which carry significant exposure to credit risk. In 2023, we entered into
a number of one-year insurance contracts with China Export & Credit
Insurance Corporation, which covered 90% uncollectible receivables
from international sales during the period from 1 July 2023 to 30 June
2024 with a maximum compensation amount of US$20,000,000. We
purchased such insurance in order to minimise our exposure to credit risk
as we expand our business. We plan to renew such insurance contracts
when they become due.

Employees

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had approximately 1,967 employees
in total (31 December 2022: 2,246). The Group regularly reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees according to the relevant
market practice and individual performance of the employees. In addition
to basic salary, employees are entitled to other benefits including social
insurance contributions, employee provident fund schemes, discretionary
incentive and share option schemes.

Contingent Liability

Please refer to note 48 to the consolidated financial statement for details.
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Directors and Senior Management

EFENEREEE

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. WANG Donglei (E£ %), aged 60, is an executive Director, chairman and the chief technology officer of the Company. He
is also the former chief executive officer of the Company (Mr. Wang has resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company
on 22 February 2019, has been re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive Director on 20 May 2020 and
has been re-designated again from a non-executive Director to an executive Director on 17 July 2020). Mr. Wang has been
appointed as the chief technology officer of the Company with effect from 19 July 2021. He is also a director of a subsidiary
of the Company. In addition, Mr. Wang has been appointed as a director of Brilliant Lights (Finco) Pte. Ltd. and Brilliant Lights
International Holding Pte. Ltd., the associates of the Company, with effect from 12 December 2019.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in January 2013. He has many years of experience in product research and development,
manufacturing and business management. In 1996, Mr. Wang participated in the founding of Zhuhai China Resource Appliance
Co., Ltd.* (BkBZEBM B8R ARAF) (which was subsequently renamed as Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (Z#iESHEBR
1B BRA ) (‘ETIC”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, and the shares of which were listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange in China in 2004) and served as the chairman and the general manager. He has been serving as a director and the
chairman of ETIC from 2001 and has resigned as the chairman of ETIC on 8 October 2018; and resigned as director of ETIC
on 11 May 2021. Mr. Wang graduated from China Dalian Institute of Technology (subsequently renamed as Dalian University of
Technology) with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Mr. Wang is the father of Mr. WANG Keven Dun. Mr. WANG Keven Dun is
an executive Director of the Company.

FLXELRE RFOR EARABNTEES EERMEFEME TAETEARAFATEERNTE (HE
R2019F 28220 B EAR AT ERHAITE » R2020F5 820 AT E S AEAIERITES » R2020FE7817
HEFENTEEEFATANITES) c FEENR2021F7TR10HESZEF AR AT EHERME - MMEARKALXR
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Kz Brilliant Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd.Z 55 o
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Ms. CHAN Kim Yung, Eva (BR&¥3), aged 56, is an executive Director, the vice chairman, chief executive officer and vice
president of mature channels for overseas sales of the Company. Ms. Chan joined the Group in November 2018 and has been
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 22 February 2019. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. In addition, Ms. Chan has been appointed as a director of Birilliant Lights (Finco) Pte. Ltd. and
Brilliant Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd., the associates of the Company, with effect from 12 December 2019.

From 1998 to 2004, Ms. Chan served as the general manager and vice president of Zhuhai China Resource Appliance Co.,
Ltd.* GkEEHEES AR AT (how known as Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (Z#ESHEERRMHERAT) (‘ETICY), a
substantial shareholder of the Company), where she was in charge of the sales and marketing of global business; from 2004 to
2012, she served as the senior vice president of ETIC where she was in charge of the company’s global business strategy and
risk management; from 2012 to 2018, she served as the chief executive officer of Elec-Tech Solid State Lighting (HK) Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company mainly engaged in international LED lighting business. Ms. Chan graduated from University of
Saskatchewan where she obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering in 1991, a master’s degree in Engineering in 1993 and a
master’s degree in Business Administration in 1995.

BRuIERL HE6 RARBRNTEZ RIEER - BENTERSIIHERNRAEEREH B LR
2018 F 11 AMAXREBE N N2019F2B22HEEZEAA RN EFHNTE - MWEAKAEABETHEBABE
Eolbsh R T BE2019F 12812 B BT A A T K= A BBrilliant Lights (Finco) Pte. Ltd.KBrilliant Lights
International Holding Pte. Ltd. 55 o
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Mr. XIAO Yu (), aged 64, is an executive director of the Company and vice president of manufacturing of the Company.
Mr. Xiao joined the Group in May 2014 as a non-executive Director and re-designated as an executive Director in August 2014.
He is also a director/chairman of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Xiao has extensive experience in enterprise production management. He once served as a senior officer in companies listed
in Mainland China for several years and therefore has in-depth knowledge and understanding on corporate governance and
enterprise management. From July 1986 to June 1996, Mr. Xiao worked in Beijing Beinei Group* (1t iR IE W& E) as the deputy
chief coordinator and the party secretary of the Communist Party of China of the Central Coordination Office, during which
he was awarded the titles of Beijing Model Worker and Beijing Excellent Young Intellectual. He was the chairman and general
manager of Westar (Zhongshan) Electrical Appliance Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (EiHrZE 23 (L) WEERAT), a subsidiary
of ETIC Group from July 1996 to August 2004, was the deputy general manager of the ETIC Group and the chairman of Westar
(Zhongshan) Electrical Appliance Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (Bi#r#Z E 25 (L) &iEHBRA =) from September 2004 to February
2008, and was senior vice president of ETIC from March 2012 to December 2014. From May 2008 to December 2019, he
had successively served as the consultant to the president of ETIC Group, the chairman and general manager of Elec-Tech
Photoelectric Technology (Dalian) Co., Ltd.* (KEE SR ER AR A F) and the general manager of Elec-Tech Photoelectric
Technology (Wuhu) Co., Ltd.* (EEHERBENBERIZAERAE). Mr. Xiao previously worked in different subsidiaries of ETIC
Group as: a director of Appliance of America (Zhuhai) Limited* (3632 E 23 (BkE) BEBR/AE]), an executive director of Elec-
Tech Photoelectric Technology (Dalian) Co., Ltd.* (KEEZHER LB R/AB) and an executive director of Huizhou Thorled-
opto Co., Ltd.* (BINFEBEAESEHFARAT). M. Xiao graduated from Dalian Institute of Technology (later renamed as
Dalian University of Technology) with a bachelor’s degree in 1985 and also graduated with an EMBA’s degree from School of
Economics and Management of Tsinghua University in 2008. He holds the engineer’s qualification certificate.

HFERE RF64R BEEARDRNTESREEEERGEHNEBH - HAER2014F58MATER &I
HITES HENR204F8ARBERNTES MEAKAEARADETHBARNES 'EF K-

HEREERERANGELEETETI LR ENBFEETTREAE L TRARSAEEAE R AERD
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Mr. WANG Keven Dun (E£18), aged 31, is an executive director of the Company (Mr. Wang has been re-designated from a
non-executive Director to an executive Director on 1 September 2022) and was appointed a vice president of the Company and
a member of the Strategy and Planning Committee from 1 September 2022. Mr. Wang joined the Group in December 2016.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang has been the analyst in Compass Lexecon LLC. from
August 2014 to December 2016. Mr. WANG obtained a bachelor’s degree in Economics and Molecular and Cell Biology from
University of California, Berkeley in 2014 and a master’s degree in Business Administration from Harvard Business School in
2022. Mr. WANG Keven Dun is the son of Mr. WANG Donglei. Mr. WANG Donglei is an executive director and the chairman of
the Company.

Mr. WANG Keven Dun indirectly held 84,545,613 shares of the Company, representing 16.67% of issued shares of the
Company as of 31 December 2023.

FEEE BE31K 2R R HITEE (FAEEN 2022898 1HBAFRTESHEANITES) » L0
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Non-executive Director

ERITES

Mr. YE Yong (M), aged 56, is a non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Ye joined the Company in November 2018.
From 1991 to 1994, Mr. Ye served as the department manager of Chongging Qinwang Company Limited* (EBEZEHBRA
B]), where he was involved in the foreign trade and management matters; in 1994, he founded and had served as the chairman
and general manager of Xiehe Lighting Company Limited* ({3 F1B&BEAEBRAED) till 1999. He founded Sichuan NVC Lighting
Equipment Operations Co., Ltd.* (I8)I| & +HREAEMEFEEBRAF) (“Sichuan NVC”) in 1999 and has served as the chairman
since then, in charge of sales and management of the Company’s business in Sichuan Province. Mr. Ye graduated from
economical management department of Southwest University in 1991 with a college diploma.

Mr. Ye and his spouse held an aggregate of 28,147,200 shares of the Company, representing 5.55% of the issued shares of the
Company as of 31 December 2023.

HEXE IRESGH ' EAATIFFEHNITEE - HAEEMN2018FE11ANMARAT o HE4E B1991FE E19944F » i
EREETERADEAHAKE  RENEREEITIE; 19945 BB MBI ERAR » WLE1994FEFE
1900FETEFT R RAEKIR ; 710095 > 8#iMY)I | E LHRABZMEEAGRAR (WIIEL) TETEF R
BEARATNRO)IENHEREEB T HEE MM EREN AR ASBEEEBREX  EREF.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
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Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway (ZF#f3), aged 69, is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Lee joined
the Company in November 2012. He received a bachelor of arts degree from Kingston University (formerly known as Kingston
Polytechnic) in London and further obtained his postgraduate diploma in business from Curtin University of Technology in
Australia. Mr. Lee served as a partner of Ernst & Young (“EY”) for over 29 years, until 2009, during which he held key leadership
positions in the development of EY in China. Mr. Lee is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, the Institute of Chartered Accountants, Australia and New Zealand, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants. Mr. Lee
currently also serves as an independent non-executive director of Chaowei Power Holdings Limited, West China Cement
Limited, China Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd., GCL New Energy Holdings Limited, (the shares of all these companies are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange), and Intchains Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on NASDAQ Stock
Exchange). He previously acted as an independent non-executive director of CITIC Securities Company Limited (the shares
of which are listed on main board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from November 2011 to May
2016, Tibet Water Resources Ltd (the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) from March 2011
to February 2020, China Rundong Auto Group Limited (the shares of which were previously listed on main board of the Stock
Exchange and were delisted in 2022) from July 2014 to December 2020, WH Group Limited (the shares of which are listed an
main board of the Stock Exchange) from July 2014 to June 2022, Yashili International Holdings Ltd (the listing of the shares
on the Stock Exchange being withdrawn in July 2023) from November 2013 to July 2023, GOME Retail Holdings Limited (the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) from Marh 2011 to September 2023, and Guotai Junan
Securities Co., Ltd. (the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange)
from October 2016 to November 2023, respectively. Mr. Lee was a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Hunan Province (B & & Bl Z &) in China from 2008 to 2017,
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Mr. WANG Xuexian (E25%), aged 60, is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Wang joined the
Company in May 2014. Mr. Wang graduated from Renmin University of China with a Master’s degree in Civil Laws in January
1990. He is a lawyer in China, and his qualification for serving as an independent director has been approved by the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. From January 1990 to the present, Mr. Wang has worked as an assistant professor and lecturer in Dalian
University of Technology. He currently serves as a deputy professor of Dalian University of Technology, a lawyer of Heng Xin
Law Office* GREZ B85 2EMEFR) in Liaoning. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in law studies, teaching and the work of
lawyers, once served as an independent director of several listed or unlisted companies in the Mainland China, and has in-depth
knowledge and understanding on domestic and overseas laws, corporate management and corporate governance. Mr. Wang
acted as an independent director of ETIC from April 2014 to October 2018.

FEELEE IBFOR > 2R AR BIULIERITES c TR EMR2014F58MARRT c EHREN1990F1H E
RARARKEZ T ESREZIZBIEN HMAFTIHEMENR TERS L EESRFMBILEFTER T
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Mr. CHEN Hong (Bk354), aged 58, is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Company in
December 2021. He served as an engineer of Guangzhou Wenchong Shipyard Co., Ltd. * (BN >CHAL R A R S 1E A &) from
September 1986 to January 1991. From July 2002 to July 2020, Mr. Chen served as a lawyer of Guangdong Yinghui Law Firm*
(EERBEREMEFFN . Since August 2020, he has been serving as a lawyer of Guangdong Jiegao Law Firm* (BERiES
7REIEFEFT) . Mr. Chen graduated from Dalian Institute of Technology* (K38 T 2 [5%) (currently known as Dalian University of
Technology* (K72 T AK£2)) and obtained a bachelor’s degree in ship engineering in July 1986. He also obtained the legal
professional qualification certificate from the Ministry of Justice of the People’s Republic of China in September 2002.

FRSAS > 585 B AR AT MBI FFMITEE PRI LN 2021 F12AMAR AT c B1986F9HE1991F18 > &
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=R EEE

Mr. WANG Donglei (E£ %), aged 60, is the chairman and the chief technology officer of the Company. His biographical
details are set out above under the paragraph headed “Executive Directors”.

FELERE RFOOR REAAAMNEFTRAEREME MNEAABNEELXAITESFI —RPMEA-

Ms. CHAN Kim Yung, Eva (BR#I3%), aged 56, is the chief executive officer, vice chairman and the vice-president in charge
of the mature channel of the overseas sales of the Company. Her biographical details are set out above under the paragraph
headed “Executive Directors”.

BREBL LT HFE65 BREAARANEEATE RESEREEEIINHEMARENREH - MAEAE T
BELXRITES —RPHMEA-

Mr. XIAO Yu (B ), aged 64, is the vice-president in charge of the manufacturing of the Company. His biographical details are
set out above under the paragraph headed “Executive Directors”.

HFELEE RF64n A AR BEEERENBBH - MHNEAAGNEE L RITES I —RPHHE-
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Mr. NG Hon Lun ({RFZ{®&), aged 43, is the chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Ng joined the Group in 2020 as chief
financial advisor of the Company and was appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company with effect from 5 January
2021. Mr. Ng has more than 21 years of experience in finance and accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ng processed
professional accounting and auditing experience with RSM Hong Kong as deputy audit manager. After that, he acted as
financial controller in TCL Communication Technology Holdings Limited, a company which shares were previously listed on the
Stock Exchange and were delisted in the year 2016 (stock code: 2618), vice president and chief financial officer in Unisplendour
Technology (Holdings) Limited (now known as Sino ICT Holdings Limited), a company which shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0365); and deputy general manager and financial controller in Shenzhen Infinova Limited, a company
which shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 2528), respectively. Mr. Ng graduated from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in accounting obtained in 2002. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Ms. YANG Yan, aged 49, is the chief operating officer of the Company. Ms. Yang joined the Group in September 2023 as
assistant to the chief executive officer of the Company and was appointed as the chief operating officer of the Company with
effect from December 2023. Ms. Yang has more than 25 years of experience in home appliance industry especially in oversea
market. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Yang served ETIC, a substantial shareholder of the Company, as vice president
between April 2014 and May 2023, and as director of ETIC from April 2014 to June 2022. Ms. Yang graduated from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics where she obtained Bachelor’s degree in International Trade in 1998 and also graduated
with an EMBA’s degree from Sun Yat-Sen University in 2002.

Bt 495 EARAEINEEEEE - BL TN2023F9BMARERE  IEFEAATNITHRERBIE TR
2023 F 12 ER AR AN EEEEE BRITEREELLHEBINTHEBEABBE2ENLKE - NA
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2022 R HiMIEAEEHENEE G T8 FEEXEN TR AZ - EHEERESFEXE2 24 UK
2002FERERPNARE  EESHEEBAETIEHEEBE LT 21

Ms. XIE Dongmei (8% #8), Aged 50, is the vice president in charge of new business development of the Company. Ms.
Xie joined the Group in November of 2018. She has many years of experience in oversea market development, international
business negotiation and operations management. She severed Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (2B HEERKRNHBERE
‘A7) (“ETIC”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, as sales manager and sales director etc. between 2003 and 2011.
From 2012 to 2018, she served HKSSL as assistant general manager and executive deputy general manager. In addition, Ms.
Xie has been appointed as a director of NVC Lighting Japan K.K., a subsidiary of the Company effective from December 2019.
Ms. Xie graduated from Economics Department of Sun Yat-Sen University where she obtained Bachelor’s degree in Economics
in 1995. She is also a certified Intermediate Economist and International Business Engineer.

HEBRL RES0R BALRDBEMEFHEMNINER - HLLN2018FIMAMARER - MASLFE
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Ms. FAN Qianwen GEfES), aged 50, is the sales vice deputy general manager of HKSSL, a subsidiary of the Company, in
charge of sales management and business development. Ms. Fan joined the Group in July, 2012, has years of experience in
oversea market development and new business management. She served ETIC, a substantial shareholder of the Company, as
sales manager and sales vice-director etc. between 1998 and 2012. Ms. Fan graduated from Master’s degree in International
Marketing of Macquarie University in 2014.

BEERL RF0% BARARANBAEEBNENHERRKE B R EFTEMNHEEEREHH
R SBXLTNR2012F7TAMALRER BEESFENBIINHBIERENEFEET LR - thit1998F £2012
FEBRHE CRBZEERR) BEEHECERBERRESHTE BRI N20M4FEEENEZTHRAE
ERERDISEHMmE B

Mr. Akira MORITSUNE (F%18%), aged 62, is an executive director of NVC Lighting Japan Co., Ltd. (“‘NVCJP”), in charge
of the overall operation of all NVCJP business unit since his appointment by the Group on 5 July 2021. After Mr. Moritsune
graduated from Yokohama National University with a degree in economics, he joined for Toshiba group company which is one of
Japan’s leading international companies. He has led the group for many years as head of sales for the lighting businesses which
include housing, public facilities building, lamps and equipment at Toshiba Lighting & Technology Corporation.

HIEELE 6258 ° FNVC Lighting Japan Co., Ltd. (NVCJP 1) WEITEE > B2021F7ASH W AE BT
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Mr. Joe CLARK, aged 64, is the chief executive officer of NVC Lighting Limited (‘“NVC UK”), a subsidiary of the Company, and
a director of UK and Nordic subsidiaries. Joe obtained a bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Engineering. Mr. Joe joined the Group
in late 2016, has held senior positions in a number of overseas market-leading electrical product manufacturers and distributors.
Mr. Joe leads NVC UK'’s development programs across multiple areas of the business.

Joe CLARKZYL A » IRF645% » 24~ A B Mt B A BINVC Lighting Limited (T EE L)) WEERTEUREH X
BB ATIMNESE o JocEBHM TRE2 T2 cJoe2016FEMARER > ENZRBINTIRBLENE
SEMAEENEHBETER JoeBEHTRRE T AL EERBTNE RS -

Mr. Andy PAGETT, aged 58 is an executive director of NVC UK. Andy joined the Group in October 2017. He is the chief
operating officer of UK and Nordic subsidiaries. Andy has extensive experience in operational management. From 2007 to 2017,
he worked for a privately owned UK company, Unipart Group of Companies, running both forward and reverse logistics and
repair operations for various blue-chip companies, from Vodafone, Sky and Three Mobile. Andy has an extensive knowledge
and experience in implementation of lean manufacturing, having worked with Industry Forum, a lean consultancy, during his time
with Unipart. Prior to 2007, Andy has worked in several manufacturing sectors, including Defence, automotive and aerospace.
Andy graduated from Coventry University with a MSc in Engineering Business Management.

Andy PAGETTS 4% IRFL8m BREE THHITES - AndyiR2017F108 MA KR EE - 2 =B & IEBR
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HEBER AndyERHRNEEN T ARE S ENAM KK > FUnipartT BB B EB R 55 A Sindustry
Forum I fE° jR20074 A1 AndyBEZERETETLF > @FEHB  ABERMEM K AndyE ZE R Coventry
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Company Secretary
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Ms. KWOK Siu Ying Sarah (38JK%), aged 40, was appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 26 August 2022.
Ms. Kwok is currently a manager of corporate services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited. She has over eight years of
experience in the corporate services industry.

Ms. Kwok obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Studies from University College Dublin, National University of Ireland in
June 2012 and a master’s degree in Corporate Governance from Hong Kong Metropolitan University in November 2017. She
has been an associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and an associate member of The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom since 2018. She is also an affiliate member of The Society of Trust and Estate
Practitioners.

Ms. Kwok is currently the joint company secretary of Shanghai Bio-heart Biological Technology Co., Ltd., a Main Board listed
company in Hong Kong (stock code: 2185), Shanghai HeartCare Medical Technology Corporation Limited, a Main Board listed
company in Hong Kong (stock code: 6609) and Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc., a Main Board listed company in
Hong Kong (stock code: 2373).

ILE L L 4058 1R2022F8H26 HEZE AR AT ARIME o L IR EVistra Corporate Services (HK)
Limited W £ REEIB-FECERBITERERES A/ FLHE-
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Report of Directors
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The Board presents this report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 (“Financial
Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Company was redomiciled from the British Virgin Islands to the
Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010 and incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability. The Group’s operations are conducted
mainly through the direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Company. The
Group is principally engaged in the design, development, production,
marketing and sale of a variety of lighting products, and gradually extend
to non-lighting business areas. During the Reporting Period, there is
no significant change in the Group’s principal activities. The financial
performance of the principal activities of the Group during the Reporting
Period is set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss of the
consolidated financial statements on pages 184 to 185.

Subsidiaries and Associates

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2023 are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
Particulars of the Group’s interests in associates are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of affairs of the
Group as at 31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 186 to 308 of this annual report.

The Board has proposed not to declare final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting (“Annual General Meeting”) of the Company
is scheduled to be held on 14 June 2024. A notice convening the Annual
General Meeting will be published and dispatched to the Shareholders in
due course.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
11 June 2024 to Friday, 14 June 2024 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the Annual General Meeting, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 7 June 2024.
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Business Review

The discussion for the business review of the Reporting Period of the
Group as well as the major risks and uncertainty factors facing the Group
are set forth in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 20
to 33 of this annual report. The future business development of the Group
is set forth in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 7 to 11 of this annual
report. The critical indices adopted in the financial statements for the
analysis of the performance of the Group during the Reporting Period are
set forth in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 20 to 33
of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations affecting the
operation of the Group significantly.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group acknowledges that our employees, clients and business
cooperative partners are the key to our sustainable development. The
Group is committed to the establishment of close relationship with our
employees and the provision of industrialised, chain-based and one-stop
solutions to our clients, and continues to strengthen the cooperation with
our business cooperative partners so as to attain the win-win outcome for
various parties and push ahead with the healthy and rapid development
of the lighting industry.

Environmental Protection and Social
Responsibility

The Group is committed to the support for the sustainable environmental
protection. As the well-known supplier for lighting products in the
industry, the Group shall comply with various environmental protection
laws and regulations formulated by the relevant international and local
government departments. The Group is the advocate pioneer for green
lighting and committed to the promotion of “Lighting Environment”: to
beautify the commercial and living space with artificial lighting, protect
the healthy living environment for mankind with energy-saving lighting for
environmental protection, and support the energy-saving environmental
protection business for the whole world with action taken. The Group will
go further to continue to carry out the enterprise social responsibilities as
a means of feedback to our society.
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Equity-Linked Agreement

Save as disclosed in the “Restricted Share Unit Scheme” section in this
annual report, the Group neither entered into nor had any equity-linked
agreement during the Reporting Period.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, each Director
is entitled to the compensation out of the assets and profits of the
Company for all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages, expenses or
liabilities incurred due to the execution of his/her duties or taken place
related to such execution. The Company has taken out the appropriate
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy for the Directors and
officers of the Group as a means of security.

Financial Highlights

A summary of the audited results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five reporting periods is set out on pages 5 to 6 of this
annual report.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Details of bank loans and other borrowings are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 269 to 270 of this annual
report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not grant any loans

to any entities, nor did it offer any financial assistance to its associates or
make any guarantee for the facilities granted to its associates.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment for the
Reporting Period are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 243 to 244 of this annual report.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital for the Reporting Period are set

out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements on page 272 of
this annual report.
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group for
the Reporting Period are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 306 to 307 and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 188 to 189 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 20283, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to US$364,935,000.

Public Float

As of the date of this annual report, based on the information publicly
available to the Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules for the Reporting Period and at any time prior to the date of this
annual report.

Important events after the Reporting Period

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 8 March 2024, the
Group entered into a share purchase agreement, pursuant to which the
Group agreed to purchase 40% of the total issued share capital of NVC
Lighting AB, which was a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, for
an initial consideration of US$582,000 (equivalent to SEK6,000,000) and
completion had taken place on the date of the announcement.

With effective from completion, NVC Lighting AB has become a wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Group. For further details of the acquisition,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 8 March 2024.

Save as disclosed above, no important events affecting the Company
occurred since 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where
the Company was incorporated.

Tax Allowances

The Company is not aware of any particular tax allowances granted to the
Company’s Shareholders due to their interests in its securities.
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Directors

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report are as follows:
Executive Directors
WANG Donglei appointed as a non-executive Director on
11 January 2013, re-designated as an
executive Director on 2 February 2015,
resigned as the chief executive officer
on 22 February 2019, re-designated as
a non-executive Director on 20 May 2020,
re-designated again as an executive Director
on 17 July 2020 and appointed as the chief
technology officer on 19 July 2021
appointed as an executive Director and
vice chairman of the Company on
25 November 2018 and appointed as the
chief executive officer on 22 February 2019

CHAN Kim Yung, Eva

XIAO Yu appointed as a non-executive Director on
29 May 2014 and re-designated as an
executive Director on 8 August 2014

CAO Qin appointed on 19 July 2021 and resigned on

29 December 2023

appointed as an executive Director on
12 December 2016 and re-designated as
a non-executive Director on 20 May 2020,
re-designated as an executive Director on
1 September 2022

WANG Keven Dun

Non-executive Director
YE Yong appointed on 25 November 2018
Independent Non-executive Directors

LEE Kong Wai, Conway appointed on 28 November 2012
WANG Xuexian appointed on 29 May 2014
CHEN Hong appointed on 1 December 2021

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
Directors’ and senior management’s biographies are set out in the section

headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 34 to 47 of this
annual report.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with us that is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The relevant information on Directors’ service contracts is set out in
the section headed “Appointment and Re-election of Directors” in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 70 to 92 of this annual report.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Save for certain continuing connected transactions as disclosed in the
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report, no
Director nor an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party during or subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any
time during the Reporting Period.

Confirmation of Independence from the
Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, Mr. WANG Xuexian
and Mr. CHEN Hong, the annual confirmation letter of their respective
independence. The Company considers that the independent non-
executive Directors were independent from their respective date of
appointment to 31 December 2023 and remain independent as of the
date of this annual report.

Arrangement to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the “Restricted Share Unit Scheme” section in this
annual report, at no time during the Reporting Period or at the end of the
Reporting Period was the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding company
or the subsidiaries of its holding company, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or recorded in the register required to be maintained pursuant to
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
provisions of the Model Code were as follows:
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Approximate

percentage
Number of Shares or of the total
Name of Director Nature of interests Class of Shares underlying Shares issued Shares
(Note 1)
HERITRHNEH
EE4 EHEE & 153 £8 7 i 17 s A R AR 1 B B M4 E 2Lt
(Hia%1)
YE Yong Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 27,403,900 (L) 5.40%
L] BEREAA T E RS
Spouse’s interest Ordinary Shares 743,300 (L) 0.15%
BB = Zim s (Note 2)
(Hizt2)
WANG Keven Dun Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 84,545,613 (L) 16.67%
B B@EBA ZEe (Note 3)
(Ht5%3)

Notes: izt -

13 The approximate percentage of the total issued Shares is 1. HEZRTROBHENBANB DL 2EBA
calculated with reference to the Company’s number of Shares in NBIFR2023F12H31HZ EETRNEE
issue as at 31 December 2023, i.e. 507,273,677 Shares. (BP507,273,677 &A1) st& ©

ok As these Shares are held by Ms. GAO Xia, the spouse of Mr. YE 2. HRZERMDHANBAENEEBEER T
Yong, Mr. YE Yong is deemed to be interested in these Shares. FE ALEMHBEERRARZERG T

HEEGmo

3 These Shares were held by Canopy Capital Limited. As Canopy 3. ZERMHREEABRLABFE AR
Capital Limited is indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. WANG Keven REEBEABRAGHIELEBZEEEE
Dun, Mr. WANG Keven Dun is deemed to be interested in these B ITHEEERRARZERDPER#
Shares. flIL o

4. (L) represents long position. 4, LRFREE
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to have
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were notifiable to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to
be maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
which were notifiable to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the provisions of the Model Code.

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2023, to the best knowledge of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company, the following persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had 5% or more interests
or short positions in the issued Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section

336 of the SFO:
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Approximate

percentage
Number of Shares or of the total
Name of Shareholder Nature of interests Class of Shares underlying Shares issued Shares
(Note 1)
. HE BT A
RRBE EEtE e i 8R! R BRI &R BB 2L
(Hfz21)
Elec-Tech International (H.K.)  Beneficial owner Ordmary Shares 74,034,600 (L) 14.59%
_Company Limited EREBA i
ERHEER (B8 ERAH
ETIC Interest of corporation controlled by Ordlnary Shares 74,034,600 (L) 14.59%
EREE the substantial shareholder Rl (Note 2)
TEREMEGNEENER (Hyzt2)
§LU‘Lixin Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 64,935,064 (L) 12.80%
BILH BREBA EER
Rising Wealth Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 63,840,000 (L) 12.58%
MABERAE Bi Bk
ZHAO Yu Interest of corporation controlled by Ordinary Shares 63,840,000 (L) 12.58%
8 the substantial Shareholder LB (Note 3)
TERRMEHNEENER (Hyz3)
Harbour Faith Enterprises Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 36,991,100 (L) 7.29%
Limited BEEEEA B
CHAN Sin Wa Carrie Interest of corporation controlled by Ordinary Shares 36,991,100 (L) 7.29%
BRI E the substantial Shareholder BBk (Note 4)
TEREMENEENER (Hrzt4)
Canopy Capital Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 84,545,613 (L) 16.67%
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Approximate

percentage
Number of Shares or of the total
Name of Shareholder Nature of interests Class of Shares underlying Shares issued Shares
(Note 1)
s H HERTRIPAH
RREE HatE LeabE Rl R BRI R & B BN E AL
(Hfz£1)
Harker Hall Capital Ltd. Interest of corporation controlled by Ordinary Shares 84,545,613 (L) 16.67%
the substantial Shareholder EZimg (Note 5)
ITERBRMEHNEENER (Hrzts)
Leap Gain Limited Interest of corporation controlled by Ordinary Shares 84,545,613 (L) 16.67%
the substantial Shareholder ZEi% (Note 5)
TEREERNZENER (Hy55)
Oneworld Legend Limited Interest of corporation controlled by Ordinary Shares 84,545,613 (L) 16.67%
the substantial Shareholder EER (Note 5)
EREMEGNEENER (Hyzt5)

Notes:

The approximate percentage of the total issued Shares is
calculated with reference to the Company’s number of Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2023, i.e. 507,273,677 Shares.

These Shares were held by Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company
Limited. As Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company Limited is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ETIC, ETIC is deemed to be interested
in all these Shares.

These Shares were held by Rising Wealth Limited. As Rising Wealth
Limited is wholly-owned by Ms. ZHAO Yu, Ms. ZHAO Yu is deemed
to be interested in these Shares.

These Shares were held by Harbour Faith Enterprises Limited. As
Harbour Faith Enterprises Limited is wholly-owned by Ms. CHAN
Sin Wa Carrie, Ms. CHAN Sin Wa Carrie is deemed to be interested
in these Shares.

These shares were held by Canopy Capital Limited. Canopy
Capital Limited is a wholly owned by Harker Hall Capital Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Leap Gain Limited, which is in turn
wholly owned by Oneworld Legend Limited. As Oneworld Legend
Limited is wholly owned by Mr. WANG Keven Dun, Mr. WANG
Keven Dun is deemed to be interested in these Shares.

(L) represents long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, so far as the
Directors are aware, no other person (except the Directors and chief
executive) or corporation had 5% or more interests or short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares which were recorded in the register
required to be maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.
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Restricted Share Unit Scheme
Purposes

The restricted share unit scheme of the Company (the “RSU Scheme”)
was approved and adopted by the Shareholders on January 25, 2019
(the “Adoption Date”). The purpose of the RSU Scheme is to further
improve corporate governance, enhance the sense of responsibility and
sense of mission of the Company’s management team and to promote
healthy development and sustainability of the Company so as to ensure
that the Company’s growth objective will be achieved by providing
certain individuals with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the
Company.

Participants in the RSU Scheme

The Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and the employees of the Group or any other person as
determined by the Board who the Board considers, in its absolute
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

Maximum Number of Shares under the RSU Scheme

The total number of Shares in respect of which RSUs may be granted
pursuant to the RSU Scheme and any other share-based incentive
schemes of the Company is 5 percent of the Shares in issue as at the
Adoption Date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). At any time during the
Term (as defined below), the maximum aggregate number of Shares that
may underlie the RSUs granted pursuant to the RSU Scheme shall be
the Scheme Mandate Limit minus (a) the maximum aggregate number
of Shares underlying the RSUs already granted pursuant to the RSU
Scheme; and (b) the maximum aggregate number of Shares that may
be issued and/or transferred upon the vesting or exercise of any awards
already granted pursuant to any other equity-based incentive plans of the
Company.

As at the date of this annual report, no Shares are held by the trustee
of the RSU Scheme (the “Trustee”) for future grant of RSUs. As the RSU
Scheme expired in February 2024, the total number of shares available
for issue as at the date of this annual report in connection with the RSU
Scheme is nil.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant
The number of Shares entitled by a participant is subject to such terms,

conditions and undertakings as the Board considers, in its sole and
absolute discretion, appropriate.
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Vesting

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, determine the vesting terms
and conditions and the vesting schedule.

Upon the vesting of RSUs on the vesting date, the Company shall, in
its absolute discretion, satisfy such RSUs either by: (a) directing and
procuring the Trustee to transfer to the grantee the relevant number of
Shares credited as fully paid; or (b) paying or procuring the payment of a
cash payment to the grantee, and (c) to the extent that the grantee has
any Shares purchased by the Trustee (the “Purchased Shares”) which
were held by the Trustee, directing and procuring the Trustee to transfer
such Purchased Shares to the grantee and remit to the grantee any
distributions received by the Trustee in respect of Purchased Shares held
on trust by it (if any).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company, the Trustee or any
grantee would or might be prohibited from dealing in the Shares by the
Listing Rules or by any other applicable laws, regulations or rules within
the period specified above, the date on which the relevant Shares shall
be transferred to the grantee shall occur as soon as possible after the
date when such dealing is permitted by the Listing Rules or by any other
applicable laws, regulations or rules.

Duration
Unless terminated earlier in accordance with the RSU Scheme Rules, the
RSU Scheme will be valid and effective for a period commencing from the

Adoption Date and expiring on the fifth anniversary thereof (the “Term”).
The RSU Scheme ended in February 2024.

Details of RSUs Granted under the RSU Scheme

The Company has not granted any RSUs to the Participants pursuant to
the RSU Scheme since the Adoption Date.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities
During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company.
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Interests of Directors in Competing Business

During the Reporting period, so far as the Directors were aware, none of
the Directors nor their respective close associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) had any direct or indirect interests in any businesses that
constitutes or may constitute a competing business of the Company.

Controlling Shareholders and Their Pledge of
Shares

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have any controlling
shareholders.

Connected Transaction
Issue of new shares under specific mandate

On 9 July 2023, the Company and Canopy Capital Limited (being the
“Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Subscriber conditionally agreed
to subscribe and the Company conditionally agreed to allot and
issue a total of 845,456,130 new Shares (the “Subscription Shares”).
at the subscription price of HK$0.083 per Subscription Share. The
Company intended to use the net proceeds to develop and expand
overseas business and as the general working capital of the Group. The
Subscription Shares represent approximately 20.0% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the Subscription Agreement and
approximately 16.7% of the total issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged by the allotment and issue of the Subscription Shares.

As the Subscriber is indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. WANG Keven Dun, an
executive Director and a vice president of the Company, the Subscriber
is an associate of Mr. WANG Keven Dun and a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
Subscription constituted a connected transaction of the Company and
was subject to the reporting, announcement, circular and independent
Shareholder’s approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The subscription was approved by the Shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 21 August 2023 and completed
on 25 August 2023. For more details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 9 July 2023 and the circular of the Company
dated 4 August 2023.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

Framework Finished Products and Raw Materials Purchase
Agreement

The Company entered into a framework finished products and raw
materials purchase agreement on 10 December 2018 with ETIC (the
“ETIC Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Company agreed
to purchase finished products and raw materials including but not limited
to LED chips, LED power sources and LED lamp products from ETIC
and its subsidiaries on a non-exclusive basis. As ETIC is a substantial
shareholder of the Company, ETIC and its subsidiaries are connected
persons of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules), and
the transactions between ETIC and its subsidiaries and the Company
constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.
The quality, quantity and technical standards of the products delivered by
ETIC and its subsidiaries must meet the Company’s standards as set out
in the sub-contract for each purchase order. The prices charged by ETIC
and its subsidiaries will be agreed following arm’s length negotiations
between the parties with reference to the prevailing market price. The
term of the framework agreement is three years commencing on 1
January 2019. The Company entered into such purchase agreement
given the Group has a continuous demand for the relevant finished
products and raw materials in the next three years and the fees
charged by ETIC and its subsidiaries are competitive (please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2018 for details). In view
of the better-than-expected demand for ETIC’s products, the Company
expected that the original annual cap for the transactions under the ETIC
Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019 will not be
sufficient to meet the Company’s requirements. Accordingly, the Board
approved to revise upward the annual cap for the transactions under the
ETIC Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019 (please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 21 August 2019 for details).

As the ETIC Purchase Agreement entered between the Company and
ETIC expired on 31 December 2021 and the Company intends to
continue carrying out certain transactions thereunder in the ordinary and
usual course of business with ETIC, the Company entered into a renewed
framework finished products and raw materials purchase agreement
with ETIC (the “New ETIC Purchase Agreement”) on 26 November 2021,
which the Company agreed to purchase finished products and raw
materials including but not limited to LED chips, LED power sources and
LED lamp products from ETIC and its subsidiaries on a non-exclusive
basis. The New ETIC Purchase Agreement has a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2022 (please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 26 November 2021 for details).
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The maximum aggregate annual amount payable by us to ETIC and its
subsidiaries under the New ETIC Purchase Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 is US$18,283,000. During the Reporting Period, the
actual amount paid by us to ETIC and its subsidiaries under the New
ETIC Purchase Agreement was approximately US$2,956,000 which did
not exceed the annual cap.

ETIC Sales Agreement

The Company entered into a framework sales agreement (the “ETIC Sales
Agreement”) on 10 December 2018 with ETIC, pursuant to which, the
Company agreed to sell finished products and raw materials including
but not limited to LED luminaire products to ETIC and its associates
on a non-exclusive basis. As ETIC is a substantial shareholder of
the Company, ETIC and its associates are connected persons of the
Company (as defined under the Listing Rules), and the transactions
between ETIC and its associates and the Company constitute connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules. The quality, quantity
and technical standards of the products delivered by the Group must
meet ETIC and its associates’ standards as set out in the sub-contract
for each sales order. The prices charged by the Group will be agreed
following arm’s length negotiations between the parties with reference to
the prevailing market price. The term of the framework agreement is three
years commencing on 1 January 2019. The Company entered into such
sales agreement given the continued demand for such finished products
and raw materials by ETIC and its associates in the next three years and
the fees paid/payable by ETIC and its associates are competitive (please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2018 for
details).

As the ETIC Sale Agreement entered between the Company and ETIC
expired on 31 December 2021 and the Company intends to continue
carrying out certain transactions thereunder in the ordinary and usual
course of business with ETIC, the Company entered into a renewed
framework sales agreement (the “New ETIC Sales Agreement”) with
ETIC on 26 November 2021, which the Company agreed to sell finished
products and raw materials including but not limited to LED luminaire
products to ETIC and its associates on a non-exclusive basis. The New
ETIC Sale Agreement has a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2022 (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 26
November 2021 for details).

The maximum aggregate annual amount receivable by us from ETIC and
its subsidiaries under the New ETIC Sales Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 is US$3,968,000. During the Reporting Period, the
actual amount received by us from ETIC and its subsidiaries under the
New ETIC Sales Agreement was US$228,000 which did not exceed the
annual cap.
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The Lease Agreement |

The Company entered into a lease agreement on 10 December 2018 with
ETIC, pursuant to which the Group agrees to lease certain properties
from ETIC and its associates (the “Lease Agreement 1”). As ETIC is a
substantial shareholder of the Company, ETIC and its associates are
connected persons of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules),
and the transactions between ETIC and its associates and the Company
constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.
Details of each properties to be leased will be set out in the sub-contract
for each lease. The rent charged by ETIC and its associates will be
agreed following arm’s length negotiations between the parties with
reference to the prevailing market price. The term of the Lease Agreement
| is three years commencing on 1 January 2019. The Company decided
to enter into the Lease Agreement | given the Group has a continuous
demand for the relevant properties in the next three years and the rent
charged by ETIC and its associates are competitive (please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2018 for details).

As the Lease Agreement | entered between the Company and ETIC
expired on 31 December 2021 and the Company intends to continue
carrying out certain transactions thereunder in the ordinary and usual
course of business with ETIC, the Company entered into a renewed
lease agreement with ETIC, pursuant to which the Group agrees to
lease certain properties from ETIC and its associates (the “New Lease
Agreement 1”). The New Lease Agreement | has a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2022 (please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 26 November 2021 for details).

The maximum aggregate annual amount payable by us to ETIC and
its subsidiaries under the New Lease Agreement | for the year ended
31 December 2023 is US$709,000. During the Reporting Period, no
transactions occurred under the New Lease Agreement I.

The Lease Agreement Il

The Company entered into a lease agreement on 10 December 2018 with
ETIC, pursuant to which the Group agrees to lease certain properties
to ETIC and its associates (the “Lease Agreement II”). As ETIC is a
substantial shareholder of the Company, ETIC and its associates are
connected persons of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules),
and the transactions between ETIC and its associates and the Company
constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.
Details of each properties to be leased will be set out in the sub-contract
for each lease. The rent charged by the Group will be agreed following
arm’s length negotiations between the parties with reference to the
prevailing market price. The term of the Lease Agreement Il is three years
commencing on 1 January 2019. The Company entered into the Lease
Agreement |l given ETIC and its associates have a continuous demand
for such properties in the next three years and the rent paid/payable by
ETIC and its associates are competitive (please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 10 December 2018 for details).
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As the Lease Agreement Il entered between the Company and ETIC
expired on 31 December 2021 and the Company intends to continue
carrying out certain transactions thereunder in the ordinary and usual
course of business with ETIC, the Company entered into a renewed
lease agreement with ETIC, pursuant to which the Group agrees to lease
certain properties to ETIC and its associates (the “New Lease Agreement
I1”). The New Lease Agreement Il has a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2022 (please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 26 November 2021 for details).

The maximum aggregate annual amount payable by us to ETIC and
its subsidiaries under the New Lease Agreement Il for the year ended
31 December 2023 is US$709,000. During the Reporting Period, no
transactions occurred under the New Lease Agreement Il.

Confirmation on Continuing Connected Transactions

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the above continuing
connected transactions have been reviewed by the independent non-
executive Directors, who confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iif) according to relevant agreements governing them on terms that
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s the
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued a letter to the Board containing a conclusion that the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group above have no non-
compliance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The auditor’s letter has
confirmed that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(ii) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group as stated in this annual report;
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(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the continuing connected
transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded their respective annual caps for the financial year
ended 31 December 2023 set out in the previous announcements
of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered into
certain transactions with “related parties” as defined under the applicable
accounting standards, which include transactions that constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Group for which the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied
with. Details of the material related party transactions are disclosed in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Changes of Directors and Changes in Their
Information

From 1 January 2023 and up to the date of this report, the changes of

Directors and Board committees, and changes in the Directors’ personal

information are as follows:

Mr. WANG Donglei

3 Mr. WANG Donglei’s director’'s fee has been revised to
HK$240,000 with effect from 1 April 2024.

Ms. CHAN Kim Yung, Eva

3 Ms. CHAN Kim Yung, Eva’s director’'s fee has been revised to
HK$240,000 with effect from 1 April 2024.

Mr. XIAO Yu

. Mr. XIAO Yu'’s director’s fee has been revised to HK$240,000 with
effect from 1 April 2024.

Mr. WANG Keven Dun

3 Mr. WANG Keven Dun’s director’'s fee has been revised to
HK$240,000 per annum with effect from 1 April 2024.

Mr. YE Yong

3 Mr. YE Yong'’s director’s fee has been revised to HK$240,000 with
effect from 1 April 2024.
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Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway

o Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Intchains Group Limited (the shares
of which are listed on NASDAQ Stock Exchange (stock code:
ICG)) on 15 March 2023. He resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Yashili International Holdings Ltd (the listing
of the shares on the Stock Exchange being withdrawn on 5 July
2023) and Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (the shares of which
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2611)) with effect from 5 July 2023 and 30 November 2023
respectively. He retired as an independent non-executive director
of GOME Retail Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 493)) with
effect from 21 September 2023.

o Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway’s director’s fee has been revised to
HK$400,000 per annum with effect from 1 April 2024.

Mr. WANG Xuexian

o Mr. WANG Xuexian’s director’s fee has been revised to
HK$240,000 per annum with effect from 1 April 2024.

Mr. CHEN Hong

. Mr. CHEN Hong'’s director’s fee has been revised to HK$240,000
per annum with effect from 1 April 2024.

Ms. CAO Qin

o Ms. CAO Qin resigned as an executive Director with effect from
29 December 2023 in order to devote more time to pursue her

other business commitments.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information that should be
disclosed under rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Disclosures Pursuant to Rules 13.21 and 13.22 of
the Listing Rules

The Board is not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rules 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing
Rules.
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Employees

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had approximately 1,967 employees
in total (31 December 2022: 2,246). The Group regularly reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees according to the relevant
market practice and individual performance of the employees. In addition
to basic salary, employees are entitled to other benefits including social
insurance contributions, employee provident fund schemes, discretionary
incentive and share option schemes.

Employee Training

The Group regards training management as a part of its daily operations,
and continuously improves its internal staff training system to better
help staff to improve their professional skills. According to the work
and training needs of each department, we formulate scientific and
reasonable employee training and development plans. In terms of training
forms, we combine classroom lectures with practical operations to
encourage employees to apply what they have learned. After the training,
the Group also conducts an effectiveness assessment to understand
the learning outcomes of employees. If the assessment result is not
satisfactory, we will improve the training method or reorganize the training
according to the situation.

Remuneration Policy

The Group’s remuneration policy is to compensate our employees based
on their performance, qualifications and our results of operations.

The emoluments of our Directors and senior management are determined
by our Remuneration Committee with reference to our results of
operations, their individual performance and the comparable market
statistics.

The Company was not aware of any arrangement under which a
Director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments. Details of
the remuneration of the Directors and the Group’s five highest-paid
individuals during the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 and note
15 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 237 to 241 of this
annual report, respectively.
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Housing Fund and Pension Scheme

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Group’s
subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to participate in the
housing fund and the contribution pension scheme operated by local
governments. Under these schemes, the Group is required to pay to
the contribution pension scheme based on a certain percentage of the
remuneration of its employees. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the housing fund and pension scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. Contributions made under the housing
fund and pension scheme are charged in the statements of profit or loss
as incurred.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the Scheme.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement scheme
organised by the relevant local government authorities in the United
States, Japan and Vietnam etc.. Certain employees of the Group eligible
for participating in the retirement schemes are entitled to retirement
benefits from the scheme. The Group is required to make contributions
to the retirement scheme up to the time of the retirement of the eligible
employees, excluding those employees who resign before retirement, at a
percentage that is specified by the local government authorities.

The Company may not utilise any forfeited contributions in order to make
fewer contributions than the current amounts.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s contributions to the
housing fund and pension scheme from continuing operations were
US$3,062,000. Details of the Group’s contributions to the housing
fund and pension scheme are set out in note 13 on page 236 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Charitable Donations

The Group has not made any charitable donation of not less than
HK$10,000 during the Reporting Period.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Reporting Period, the revenue from the sales of goods or
rendering of services to our largest customer and top five customers
accounted for 27.7% and 80.1% of the Group’s total revenue
respectively; and the purchases of goods and services from our largest
supplier and top five suppliers accounted for 5.3% and 14.8% of the
Group’s total purchases respectively.

During the Reporting Period, one of our top 5 suppliers is controlled by a
substantial shareholder of the Company, from which the Group purchased
finished products and raw materials. Please refer to certain continuing
connected transactions as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this report for details. Save as disclosed
above, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of
the Company) had, at any time during the Reporting Period, a beneficial
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers.

Compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance

During the Reporting Period, the Directors are of the opinion that the
Company had fully complied with the principles and codes provisions set
out in the CG Code.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific enquiry has been
made to all Directors, and all of them have confirmed that they have
complied with all relevant requirements as set out in the Model Code
during the Reporting Period.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the audited

consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.
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Auditor

The figures in respect of the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the related notes thereto
for the year ended 31 December 2023 as set out in this annual report
have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, to the amounts set out
in the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year.

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as our auditor will
be submitted for Shareholders’ approval at forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On 9 October 2020, BDO Limited resigned as the auditor of the
Company. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was then appointed as the external
auditor of the Company. Save as disclosed above, there have been no
other changes of independent auditor during the preceding three years.

By order of the Board
Chairman
WANG Donglei

Hong Kong
28 March 2024
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The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Corporate Culture

The Board believes that corporate culture underpins the long-term
business, economic success and sustainable growth of the Group. A
strong culture enables the Company to deliver long-term sustainable
performance and fulfil its role as a responsible corporate citizen. The
Company is committed to developing a positive and progressive culture
that is built on its Vision, Mission and Values.

During 2023, the Company continued to strengthen its cultural framework
by focusing on the following:

. Vision: To be a champion of sustainable lighting for the world

. Mission: To illuminate the world using sustainable, innovative, and
beautifully-designed LED lighting solutions.

. Values: Customer Obsession
Radical Candor
Practical Innovation
Diversity and Inclusion

The Board sets and promotes corporate culture and expects and
requires all employees to reinforce. All of our new employees are required
to attend orientation and training programs so that they may better
understand our corporate culture, structure and policies, learn relevant
laws and regulations, and raise their quality awareness. In addition, from
time to time, the Company will invite external experts to provide training
to our management personnel to improve their relevant knowledge and
management skKills.

The Board considers that the corporate culture and the purpose, values
and strategy of the Group are aligned.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance
standards.

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its
business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and
accountability.

The Board is of the opinion that, during the Reporting Period, the
Company had complied with the principles and code provisions as set
out in the CG Code.

Model Code For Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code which was set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and all of them have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code for securities transactions by the relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Company (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”).

The Company is not aware of any incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the relevant employees.
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Board of Directors

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly reviews the contribution required from a
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Independence

The Company recognizes that Board independence is key to good
corporate governance. The Company has put in place effective
mechanisms that underpin an independent Board with independent
views. The current composition of the Board, comprising more than one
third of the independent non-executive Directors and the members of
the Audit Committee are all independent non-executive Directors which
comply with the independence requirements under the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee are all chaired by
independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration of independent
non-executive Directors are subject to a regular review to maintain
competitiveness and commensurate with their responsibilities and
workload. The independence of each independent non-executive Director
is assessed upon his/her appointment and annually.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at the
Board meetings and abstain from voting, where appropriate. External
independent professional advice is available to all Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, whenever deemed necessary. The
independent non-executive Directors have consistently demonstrated
strong commitment and the ability to devote sufficient time to discharge
their responsibilities at the Board.

The Company has also established channels through formal and informal
means whereby independent non-executive Directors can express
their views in an open manner, and in a confidential manner, should
circumstances requires.

On the basis of the above measures that have been put into place, the
Board is of the view that the above mechanism was effective in ensuring
that independent views and input were available to the Board throughout
2023.
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Board Composition

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the

Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors WANG Donglei (Chairman and chief
technology officer)

CHAN Kim Yung, Eva (Vice chairman and
chief executive officer)

XIAO Yu

CAO Qin (resigned on 29 December 2023)

WANG Keven Dun

Non-executive Director YE Yong

Independent LEE Kong Wai, Conway
Non-executive WANG Xuexian
Directors CHEN Hong

The biographical information of the existing Directors is set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 34 to 47 of
this annual report.

The relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the respective
Director’s biography under the section “Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 34 to 47 of this annual report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision C.2.1 of Part 2 of CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. WANG Donglei serves as the chairman
of the Company and Ms. CHAN Kim Yung, Eva serves as the chief
executive officer of the Company. The Company had fully complied with
the Code Provision C.2.1 as set out in Part 2 of CG Code.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Rule 3.10(1) and 3.10A of Listing Rules required every board of directors
of a listed issuer must including at least three independent non-executive
directors and an issuer must appoint independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the board. On 29 December 2023, Ms.
CAO Qin resigned as an executive Director. Following her resignation,
the Board comprises eight Directors, and three of whom are independent
non-executive Directors. The Board met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board. One of
them is possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway,
Mr. WANG Xuexian, Mr. CHEN Hong in respect of their independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors were independent from their respective date of appointment to
31 December 2023.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision B.2.2 of Part 2 of the CG Code states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
Shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment
and succession planning of Directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years with effect from their respective
date of appointment unless terminated by not less than three months’
written notice served by either the executive Directors or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a term
of three years with effect from their respective date of appointment unless
terminated by not less than three months’ written notice served by either
the non-executive Directors/independent non-executive Directors or the
Company.

The above appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and
rotation of Directors under the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by Shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment, any new Director appointed as an addition to the Board
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders at the next
following annual general meeting after appointment.

In accordance with Article 84(1) and (2) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring director
shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a director
throughout the meeting at which he/she retires. The directors to retire
by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number of
directors to retire by rotation) any director who wishes to retire and not
to offer himself/herself for re-election. Any further directors so to retire
shall be those of the directors subject to retirement by rotation who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment and so
that as between persons who became or were last re-elected directors
on the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. Accordingly, Mr. WANG Keven Dun,
Mr. WANG Xuexian, and Mr. CHEN Hong will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. None of the Directors
who is proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting or any other Directors has a service contract with us that is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All' Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement on
corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from
each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company.

Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of the Company
are delegated to the chief executive officer and the senior management.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in

order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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Every newly appointed Director will receive a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and reading material
on relevant topics would be provided to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.

The records of continuous professional development relating to director’s
duties, regulatory requirements and business development that have
been received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
summarised as follows:

Name of Directors
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EFRSEBANTESESRRE HRE
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Type of Training (Note1)
1ENEER (Hrt)

BEEHS
Executive Directors BITES
WANG Donglei FLE
CHAN Kim Yung, Eva ek 1/ T8
XIAO Yu M
CAO Qin (Note 2) B= (Wat2)
WANG Keven Dun Ti5
Non-executive Director ERITES
YE Yong L=
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
LEE Kong Wai, Conway FHEE
WANG Xuexian FEE
CHEN Hong BER 3
Notes:
1. Types of Training
A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to,
briefings, seminars, conferences and workshops
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals,
magazines and relevant publications
2. Ms. CAO Qin resigned as an executive Director on 29 December
2023.
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EXERHRS

Board Committees

The Board has established the following committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Strategy and Planning Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and
are available to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are independent non-executive
Directors.

Audit Committee

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include maintaining relationship with the auditor of the Group,
reviewing financial information of the Group, supervising the financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control system of the
Group, and the duties of corporate governance delegated by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held two meetings
to review the annual financial results and reports for the year ended 31
December 2022, the interim results and reports for the period ended
30 June 2023 and to review significant issues on the financial reporting,
operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and internal audit function,
anti-corruption policy and whistleblowing policy, re-appointment of
external auditor and engagement of non-audit services and relevant
scope of works connected transactions and arrangements for employees
to raise concerns about possible improprieties, as well as reviewing the
corporate governance compliance.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee also met the external
auditor twice.

Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules requires the Audit Committee to comprise
a minimum of three members with independent non-executive Directors
in majority and at least one member with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
composition requirement of the Audit Committee under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.
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As of the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee consists of
three members, namely, Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, Mr. WANG Xuexian
and Mr. CHEN Hong, and all of them are independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, with appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting or related finance management expertise, is
the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary
functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management, and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model set out in item (i)
under the Code Provision E.1.2(c) of Part 2 of the CG Code), i.e.,
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee met two
times to review and make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the performance
and the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior
management and review the terms of executive Directors’ service
contracts and other related matters during the Reporting Period.

As of the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
consists of three members, namely, Ms. CHAN Kim Yung, Eva, the
executive Director, Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, the independent non-
executive Director and Mr. WANG Xuexian, the independent non-
executive Director, respectively. Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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In addition to the information about remuneration disclosed in note
14 and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
237 to 241 of this annual report, the remuneration of the other senior
management of the Company falls in the following bands:

PRI A ERF27TEHEF241EMNE ST
WRME1AF M 5T 15 B RYF AN E K 4b >
KATEMSHREEAENHFNEREU
TAERI A

Number of Members
of Senior Management

SREERAK
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000% 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 47T £ 1,500,000/ 75 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7t £2,000,0007% 75 3

Nomination Committee

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria
as set out in the Director Nomination Policy below that are necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee met two times
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, to consider
the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election at the
annual general meeting and other related matters. The Nomination
Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board is maintained.
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Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules requires an issuer to establish a
Nomination Committee chaired by the chairman of the board or an
independent non-executive Director and comprises a majority of
independent non-executive Directors. During the Reporting Period,
the Company has complied with the composition requirement of the
Nomination Committee under Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules.

As of the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee consists
of three members, namely, Mr. WANG Donglei, the executive Director
and the chairman of the Company, Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway,
the independent non-executive Director and Mr. CHEN Hong, the
independent non-executive Director, respectively. Mr. WANG Donglei is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the
Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to ensure that
the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation to reviewing
and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
is committed to diversity at all levels and will consider a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional
and industry experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and is
also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at all
levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately structured so that a
diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives.
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As at the date of this annual report, our Board consists of one female
member and seven male members and one in the age group of 30-40;
five in the age group of 50-60; two in the age group of 61-70. The Board
has an appropriate mix of skills, experience and diversity that are relevant
to the Company’s strategy, governance and business, five of the Directors
are experienced in leadership and strategy, one Director is an accounting
professionals and two Directors are legal professionals.

The Board targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation, with the ultimate goal of achieving gender balance.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board is
sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable objectives.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy annually to
ensure its effectiveness.

Workforce Diversity

The gender ratio in the workforce (including senior management) for the
year ended December 31, 2023 is 0.60:1. The Group will aim to achieve
the gender diversity in workforce. For further details of gender ratio,
please refer to the disclosure in the Environment, Social and Governance
report.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors and
aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity
of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.
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The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

. Character and integrity;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

. Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service;

o Requirements of independent non-executive Directors on the
Board and independence of the proposed independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors
at general meetings.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Director Nomination Policy
annually to ensure its effectiveness.

Strategy and Planning Committee

The primary function of the Strategy and Planning Committee is to
propose and formulate the strategic development plan of the Company
for the Board’s consideration.

As of the date of this annual report, the Strategy and Planning Committee
consists of five members, namely, Mr. WANG Donglei, the executive
Director, Mr. XIAO Yu, the executive Director, Ms. CHAN Kim Yung, Eva,
the executive Director, Mr. WANG Keven Dun, the executive Director and
Mr. WANG Xuexian, the independent non-executive Director, respectively.
Mr. WANG Donglei is the chairman of the Strategy and Planning
Committee. During the Reporting Period, no meeting was convened by
the Strategy and Planning Committee.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has delegated the responsibility for performing the functions
set out in the Code Provision A.2.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code to the Audit
Committee.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Employee Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Attendance Records of Directors

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic means
of communication, of a majority of Directors.

During the Reporting Period, the Company held six Board meetings in
total. The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the Reporting Period is set out in the table below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/ ERBTRY
Strategy and
Planning
Audit Remuneration Nomination Committee General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ERE Meeting
Name of Directors EEiy EXx® EK%ZBEY FHZeg Re%Eg® RIZEg BRRAE
WANG Donglei I%E 6/6 2/2 N/A R B 1/4
CHAN Kim Yong, Eva [ 6/6 2/2 N/A REF 3/4
XIAO Yu HF 6/6 N/A R 4/4
CAO Qin (Note 1) &2 (it1) 6/6 N/A R 4/4
WANG Keven Dun T 6/6 N/A R B 3/4
YE Yong &5 6/6 N/A RER 3/4
LEE Kong Wai, Conway TEE 6/6 2/2 2/2 22 NATBER 4/4
WANG Xuexian IZ% 6/6 2/2 2/2 N/A RBF 2/4
CHEN Hong Bsh 6/6 2/2 2/2 N/A RiEF 3/4
Note: Wt -
1 Ms. CAO Qin resigned as an executive Director on 29 December 1. HE+BER2023F 1285290 B EITE

2023 in order to devote more time to pursue her other business

commitments.
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During the Reporting Period, no Board or Committee meeting was
attended by a Director’s alternate.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held one meeting
with independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company convened one annual general
meeting on 16 June 2023 and three extraordinary general meetings on 21
August 2023, 25 October 2023 and 29 November 2023 respectively.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board confirms its responsibilities for the risk management and
internal control of the Group and it shall examine its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee to safeguard the assets and investment of the
Group as well as the interests of Shareholders. The risk management and
internal control system aims at the management but not the elimination of
risks of failure to attain the business target, and only provides reasonable
but not absolute guarantee for not having material misstatements or
losses.

Characteristics of the risk management and internal control
system of the Company, and the program for reviewing the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system:

The Board shall be responsible for the risk management and internal
control system, continue to inspect its effectiveness and warrant that the
Group shall establish and maintain the effective risk management and
internal control system; inspect the risk management and internal control
system of the Group at least once a year; supervise the management
in respect of the design, implementation and supervision of the risk
management and internal control system.

The Audit Committee shall be responsible for the inspection of the
risk management and internal control system of the Company; the
assessment for the outcome of the evaluating and auditing the risk
management and internal control system; the supervision and promotion
of rectifying the defects of the risk management and internal control;
the discussion with the management over the risk management and
internal control system in order to ensure that the management has
performed its duties to set up the effective system; at the same time,
proactively or upon the appointment by the Board, the research in
respect of the material investigation outcome regarding the matters of
the risk management and internal control system and the response of the
management for the outcome of the investigation.
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The management shall undertake the duties of risk management and
internal control; formulate the appropriate strategy in response to the
risk; conduct the risk alert in advance and promptly issue the risk
management report; at the same time, be responsible for evaluating the
internal control; identify the defects of the internal control and formulate
the rectification scheme; inform the Board and the Audit Committee of
the relevant information.

Programs for ldentifying, Assessing and Managing the
Material Risk:

Risk identification: to determine the standards for measuring the risk;
identify the potential risk which may affect the Group.

Risk assessment: to assess the identified risk and classify the level of the
risk.

Risk response: to select the strategy in response to the level of the
risk for the risk control department to follow up whether the strategy in
response is effective; at the same time, formulate the relevant policy in
response to avoid the recurrence of the risk or minimise the relevant risk.

Risk supervision: to continue the regular inspection of the relevant risk;
promptly revise the risk management and internal control procedure;
ensure that the relevant controlling procedure is appropriate and effective;
provide the management and the Board with the regular report on the
outcome of risk supervision.

The Company has set up the internal audit and risk control department to
regularly monitor and assess the internal risk and control system of each
department in order to determine the risk which may affect the business
and other aspects of the Group (including key operational and financial
processes, regulatory compliance and information safety).

With the support from the Audit Committee, the Board, having examined
the risk management and internal control system for the year as of 31
December 2023 (including the financial, operational and compliance
control) by means of the risk assessment report and the internal audit
report, is of the opinion that such systems are effective and adequate.
The annual examination has also covered the adequacy of resources,
employees’ qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.

The Company has set up the program for the purpose of issue-reporting,
so as to encourage the employees of the Company to express their
concerns on the premise of confidentiality in respect of the potential
misconduct concerning the financial report, the internal control or other
matters of the Company.
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As for the surveillance and disclosure of the inside information, the
Company has adopted the policy for the disclosure of inside information,
with the aim to ensure that the internal personnel shall comply with
the requirements for confidentiality and perform the responsibility for
the disclosure of inside information. The policy has expressly set forth
the identification of inside information and the decision-making tree for
taking the required action. The employees and other relevant parties shall
maintain strict confidentiality in respect of the inside information. In the
event of disclosing the inside information, it shall be made on the fair, true
and effective basis.

Anti-Corruption Policy

The Company does not tolerate any form of bribery, whether direct
or indirect, by, or of, its Directors, officers, employees, agents or
consultants or any persons or companies acting for it or on its behalf. The
Company adopts the anti-corruption policy in assisting the employees in
recognising circumstances which may lead to or give the appearance of
being involved in corruption or unethical business conduct, so as to avoid
such conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to promptly seek guidance
if necessary.

The anti-corruption policy will be reviewed on a regular basis, any
convicted cases will be reported to the Audit Committee.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company expects and encourages employees of the Group and
those who deal with the Group (e.g. suppliers, customers, creditors
and debtors) to report to the Company, in confidence, any suspected
impropriety, misconduct or malpractice concerning the Group. The
Company adopts the whistleblowing policy to provide reporting channels
and guidance on reporting possible improprieties and reassurance to
whistleblowers of the protection that the Group will extend to them in the
formal system.

The whistleblowing policy will be reviewed on a regular basis, any
suspected cases will be reported to the Audit Committee.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 177 to 183 of this
annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration
The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of the

Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit and non-audit
services for the Reporting Period is set out below:

EREBUZBMERERGESMHRE
WERBEENERFNEFRFEI77TEES
183ERBIUZBMMRERN -

A% 25 Bl Y <2
EQABRBEEENBRRIFBLRE X
IFAABDIBRBTEDH « MERS T
SHETITRFEMIIM T :

Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category RFEIER gt ENER
US$000
FEw
Audit Services: BIZERT

- mainly related to annual audit —FE N R EEE 550

Non-audit Services: JEBIZRT :
— mainly related to interim and other review —FE N PR EMER 138
— mainly related to tax consultancy services —FENRREBHART 444
1,132

Company Secretary

Ms. KWOK Siu Ying Sarah has been appointed as the company secretary
of the Company.

Ms. Kwok is a manager of corporate services of Vistra Corporate
Services (HK) Limited, a professional services provider specializing in
company secretarial services.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary on corporate governance and board practices and matters.
Mr. NG Hon Lun, the chief financial officer of the Company has been
designated as the primary contact person at the Company for working
and communicating with Ms. Kwok Siu Ying Sarah on the Company’s
corporate governance and secretarial and administrative matters.

During the Reporting Period, Ms. Kwok Siu Ying Sarah has undertaken

not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Director. Pursuant to the Listing Rules,
all resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted
on by a show of hands, and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) may be convened by the
Board upon requisition of one or more Shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, while all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The requisitionist(s) must state the objects clearly in the requisition,
sign the requisition and deposit the same to the Board or the company
secretary or the primary contact person of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any one
or more Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to add resolutions to the agenda of a general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send

written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their requisitions, proposed resolutions for the
general meeting or enquiries to the Board as mentioned above to the
primary contact person of the Company as set out below:

Name:
Address:

The Chairman of NVC International Holdings Limited

Unit 705, 7/F., Building 20E, Phase 3, Hong Kong Science Park,
Pak Shek Kok, New Territories, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2375 1385

Email: ir@nvc-international.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of
information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to make the
informed investment decisions. The Company endeavours to maintain
an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meetings and other general meetings. The chairman of the Board
as well as chairman of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committees will make themselves available at the annual
general meetings to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy
to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.nvc-international.com, where information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for
public access.
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The Company has also established a range of communication channels
between itself and its Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.
These include (i) the publication of interim and annual reports and/
or circulars, notices, and other announcements; (i) the annual general
meeting or extraordinary general meeting providing a forum for
Shareholders to raise comments and exchanging views with the Board;
(iii) the provision of updated and key information of the Group available
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website; (iv)
the Company’s website offering communication channel between the
Company and its stakeholders; (v) the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong serving the Shareholders in respect of all share registration matters;
and (vi) convening investor meeting and/or analyst briefings, which are led
by our executive Directors with existing and potential investors.

Having considered the multiple channels of communication and
shareholders engagement conducted by the Group during the year, the
Board is satisfied that the shareholders communication policy has been
properly implemented during 2023 and is effective.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends
pursuant to Code Provision F.1.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code. In
recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital requirements and
future growth as well as its Shareholder value. The Company intends to
distribute no less than 30% of its annual net profits as dividends to its
Shareholders, subject to the conditions and factors as set out below.

The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
Shareholders of the Company, subject to the Memorandum and Articles
of the Association of the Company and all applicable laws and regulations
and the factors set out below. The Board shall also take into account
the following factors of the Group when considering the declaration and
payment of dividends, including financial results, cash flow situation,
business conditions and strategies, future operations and earnings,
capital requirements and expenditure plans, interests of Shareholders,
any restrictions on payment of dividends and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

There is no arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividend.
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Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and
the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may be proposed
and/or declared by the Board for a financial year or period as interim
dividend, final dividend, special dividend and any distribution of net profits
that the Board may deem appropriate. Any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval. The Company may declare
and pay dividends by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the
Board considers appropriate. Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited
and shall revert to the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to
time.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in constitutional documents of the Company during
the Reporting Period.

Going Concern
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that

cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

About the Report

This Report is the eighth Environmental, Social and Governance Report
published by NVC International Holdings Limited (the “Group” or “we”),
aiming to disclose the management methods and data performance
on environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) issues in 2023, so
as to deepen the understanding of various stakeholders of the Group’s
sustainable development strategies and measures. For information on the
Corporate Governance section, see pages 70 to 92 of the Annual Report.

Reporting Guideline and Principle

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) set out
in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”), the Global Reporting Initiative Sustainability Reporting
Standards and the actual situation of the Group. The contents and data
disclosed in this Report are based on the internal records and files of the
Group.

Materiality: The content and scope of the Report is based on
the communication with investors and other stakeholders and the
identification of the materiality of ESG issues. Please refer to the section
headed “Materiality Identification” in this Report for further details.

Quantitative: Information on the scope, assumptions and/or calculation
tools used for the covered KPIs are explained in this Report.

Consistency: Unless otherwise specified, the statistical methodology
used for the information disclosed in the Report are consistent.

Reporting Boundary and Reporting Period

The threshold in this Report’s boundary is set at companies in which we
have a stake exceeding 50%. The social performance data in the Report
cover the Guangdong Zhuhai headquarter office of NVC International
Holdings Limited, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base, Shanghai Qingpu Base,
Guangdong Zhuhai Base, Thailand Base and Vietnam NVC; and the
environmental performance data cover Zhejiang Jiangshan Base,
Shanghai Qingpu Base, Guangdong Zhuhai Base, Thailand Base and
Vietnam NVC. In light of strategy decision adjustments, the environmental
performance data and the social performance data in the Report does
not cover the Greater China Business Center and has included Thailand
Base. The Reporting Period is the financial year from 1 January 2023 to
31 December 2023.

Feedback

We are committed to continuously perfecting our ESG disclosures
and welcome your comments and suggestions on this report. Contact
information is as follows:

NVC International Holdings Limited
Address: Unit 705, 7/F., Building 20E, Phase 3, Hong Kong Science
Park, Pak Shek Kok, New Territories, Hong Kong

Email address: ir@nvc-international.com
Tel: (852) 3970 2238/3970 2237
Fax: (852) 2865 1638

Website: www.nvc-international.com
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Chairman’s Message
Dear Stakeholders,

In the past year, NVC International, as a leading company in the global
LED lighting industry, has actively advocated and implemented the
corporate mission of “Life As You Wish e B2 EW{IRFTEE", committed
to achieving a harmonious symbiosis between environmental, social,
and economic benefits, aiming to create a highly efficient global
manufacturing enterprise. Facing the challenges posed by the current
economic cycle, we firmly believe in the importance of high-quality
development to promote the progress of the circular economy and
enhance community well-being. We will continue to uphold a high sense
of responsibility and innovative vision for sustainable development and
actively explore a new era of global green economy, striving to become
the leader of sustainable development in the industry.

The Group adheres to the green operation and management model
by strictly abiding by various environmental protection regulations,
and builds and implements a sustainable environmental management
system to actively promote the progress of environmental protection. We
pay close attention to the international cutting-edge carbon emission
reduction technologies and are keenly aware of the opportunities and
challenges brought about by climate change. By continuously optimizing
our own strategic mechanisms, we strive to comprehensively improve
energy use efficiency, carbon reduction technology and management
effectiveness, and enhance our ability to resist climate change. We are
committed to scientifically planning energy use, practising conservation,
efficiently processing waste and promoting recycling to achieve
continuous improvement in energy efficiency.

Talents are the cornerstone of an enterprise. The Group values the
efforts made by its employees and cares about their personal growth
and development. We have built a rigorous and comprehensive system
to protect employees’ legal rights and interests and pay attention to their
physical and mental health and career potential. The Group is committed
to creating an equal, inclusive, diverse and friendly working environment,
and strictly prohibits any discriminatory behavior. Special emphasis is
placed on the protection of women'’s rights and interests, and a series of
policy documents reflecting humanistic care such as the the Management
Rules on the Protection of Female Workers have been specially
formulated. In terms of employees’ health and safety, the Group adheres
to the core policy of “safety first, prevention first, and full participation”
and strives to create a safe and healthy management environment.
With a complete and meticulous safety management system, covering
multiple dimensions such as environmental monitoring, occupational
health maintenance, safety production standards, occupational health
supervision and risk assessment mechanisms, we comprehensively
protect the life safety and physical and mental health of employees.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report
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The Group upholds the corporate values of “customer first, practical
innovation”. Through the customer-centered big data analysis library
and the whole-chain data drive, we can gain in-depth insights into
customer needs and build smarter, greener, more technological and
more targeted products and solutions, in a bid to continuously improve
the energy efficiency of products and reduce negative impacts on the
environment. With “environment, life and health” as the product research
and development theme in key areas, we continue to build a technology
research and development laboratory matrix to comprehensively enhance
technology research and development capabilities. Currently, the Group
has three independent core technologies, applied for more than 170
patents, obtained a number of authorised invention patents, and won
the “Design Excellence Award” in the China International Lighting Design
Competition many times.

The Group focuses on building an excellent supply chain management
system, actively implements sustainable development strategies, and
embeds them in the core of supply chain management. The Group strictly
sets supplier admission standards and optimises cooperation processes,
and uses a regular and systematic performance evaluation mechanism to
ensure that the supplier list is kept updated. For emerging partners, we
adhere to the principles of prudence and fairness, implement a detailed
and rigorous evaluation system, and set up a trial period to test whether
they meet the Group’s high standards.

Looking forward to the future, NVC International will adhere to the
business philosophy of humanistic philosophy and a high sense of
social responsibility as its brand vision, firmly fulfil its commitment to
sustainable development, work with all stakeholders to jointly respond
to challenges, and create sustained environmental, economic and social
value. On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to sincerely thank
all stakeholders for their long-term support and trust in NVC International.
We will continue to adhere to the corporate value of “social responsibility
is our responsibility” and integrate social responsibility into brand growth
to effectively achieve the goal of sustainable development and jointly
create a better and greener world.

WANG Donglei
Chairman

28 March 2024
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About NVC International

By adhering to the corporate vision “Life As You Wish e 324 & W {RFr
[}8”, NVC International closely integrates its brand mission with human
life scenes, provides full lighting solutions based on scene pre-design in
global overseas markets, and continues to provide high-quality lighting
products. Headquartered in Hong Kong, its regional sales offices are
located in Birmingham, UK, Chicago, USA, Stockholm, Sweden, Tokyo,
Japan, Singapore and Zhuhai, China. The Group has lighting operations
in 22 countries and regions around the world, with customers in more
than 30 countries and regions.

Since its establishment in 1998, NVC International has always adhered
to “people-oriented innovation” as the core of product research and
development. It currently has 5 wholly-owned advanced factories and 3
cutting-edge R&D centers in the Asia-Pacific region. Relying on industry-
leading manufacturing productivity and unremitting pursuit of expertise,
NVC International has become a high-profile and widely trusted brand
market pioneer in the world.

In addition to the international lighting business, by focusing on our
customers and their environment, we have been actively expanding
products in the two elements of “air” and “water” and related fields to
improve the life quality of consumers, to realise the vision of sustainable
development and to build a smarter, more environmentally friendly and
more technological living space.

“Light” is the driving force and core of the Group’s continuous
development. In the process of integrating and promoting overseas
lighting brands, we pay special attention to changes in the environment
and consumer needs. We deeply explore the unique characteristics of
the Group with a strategic vision, and carefully create a more diversified
and three-dimensional brand image through comprehensive upgrades in
multiple fields and channels. We embody the value of the brand in the
all-round experience we provide consumers, making the brand more
profound.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report
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The Group takes “technology-driven, user-oriented” as its core
development strategy and focuses on promoting the research and
development of lighting and non-lighting products. We made use of
D&H, a century-old high-quality luxury lighting brand in the UK, to create
a new Indoor Air Quality (“IAQ”) brand centered on the elements of
“water” and “air”. After successfully developing a number of non-lighting
technologies, including air disinfectors, water air disinfection technologies
and commercial fresh air disinfectors, the Group won the German iF
Industrie Forum Design award, which demonstrated the excellence of
product design as well as the research and development capability of the
Group. This further enhanced brand awareness and expanded the brand
influence.

il

Industry Awards Received

RIE-HHERELRHRS
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Industry Associations

EERITERIE BHENITENE
e Our brand won the German iF e KNX China User Organisation Committee
Industrie Forum Design award O

o JET fh R R R EIFE PR 5t
(iF Industrie Forum Design)#% I8

Shenzhen Internet of Things Industry Association
e China Smart Home Industry Alliance (CSHIA)

e Shanghai Pudong Intelligent Lighting Federation

e Guangdong Custom Home Association

e China Wood Protection Industry Association, Garden and

Balcony Custom Branch
o KNXHEFEFAEABEZES
o RITYBMBEEEDS
o B SEZ B AR K EHCSHIA
o FEBHRRBHEKSE
s BRETEHIRBITERS
o FEAMGRELEHGETEREBAES NS
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Sustainability Management
Board Statement

NVC International has formulated the Social Responsibility Procedures in
accordance with laws and regulations of places where it operates and the
actual situation of its own production and operations to explicitly stipulate
standards of conduct in the context of social responsibility, labour,
environment, safety and health, business ethics, etc. It also regularly
conducts internal audits and management method reviews, and takes
effective remedial and corrective measures in a timely manner to ensure
that the principles of sustainable development are practised.

The Board is the highest governing body overseeing ESG risk. The
Audit Committee reviews all risks of the Group including ESG and
climate risks. The Board authorises the CEO to urge all functional
departments to conduct constant assessments of ESG risks, prioritise
and manage material ESG-related issues, review the formulation process
of sustainable development issues that have a significant impact on the
Group, and the progress of the realisation of sustainable development
goals. The Board believes that the sustainable goals and targets align
with the Group’s ambition of striving towards best practices in the realm
of industry-wide sustainable development and will enhance brand growth
and the Group’s businesses.

The Board of Directors confirms that it is responsible for ensuring the
integrity of the sustainability report, and to the best of its knowledge,
this Report covers all relevant important issues and provides an impartial
account of the Group’s ESG performance. The Board of Directors
confirms that it has reviewed and approved this Report.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report
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Materiality Identification

The Group’s materiality assessment work follows the “materiality”
reporting principles required by the ESG Reporting Guidelines of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Group maintains good and constant
communication with stakeholders through multiple channels,
issues that have an impact on the Group’s business or have an impact
on society and the environment due to the Group’s operations, and ranks
them by the significance of the impact which will be confirmed by the
management. This year, the results of the Group’s materiality assessment

are as follows:

A
High

=

Importance to stakeholders
HAHEMLNEEY
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[15)

identifies

RIE-tHERER

A EEMRE

FEENBEERETEIFRES BB ﬁ
ESGHREHESIZERMIBEA N I RERRA
mﬁﬁﬁﬁhﬁﬁ&@%
MBS HANNERXBELEFEIARE
BEENHERRBEELERENZE I
BRREERMETHF RERHEER
NERNE -xFE AEERREE
Eliﬁﬁﬁmm%WT

ﬁ,ia
u&b

®0

BEITRBEHEA

WS

Level Il

BB

Level lll

B=ER

Level IV
BImAR

[ Enwronmental issues

IREEAR

Importance to the Group
HERNEE Y

°o Emplpyee issues
BT#HE

2]
o

©
2]
®
®

FEEY) - ERAMEKEE
Waste, exhaust and wastewater
management

EREE

Energy management
HAEREE

Supply chain management

BRREE

Customer satisfaction

EnEEEE
Product quality management
B 28 o RN o EE

Research and development, and
intellectual property rights

B

Economic benefits

0606666 0060

BE R

Greenhouse gas emissions
RS RIREL

Tackling climate change
BEES

Green products

BRER

Environmental compliance
ATERE

Talent management
H¥ERREZR
Occupational health and safety
R I%AR

Anti-discrimination
ERHERRE

Product marketing and labelling
EmREEZE

Product health and safety
BEEE

Business ethics

® Operational issues
BESE

606 6000

R

KEREE

Water resources management
R EE

Raw material management
BREREA

Environmental protection
investment

SR TERE

Diversity and equal opportunities
TR

labour standards
ERLERAGZS

Customer privacy and network
security

RER
Anti-corruption

Economic issues

©

© 6 6 6

.
>
High

=

BRI TS

Cleantech Opportunities
e SR AR A

Compensation and benefits
BT#E

Employee communication
EHRE

Training and development
HESEEF
Community engagement and
well-being

BTEFERARASE 202355

929



100

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR ERERHRS

The Group’s Important Issues Our Actions

Sustainability Pillars

EETREERIE EZHE EMBITH

Environmental o Waste, Exhaust o The Group has complied with all relevant international and local

Protection and Wastewater environmental laws and regulations, and formulated a series of
Management internal management policies such as the Procedures for Legal,

° Energy

£
o7, aragonent
S

IRIGfRE . BEEYBERM .
BEKEE

. BEREE

N
g7 :
= '

Regulatory and Other Requirements, the Corrective and Preventive
Control Procedures and the Environmental Management

The Group has established an environmental management system
led by the operations management department and requiring
responsibilities from each department, so as to fully implement and
be responsible for the Group’s water and electricity management,
comprehensive utilisation and disposal of waste and other
environmental management work

The Group formulated corresponding management measures for
waste gas, waste and sewage generated during operation, and
managed waste discharge from three aspects (namely online
monitoring, technical processing and contingency plans), so as

to meet the requirements of laws and regulations in the place of
operation

The Group has scientifically planned energy consumption during
operations to improve energy usage efficiency and reduce energy
consumption

EBTAEBBERREEMTMNEBRMERERIER §IECEREZE
FRREMBREZF) U ENBERBREFHRR)MIRRZEIE)E
—RIINBEBBR

BUHESEENES FEFIEENREEERR 2EEEE
EXAERAK AEEERIRGETANEEFRREEETF
HHEEBRPAMELNER BEY SKETHTHRENEIEM
FOREREAN EWEE RERE=ZFEEEEEHRR UK
BEEMEMBERIARER

MP2RBELBREPNEFREFE BSERIVEANE B EFRE
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The Group’s
Sustainability Pillars

EEAFEZREIE EBRRE

Important Issues

RIE-HHERELRHRS

Our Actions

BT

Cherishing Talents o Talent
fo o) Management
—~~ ~ . Customer
O o0 O

Satisfaction

NN

Responsibility to
Customers

O O

=0

BREAS o AAEE
N N
O 0 O
AN

BERER

Based on the principle of “fairness, impartiality, openness and job
matching”, we absorb diverse talents through internal selection,
employees recommendation, external recruitment, campus
recruitment and other channels

Prohibit all forms of discrimination, and eliminate acts of
discrimination or rights interference due to employees’ race, social
class, nationality, clan, disability, gender, etc.

We have formulated institutional documents such as the Salary and
Welfare Management Procedures to motivate employees to work
We have a complete employee complaint system, and employees
can express their opinions and suggestions through the suggestion
box, employee representatives and other channels

Sort out and integrate information on new products and services,
so that customers can obtain accurate and sufficient product
information directly on the Group’s official website anytime,
anywhere

The After-sales Claims Settlement Process and Policy to clarify the
internal after-sales service management process and ensure stable
and effective after-sales services, improve customer complaint
mechanism and enhance customer satisfaction
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The Group’s Important Issues Our Actions

Sustainability Pillars

EETREERIE EZHE EMBITH

Excellence in o Supply Chain o Implement strict procurement standards

Operations Management o Management Measures on Suppliers’ Social Responsibility
° Product Quality o ISO9001:2015 quality management system certification

é % Management °
° Research and .
e e Development, .

and Intellectual
Property Rights
o Economic

Benefits o

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

Seven national and international product certifications
Whole-process quality monitoring and inspection system

Recall mechanism for defective products, and specify the control,
review and disposal process for defective products of accessories
and products, and clarify the responsibilities of each responsible
department

Strict selection of raw materials to eliminate harmful substances
Improvement of product labelling to ensure customers have
Labelling accurate information

Clarify information such as product names, specifications, energy
efficiency levels, and safety instructions to help customers quickly
understand product features, usage scenarios, safety precautions,
and other usage precautions

Mature full life cycle management mechanism for product research
and development

A matrix of scientific research laboratories in the “Technology
Product Innovation Iron Triangle”

Focus on incorporating environmental factors into product design,
raw material acquisition, etc., and continuously improve the energy
efficiency of our products to reduce the negative impact on the
environment

Guangdong Zhuhai Base was recognised as a national high-tech
enterprise

The Group obtained four invention patents, 24 utility model
patents, two design patents and one copyright, and also applied
for 9 invention patent authorisations, 19 utility model patent
authorisations and three filings of design patent authorisations this
year

The Legal Department of the Group issued the Warning Letter on
Confidentiality Obligations, which made detailed and standardised
requirements for the confidentiality obligations of NVC International
and other NVC international subsidiaries

Revenue amounting to US$235,978,000

Earnings for the year amounting to US$37,650,000

Net assets amounting to US$502,601,000
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The Group’s Important Issues Our Actions
Sustainability Pillars
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Environmental Protection

As a global solution provider for smart homes and commercial spaces,
the Group regards environmental sustainability as the key to success.
By implementing a series of measures to improve energy efficiency and
reduce emissions, we are committed to creating a green operation and
management model and promoting the development of environmental
protection with practical actions.

We strictly comply with various environmental laws and regulations’ of
the places where we operate. The Group has formulated a series of
management policies such as the Procedures for Legal, Regulatory and
Other Requirements, the Corrective and Preventive Control Procedures
and the Environmental Management, and established an environmental
management system led by the operations management department and
requiring responsibilities from each department, so as to be fully
responsible for the Group’s water and electricity management,
comprehensive utilisation and disposal of waste and other environmental
management work and address business challenges while balancing
environmental responsibility.

1 For laws and regulations on resource consumption and emissions,
please see the section headed Laws and Regulations in this Report

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report
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Human Resources
Department

ANERE

Technology Development
Department
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Management

Representatives Quality Management
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HEEEE

General Manager Sales Department
EEESE HEH
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Zhuhai Plant
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Supply Chain
Management Department
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Schematic diagram of environmental management system
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Water Consumption

The Group uses tap water for its operations. The total water consumption
during the year was 197,340 tonnes, representing an increase of 13.50%
as compared with 2022 and with a water consumption intensity of 0.8363
tonnes/thousand US$ revenue. There were no issues in sourcing water
that is fit for the purpose during the year.

Water Conservation Measures

With the goal of “saving water and eliminating unnecessary water
wastage such as drips and leaks”, the Group continues to improve the
protection and conservation of water resources. We install water-saving
equipment in all production bases, so as to save utilisation more water
resources and improve the efficiency of water resource utilisation. We
also use safe water-saving appliances for domestic water and water-
saving cooling towers for production water. In addition, the Group
conducts regular water monitoring, randomly checks water leakage every
week and corrects it in time, and strengthens water-saving education to
encourage employees to save water.

KERER

FEEBEEFEHERK 2FEERKES
197,340°AME » B{20224E 1 113.50% > FAK
HEA0.8363A M, FroETE XL F
Mo AEBEEFEREA AR LRS-

Bk I

REINTHNORI BB REFTLER
§7}<J EﬁEﬁ’ZIK%@ﬁﬁE%%ﬂCéﬁﬁ%%
MEIHW T KMAUATWMAOEER: —7
H Hé}ﬁﬁm REEEESEEREM > LEHD
FEZAKER REKERMAME - ZF—7
B HRMAEEETRAKSTERAZEHKE
BECAEEERKDERMBEKELAE-
rEEEMBARAKEETIF SHEBEK
WERKERIL REREIE MBEKEE
REEEHOAK-
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Consumption of Packaging Materials

The Group mainly uses plastic bags, colour boxes, paper boxes, labels
and other packaging materials in operations. The total consumption
was 22,538 tonnes in the year, representing a decrease of 18.26% as
compared to 2022, and the intensity was 0.0955 tonnes/thousand US$
revenue. In line with the principle of sustainable development and for
reducing the impact of our operations on the environment, the Group
minimises the use of unnecessary packaging materials and consciously
selects recyclable materials for use.

RIE-HHERELRHRS

BEMEFER

FAEEBEEERNEGEMNETERBY
R FEE - HME BRS-FER > BRMOELH
#£22,538AMAELEE A1 K] » B EE20224F T &
18.26%  FEAZE E 5A0.0955 M8/ F T
TTEEE ARTHURFEZERA B E
BHERENEE AEBERITRERLVER
TRENBEME B EREFERAME
BRIk

Packaging material consumption (Tonne) BEMEHES (AN 2022
Plastic bags BRLK 82 67
Colour boxes e 2,857 2,889
Paper boxes e 19,540 24,590
Labels B® 9 5
Others Hith 50 21
Total BEMEES 22,538 27,572

Ecological Environment Conservation

The Group attaches great importance to ecological and environmental
protection and has established emergency rescue teams and
corresponding management procedures at each production base to
ensure that when environmental emergencies occur, immediate and
effective rescue work can be carried out immediately to avoid impact on
the ecological environment. In addition, the Group regularly carries out
emergency procedure inspections and environmental safety awareness
training to improve the environmental safety awareness and emergency
response capabilities of relevant personnel.

ERIRIEMRE

FAEEERERRRERE EREEEN
HRIBSZHENENHENEERRR
BREHRBEREEHEERENE K
BB BWARIE T BREER
RIBEMEE I AEBEHRERER
BFEFERENREXEEHBIITIF S

HEAEBNREZ2EAMEEEES -
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RIE-HERELSHRS

Environmental Emergency Management

In accordance with the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China and relevant local rules and regulations, the Group
have established procedures for handling environmental emergencies,
such as the Rules on Emergency Management of Environmental Risk
Accidents, the Rules on Emergency Management of Chemical Spill and
the Emergency Plans and Corresponding Control Procedures to identify
and assess relevant risks in a timely manner, clarify various emergency
response measures and establish emergency preparedness and
continuously improve the environmental emergency management system
and processes.

Incident assessment
(scope and severity of
impact)

Emergency rescue
team launches
operation

& = % 3& /A
ERITE

Environmental
emergencies

IRIBREEM EHE (FERE
MEBRERE)

REFEMHESEE

RIBE (P EARKMBEIRIR REE) MAERD
L RENE AEEERI(RERRE
HESEERE) (ER2RAREERE
RE) (BEENERESRERF) TRE
RIBEMHRIERF K& #5448 6
JE B > BRHE 2 TE FE = R IR AR A R L FE &
ERFR FRTERERSEERARNA

AR

Clarify the handling
measures and
implement them

PR R 3 15 1
i B

Emission Control

The Group complies with various environmental laws and regulations1
relevant to local operating locations. The Group has formulated
a series of internal management policies such as the Procedures
for Legal, Regulatory and Other Requirements, the Corrective and
Preventive Control Procedures and the Environmental Management, and
established an environmental management system led by the operations
management department and requiring responsibilities from each
department, so as to fully implement and be responsible for the Group’s
waste, exhaust and wastewater management work.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report
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Exhaust Emissions

The exhaust gases generated by the Group’s factory production and daily
operations mainly include nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulfur oxides (SOx) and
smoke and dust. During the reporting period, the Group discharged a
total of 0.2963 tonnes of nitrogen oxides, 0.0009 tonnes of sulfur oxides
and 0.3214 tonnes of smoke and dust?. In addition, the Group has newly
measured emissions of volatile organic compounds this year, with a total
emission of 0.0320 tonnes.

In order to effectively control harmful gas emissions and strengthen
atmospheric environment management, the Group has formulated strict
waste gas management measures in accordance with the Air Pollution
Prevention Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Comprehensive
Emission Standards for Air Pollutants and local laws, regulations and
management regulations where the factory is located including the
Guangdong Air Pollution Emission Limits and Zhejiang Air Pollutant
Prevention and Control Regulations 2016. Thus, exhaust emission control
is carried out from three aspects: technical processing, online monitoring
and emergency plans, in order to achieve the goal of reducing emissions
from the source, standardizing the emission process during operation and
preventing environmental emergencies.

RIE-HHERELRHRS

B RFK

HEBRIBEENBEEEMEENESR
FTEAEAEIEYINOY BRI (SO E
EE RS AEBAHEBERER1EY
0.2963AME > FR | 1E¥0.00097 ME K & EE
0.3214RME20 fb9h » KE B A F EHIGIE
EMAEEYBEMER & H5HHEK0.0320
NE o

HEMEFRBESREN IR ARIRIER
REBAE AEBRKRBE(PEARANE
RRSREBHE) (KRR SR E SR
BRE) R IRRPAEM G ERERMNEREM
(BRARRSRFMEE) (FIEXRR
SR BHRBI2016F ) F o I E T BREEY
BEREEME MM EE  EREAME
SRR TEHETERFREE  LUEE
WREREHRE - RNEEBRERREH
BORE A RBREEHNER

Air Pollutants Emissions (Tonne)
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Nitrogen oxides

2819 {E=Rlwi]

2 Since the smoke and dust of the Group's Vietnam factory this
year is recorded in units of mg/Nm? in accordance with Vietnam's
environmental laws, the smoke and dust of the Vietham factory
here is not included in the total statistics. The smoke and dust
emission data generated by the four monitoring points of the
Vietnam factory are: 75.10 mg/Nm?, 59.90 mg/Nm?3, 83.60
mg/Nm?, 62.30 mg/Nm?

B Sulfur oxides

2022

Smoke and dust

Pl

2 AEEERUEIRNEERBHREIE
AR E Umg/NmeA B U088 FIL
bR TRIEERMALEFRT -
T/ 108 55 R B PR E A O MEE EE BE TR 2 BUiR
DRIA 17510 mg/Nm3>59.90 mg/Nm?>
83.60 mg/Nm?> 62.30 mg/Nm?
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Technical Processing

KT BRI

e Activated carbon adsorption

devices and other technologies
are used to reduce volatile
organic compounds emissions in
factories

R E BRI S B H L
B A E PR M B Y HE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERELGRS

@.{E}. Online Monitoring
&

EHRER

e Set up an online monitoring

system for pollution sources

to monitor industrial waste

gas emissions to ensure that
emissions meet standards
RESRBRIERBARY B
T 2B RN W RER

E Contingency Plans

e Develop an emergency plan for

exhaust gas leakage to deal with
emergencies

T B R R AE = TR > LUFEH
FEIER

TR

Exhaust management measures

R E A

Solid Waste Management

The Group requires factories and operating sites in all regions to strictly
abide by the Waste Management Rules formulated internally by the
Group and carry out waste classification and management. The Group’s
hazardous waste mainly originates from waste mineral oil packaging,
mercury-containing waste lamps and waste circuit boards used and
generated during the development and production of lighting products.
For hazardous waste, we cooperate with qualified third-party professional
centralised to collect and process them in a centralised manner. In 2023,
the Group generated a total of 13.22 tonnes of hazardous waste and
1,020.05 tonnes of non-hazardous, representing a year-on-year increase
of 17.09% and 9.21% respectively compared with 2022. The generation
density of hazardous waste was 0.00006 tonnes/thousand US$ revenue.

Category E=pal

Elie RN ELE

AEBERZIMBE I HMES R ERE
ERRTHNEN(EEYEERRTE) »#E1T
BEYNIEHEEIf - AEEBEERE
MEEBRERBEERMEEERMEAN
EXNEERYHEE - EREBENE
EERRE - HHEZEEY BRMPREAR
EEHE - EERBETSE EPKE
BERIEo2023F  EEMBITEE13.222MF
BEEEEY>1,020.056 AN —MREEY) » &
2022F DRI EEFAE T17.09%F19.21% >
HOBEEEEYHNELEEE%0.000067A ME
ST ETTEE R

-;EI 2022

BEEEREY (AN
—RREFERY) (A NE)

Hazardous waste (tonne)
Non-hazardous waste (tonne)
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In order to achieve the Group’s goals of resource recycling, reduction and
100% compliant disposal of waste, the Group divides the non-hazardous
waste generated (mainly from domestic waste and construction waste)
into recyclable waste and non-recyclable waste. Recyclable waste (mainly
waste paper, plastic and metal) is recycled, while non-recyclable waste
is handed over to the municipal environmental protection department
in the corresponding area. In 2023, the Group generated 542 tonnes of
recyclable waste and 478 tonnes of non-recyclable waste respectively, all
of which were 100% processed.

RIE-HHERELRHRS

AHEREREEYERIC - AELE100%
EREERE AEBRBELEN—REEY
(FEREHBEFNRMEBELNIR) 95
AEWEEYE A O EREY > o [0 Uk
BEY (TBABERR BNEERE) E1T
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B EE T542 M 0] O] UN BE W) M 47872 IR
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RIE-HERELSHRS

Wastewater Management

The Group’s wastewater mainly comes from production wastewater and
domestic wastewater generated by employees in their daily lives. In 2023,
the Group discharged 0.08 tonnes of chemical oxygen demand and O
tonnes of ammonia-nitrogen pollutants from wastewater®. We standardise
the wastewater treatment process and are committed to ensuring full
compliance of all wastewater discharges.

BKELE

FEBNBEKEIBRAREERKKRET
AEEEELENEEREK2023F > EEHF
BHEE K PEEREAEHFRER0.08A
Mg RS RYFMEBORNR - T PR &8
BEKBRIZRE > BN HEREEK100%E K
BRI

Wastewater Management Measures

S 7K B IR 45 b

v Develop operating procedures for wastewater treatment

v/ Standardise the management of sewage treatment equipment

v/ Conduct training on wastewater treatment

v Circulating water process is used in the production process

V' Install rainwater and sewage diversion devices

v/ Domestic sewage is filtered and discharged into the municipal
sewage pipe network

Tackling Climate Change

Actively taking reliable measures to deal with climate change is the
only way to achieve sustainable development for enterprises. In order
to mitigate the impact of climate change on the Group’s business
operations, we actively promote the implementation of the Group’s
sustainable development strategy, continuously assess and update
the risks that climate change brings to the Group, and seise possible
opportunities.

To mitigate the impact of climate change on the Group’s financial
performance and to better identify and manage climate change-related
risks and opportunities, by focusing on the three aspects of “mitigation
measures, adaptive capacity, and policy review”, the Group has
formulated the Climate Change Policy, with details as follows:

3 Since the wastewater discharge from the Group's Vietnam factory
this year is recorded in mg/l in accordance with Vietnamese
environmental laws, the wastewater discharge in Vietham is not
included in the total statistics. The pollutant data produced by the
Vietnam factory are: COD 28.8mg/I and NH«+ 7.50 mg/I.
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Mitigation Measures
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RIE-HERELSHRS

Improve the production process, minimise the use of fossil energy in production
projects, and increase the use of renewable energy;
HNELETSE RARERVEEIRPCAEREAE BN B AR ;

Improve the level of industrial energy utilisation efficiency and promote the application
of the Group’s energy-saving technologies;

EEILEERNBANML  HESHEMEASERMNERS ;

Incorporate climate change into procurement considerations, and encourage the use of

low- or zero-carbon and energy-efficient products and materials;
RREZEMARENE BREER  SEIFEABRISHRKREE RN @ N ERTNYN ;

Draw on the industry’s advanced practices to formulate voluntary carbon reduction

targets.
BETELRESE HIEERBAKER -

Improve organisational leadership on climate change to prevent or reduce the costs of
climate change;
TERHRBRSCNEREE UBHIEEREBEEEMNIER;

Promote the popularisation and publicity of scientific knowledge on addressing climate
change, and vigorously advocate low-carbon production methods;

HERHNRGEEEHEMNANERNER ANEBEEREESR

Upgrade enterprise risk management systems to incorporate climate change and
extreme weather events into management procedures;
AREXRBEERG KRIEGECNBERREGMAETERERFA ;

Collaborate with various stakeholders, including employees, suppliers and customers,
to strengthen the resilience of all parties to climate change.
HEBEET - HEBRBEEEERMNE MRS HHRESICNERIE

Regularly monitor and review the impact of climate change on the Group’s employees
and business operations;
EHEERNENRESCHERRBEEMEBESHNEE;

Regularly review and update the Group’s climate change policy and report to the Board
on a regular basis.

EHEENENAEBMREZCER TERRAEFTFER-
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RIE-HERELSHRS

The Group has integrated climate change-related risks and opportunities
into the Group’s risk management, strategic rules and decision-making.
We refer to the recommendations of the International Sustainability
Standards Board (ISSB) and disclose climate-related information in four
categories: “governance”, “strategy”, “risk management” and “metrics
and targets”.

Governance

The Group’s Board of Directors is responsible for supervising climate-
related risks, and the management team is responsible for the
identification and management of climate change risks and opportunities,
and policy implementation, including actively promoting and supervising
the implementation of various energy conservation and emission
reduction measures, mitigating the impact of climate change on its
business, and strengthening the development of renewable energy.

Strategy

The Group identifies the risks and opportunities that climate change
may bring, and divides the risks into physical risks and transitional risks
according to the nature of the risks. Physical risks include extreme
weather and extreme heat. Transitional risks include possible policy and
legal changes, technological and market changes, rising raw material
and energy costs, and demand for products that meet the latest
environmental requirements. We have also identified several opportunities
in moving to a low-carbon economy, including the adoption of energy-
saving technologies to improve industrial energy efficiency and the use of
recyclable packaging materials to improve resource efficiency.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report
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Risk Management

The Group has incorporated climate change risk management into its
sustainable development strategy and analysed the potential financial
impact of each physical and transitional risk. Based on this, the
management has formulated corresponding policies for implementation.
We have prepared sufficient resources for the mitigation and remediation
of relevant emergency incidents which can be taken and applied in a
timely manner when necessary. The Group has identified climate risks
and opportunities related to its business operations and has taken the
following actions:

Potential
Type Description Financial Implications
i o BUEMBRE

RIE-HHERELRHRS

BEEE

FEERREZCRAREEMNAZEE
ERRBP THXEERERELEARY
MHENBEIREET TN BEENL
ARBEH EAEBHNBRMUEBR - HME
HEHERESEHNERRBERERT B
HWER TREFIRFRITMNITE K&
B B 5l B 2R 58 E AR R BV R AR LB A 1
B W TTE :

Responses

e 11

Physical risks

BERAR

e Acute risks

o =iAR

Risks driven by extreme weather
events, such as typhoons, hurricanes
or floods, may damage production
bases and offices, resulting in failure
of normal operations, damage to
operating facilities, equipment,
storage areas and goods, etc.

HEGXREHRINER N8
BBERIHK REEERM RN
RE BYEAILREE BREE
Rt RE BERENENT

e Reduced revenue: being unable to
produce and deliver on time with
business operations affected

e Asset reduction: asset damage and
depreciation

e Increased expenditure: repair and
replacement of damaged facilities and
equipment

. Wkﬁ“ BEEENBRRERE ¥
BEERTE

o EER) EERBEE

o MBI L BHREBORER
Bl

Set up relevant contingency plans, upgrade
enterprise risk management systems, and
incorporate climate change and extreme
weather events into management procedures
Strengthen the maintenance of special facilities
and equipment for flood control and drainage in
production bases and offices, and manage rain
damage and tide damage in key areas

RERRERER ARCEARERRR K
REZENERRREHBAEEESF
MEEEEMRIFAZRBATEKE BRI
wME URH BRI RENGREE

e Chronic
risks

. AR

Prolonged changes in climate
patterns, incremental changes in
climate (sea level rise, rainfall changes
and continued high temperature) may
lead to more frequent and severe
extreme events, and more frequent
transportation delays, affecting supply
chain reliability

RERARPBS RENEELE
(BYRLA KRRESTLREES
B ERBREHENNEENGZS
BEHERDMEE FEMREEDY
3E|§

¢ Reduced revenue: business
operations are affected, and the
market demand for products is
decreasing

o WARD I EBEERTE
EDDFE;.RE] |§¢1R

IR H

Set up corresponding management teams
Prepare corresponding contingency plans in
advance and look for alternative transportation
options to strengthen supply chain resilience

HRBEEEERD
RAERERNERER SREABERE
T3 e 5 8] 1%
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Type
A

Description

fait

Potential
Financial Implications

BEMBRE

Responses

FE B 5T

Transitional risks

BUER
e Policy and
legal risks

o BRRAR
A

Directly or indirectly affected by
policies and laws formulated to
limit the impact of climate change
and/or to improve adaptation to
climate change, including the
implementation of carbon pricing
mechanisms, increased environmental
disclosure requirements and stricter
environmental protection and climate
policies
ERIEERIARNRRE T E
M/ daReHREECBELmN
ENBREENTE BERTEER
HER RRREEXRESRERE
MIRFERIZER

Increased costs: increased emission
costs and retrofit costs, as well as
litigation claims arising from non-
compliance

PSRN S INHER A AR B R s
BA MR RERSIBHRARE

Regularly collect and update regulations
through various channels such as government
agencies and the Internet to ensure operational
compliance

Periodic examination

EHBBHAHE DREASSRRENENE
AR URREESR
EHETER

e Technology
risks

o HNEKER

Directly or indirectly affected by
technological changes, including
industry support for global low-
carbon transformation, increased R&D
and investment in renewable energy
technologies, and the widespread
application of new energy-saving
facilities prompting the purchase of
new facilities and the replacement of
old equipment
ERERENTIRMZEHROY
& ARETEIFENERER M
AL B BE R I 7 E OB 38 B 3%
A HEHERENEZERRER
IR BIRERE

Increased costs: increase investment
in research and development of green
technologies and products, and
purchase new equipment that is more
environmentally friendly and energy-
saving

Asset reduction: old equipment
decommissioned

MARM  MAERGERENER
BB SR A RIEE R R A A9 RR
B

EERD  RARBER

Incorporate environmental protection
specification requirements into product design
and production

Accelerate the energy-saving transformation and
automation transformation of equipment, and
improve the production process

Promote the use of new and clean energy

RERRFANEESRETAARRREER
MREERBOBEEN BBEWE  EE
Elg

EBMERTBZEROER

e Market risks

o BHAR

Climate change affects the supply and
demand of certain goods, products
and services in markets, including
higher resource prices such as energy
and raw materials
RBEgLEET S L ELER ER
MRBHOHERER SEFERER (0
ERMEME) BF =

Increased costs: rising raw material
prices

BRI RATEHER LF

Implement flexible supply chain management to
promote low-carbon transformation

BUBNMMERER EEAREE
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RIE-HHERELRHRS

Potential

Type Description Financial Implications Responses

ga it BENBRE FESHHEHE

Opportunities

3]

e Opportunities ®  In the medium to long term, improving e Cost reduction: lower operating costs ¢  Promote the efficient application of energy-
for energy energy efficiency can bring immediate saving technologies and equipment in
efficiency cost savings to operations and production and operation

contribute to limiting global carbon e Actively promote the efficient use of new and
emissions clean energy
¢ Promote the construction of an energy
management system and optimise the energy
structure

o RRMEK o WRRERE RARFMXREAEZ MARE  REEEMAK o BEFERMNRBETLEREETNEUNE

B BRREENMASHN TARHZ F
KL B R o BREBNERNBZERNBMAA
o BERREERZER BLEREE
e Opportunities *  Innovating and developing products Cost reduction: lower financing costs e  Actively participate in the low-carbon transition

for products

EmB

and services with low carbon
emissions can improve our market
competitiveness. For instance,
customers prefer more environmentally
friendly service or product suppliers,
and investors prefer environmentally
friendly enterprises

BIRT A B S B B RO & A AR B
RETHERIBMA NERRERE
RORBRERLED REERA
RERFUELE

Increased revenue: increased product
sales

HMARE  RERERE
WA EMEREE

and consider low-carbon/zero-carbon and
energy-efficient raw materials or products
Collect market information to understand
stakeholders’ demand for environmental
protection and energy-saving products and
propose product plans

Promote green supply chain management

RS REREY ZBER/ THNEERY
R RMM S ER

WEDHES NENZAMEHRROEBL
ERBR RHUERRD

EEgaEEER
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RIE-HERELSHRS

Metrics and Targets
Energy Consumption

The Group continues to strengthen the management of energy use,
scientifically plan energy consumption during operations, and improve
energy use efficiency, to achieve its target to reduce energy consumption.
Energy consumption in the Group’s daily operations includes petrol,
diesel (direct energy) and purchased electricity (indirect energy). In 2023,
the Group’s total energy consumption was 101,230 GJ, with an intensity
of 0.4290 GJ/thousand US$ revenue. The direct energy consumption was
1,954 GJ and the indirect energy consumption was 99,276 GJ.

EEREE
BEIRHFE

AEBFEMBREEREBRNERE HE
ERREDHNERHEETREZRE IES
FERMFEARAMNE  XMBIRA L EREE
HEZ - OEZEER P RN RHESRE
FUORMAEEH (HEEER) UKRINEE N (B
EHER) °c2023F  ZEBEREEES
101,230 F K EH » BE A£0.4290F K &
H,/ TrExEH£E HEBEEREEES
1,954 F KEE > BEERBEEEA99,276
FIEE-

Total Energy Consumption (GJ)
BERUHFEE (TIREH)
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

In 2023, the Group’s total greenhouse gas emissions totalled 15,884
tCO2e, an increase of 4.77% compared to 2022, and the emission
density was 0.0673 tCOqe/thousand US$ revenue. Among them, the
direct greenhouse gas emissions caused by the use of gasoline, diesel
and other fuels used in factory production and vehicles are 157 tCOze;
and the indirect greenhouse gas emissions caused by purchased
electricity are 15,727 tCOze.

RIE-HHERELRHRS

A ERAE K

2023F  AEBBEREBERESH
15,8842 AME — AL E 2 > HHELER2022%F
EAHTAT7T%  FEREE A0.0673 A M — &
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RIE- M ERERERS

Green Office

The Group is committed to advocating green office construction and
actively taking energy-saving measures to reduce energy consumption
and improve energy efficiency.

Gradually replace traditional
lighting with more energy
efficient LED lights

b 3=F VN

IR B AR AR HUE R
S 1 B AERONHE - 1R AR -

Control the indoor
temperature is maintained
at 26 degrees Celsius

& AR B SERYLED)E ENREER
B A4 R Lighting “Temperature 26
Management Control
REAEE e $E P
Education Paper Use :
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4
ABLIF IR paper, minimise single
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Cherishing Talents

The development of employees is closely related to the success of
the enterprise. We insist on putting people first and strengthen labour
management and protect labour rights and interests by formulating
standardised internal system documents. We attach great importance to
the physical and mental health of our employees, plan and improve career
development channels for employees, assist their development and
growth, and strive to build a diversified and malleable corporate culture to
empower employees for their all-round development.

Employee Composition

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 1,967 employees
with a male-to-female ratio of 0.60:1, most of whom were aged between
30 and 50. Among them, front-line employees accounted for 85.36% of
the total number of employees with no part-time employees during the
year. During the year, the Group’s quarterly average employee turnover
rate was 11.64%, and the quarterly average new hire rate was 8.77%.
For detailed employee data, please refer to the “Performance Data
Summary”.
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Quarterly Turnover Rate and New Hire Rate by Age
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Talent Recruitment

The Group adheres to the principles of “fairness, impartiality, openness,
and job matching” in employee recruitment, and has formulated the
Recruitment Management Procedures to standardise the recruitment
process and ensure the smooth progress of personnel selection and
employment. In terms of recruitment channels, we mainly attract
diversified talents through internal selection, employee’s recommendation,
external recruitment, campus recruitment and other channels. In the
recruitment process, we strictly put an end to all discrimination and
corruption, and stipulate that personnel responsible for recruitment are
not allowed to accept bribes. If any of the above violations are found, we
will pursue legal liability.

Protection of Employees’ Rights and Interests

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of employees’
rights and interests and insists on opposing all employee-related
discriminatory behaviors. It is prohibited to discriminate against or restrict
the rights and interests of employees due to race, nationality, clan,
social class, gender, sexual orientation, age, political party, disability,
etc. within the Group. The Group has formulated the Management
Rules on the Protection of Female Workers to ensure that the legitimate
rights and interests of female employees are effectively protected,
including providing additional benefits such as maternity leave for female
employees.

Women’s Day Special Event - “The Undefined Power of Women”
Sharing Session

To celebrate Women’s Day, the Asia Pacific Human Resources
Department specially planned a sharing session on “The Undefined
Power of Women”. At the sharing session, 6 female managers including
the executive director, deputy general manager of marketing, director
of marketing department, ZHIAQ marketing director, deputy director of
quality management center and account manager were invited as guests
to discuss issues such as energy management, stress management
and emotional regulation for working women with more than 50
female colleagues. This sharing session demonstrated the Group’s
care and support for female employees, allowing more women to gain
opportunities for development and self-realisation in the workplace.
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IR ERERHRS

In order to understand the actual status of employee rights and interests
protection, and to understand and handle employees’ opinions in a
timely manner, the Group has formulated the Employee Representative
Election Procedures through which employee representatives are elected.
Employee representatives, in collaboration with the Human Resources
Department, are responsible for collecting employees’ inquiries, questions
and complaints, and are responsible for responding to them. The Group
holds an employee representative meeting every six months, where
employee representatives attend and participate in discussions on the
factory’s social responsibility performance, such as working conditions,
discrimination and other issues.

The First Workers’ Conference of Guangdong Zhuhai Base

The first workers’ conference was held on 26 April. The first session of
workers’ representatives was democratically elected at the conference.
In accordance with the election regulations, a total of 40 employees were
elected as workers’ representatives for a term of three years.
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Compensation and Benefits

In terms of the management of employee salary and welfare benefits,
we have formulated institutional documents such as the Wage and
Benefits Management Procedures to standardise the payment of wages
and benefits and motivate employees to work based on the principle
of “performance-oriented compensation, prioritizing efficiency and
considering fairness”. The salary distribution of employees follows the
principle of “performance-oriented compensation”, and we implement
equal pay for equal work, and clarify the overtime salary management
system to ensure that the working hours and holiday benefits of
employees are in compliance with the laws and regulations of the place of
operation.

In order to create a corporate culture atmosphere with a sense of
belonging, the Group has established a science-based, standardised,
comprehensive and complete welfare system for employees. The
welfare system consists of statutory benefits and additional benefits,
covering employees’ holidays, accommodation, meals, etc., to improve
employees’ work happiness in an all-round way. In addition, in order to
actively respond to the policy under the Family Planning Regulations
issued by the Human Resources and Social Security Department of
Guangdong Province and promote long-term balanced development of
the population and social progress, parental leave and nursing leave have
been implemented in October 2023.
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Additional benefits

RIE-HHERELRHRS

REIMEF)
\ i
Monthly fixed Holiday and living Quality Accommodation Insurance and Statutory
salary allowance improvement and dining housing fund holidays
BEEBEEIE EIRBAREERM  award and other arrangements AE—= JETE (REA
awards and EERBERH
bonuses
HERARE
RERE
Employee benefit composition
BETEFER
Prevention of Child and Forced Labour /p]l'it E Tk 5-'.'? %ﬂﬁ?I

The Group eliminated all the use of child labour and forced labour. We
have formulated institutional documents such as the Control Procedures
for Prohibition of Forced Labour, the Management Rules on Preventing
the Employment of Child Labour and the Management Rules for Minors to
strictly standardise the management of recruitment and employment. The
Group firmly opposes the use of child labour. In order to avoid employing
child labour, we adopt strict recruitment and entry verification procedures
by checking the applicant’s certificate and verifying the authenticity
of the employee’s age. In addition, we strictly control personnel files
to ensure that employees are at least 16 years old when they join the
Group. If any child labour is found to be employed by mistake, the
Group will immediately terminate his/her work and arrange for a medical
examination. After finding out the reason, we will notify the local labour
bureau and deal with the situation according to the physical condition of
the child labour. In addition, when necessary, we will provide appropriate
financial and resource assistance to ensure that they complete statutory
education.
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Arranging to send back to his/her
Healthy parents with consent of labour bureau
9N & B8 R BR REFHHER > BHEA
PEISSI=g-

Immediately terminating his/

|dentifying child her work and arranging a ICEUNEES Bearing full costs until recovery

labour check-up required AN =
SRET SRV T PN e

ZHE RS

Providing appropriate financial and
resource support to ensure that the child
labour completes statutory education
REBENSE RERE MRS
ZEILSTHEEHRS

When necessary

Remedial procedures after the discovery of child labour

EHEHE T HRES

The Group ensures that no one is forced to work by any means. The ZAEBEBBERMER ASBASEAFEEZEIEM
labour contracts and labour regulations we draw up need to be agreed ETHEF KFIBENSHESE B ERE=
upon with employee representatives, and must be reviewed by and fled ¥MEEEBETARKEXNFE > T E )
with the local labour bureau to ensure that employees truly enjoy the BHEZEBEZR BEEIUVEEZEERAEAEH
rights of freedom of employment, freedom of resignation, freedom of EBITEHMR - MM EAKRTEEAERER -
overtime and freedom of movement.
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Caring for Employees

In order to enhance employees’ sense of belonging and provide
employees with a comfortable and secure workplace, we continue to
strengthen the construction of employee communication channels,
establish and implement Communication Management Procedures,
and ensure smooth communication channels. Our measures include
but are not limited to regularly organising employee-sharing sessions,
inviting employees from different departments to share their professional
experiences and gains, thereby enhancing employee communication and
building team spirit. We also attach great importance to problems and
different opinions raised, and have a complete employee representation
system. The labour union is an important platform for employees to make
suggestions for the Group. Not only can employees actively voice their
opinions through the labour union, which will organise and convey them
to the management, but they can also handle labour relations and other
matters to effectively promote democratic management. In addition, we
also provide employees with multiple channels such as suggestion boxes
and employee representatives to express their opinions and suggestions.

The Group organises many surprise events such as holiday celebrations
and birthday parties to enhance employees’ cohesion and sense of
belonging. On Women’s Day, Dragon Boat Festival, Christmas and other
festivals, we will send blessings and gifts to employees. Every month,
various departments within the Group will also hold monthly birthday
parties for employees to share the joy of birthdays.
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RIE-HERELSHRS

Labour Union Activities for Chinese Valentine’s Day 2023 Annual Conference of China Region

tYHIEES 2023FFEEFE

ETXRE

Development and Training

The Group regards training management as an important part of
daily operations and builds a complete internal personnel training
management system to better help and support employees to improve
their professional skills and working methods in all aspects and enhance
their competitiveness. The Human Resources Department formulates
annual training plans based on the training needs of various departments.
Employees need to receive relevant training and also receive post-training
evaluation according to the training plans to test the effectiveness of
the training. We will make adjustments and improvements based on the
training evaluation results.

Classroom

Analysing job Developing lectures/practical

training plan operations
il E 55 3l 5t 21 REHERE S

RIEEE

requirements

B TIEBR

Internal training system

A EBIE S Y
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In addition to ensuring the reasonableness of the processes and the
scientificity of the systems, we also continuously improve the pertinence
of employee training to adapt to various employee types and work
characteristics. For example, new employees need to receive induction
training, employees of special operations must receive relevant statutory
training and obtain operation certificates, and personnel in positions
where major safety accidents may occur must receive specialised safety
training. In addition, we also provide employees with diversified training
content such as product knowledge, workplace improvement and office
software applications. During the year, a total of 1,625 employees of the
Group received training, accounting for 83% of the total, with the total
training hours of employees reaching 19,662 hours and the average

R ERERHRS
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training hours per employee being 12.1 hours. The details are as follows: RUE :
Training Indicators Unit 2023
BT RIER B 2023
Number of employees By gender Male person
trained
ITZINAE 4R 8 B4 A 646
Female person
74 A 979
By function Front-line person
R AEE Al AR A 1,486
Management person
EEAB A 139
Employee training By gender Male %
coverage
BIEIIEEX 7R85 B4 % 88
Female %
7% % 79
By funotion Front-line %
1 AESR 9 AR % 89
Management %
BEEAB % 48
Number of hours of By gender Male hour
employee training
2l 8 4 RIE D B4 NS 7,260
Female hour
7% NS 12,402
By function Front-line hour
HEEE D AR /N 18,084
Management hour
BIEAB NS 1,578
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RIE-HERELSHRS

Training Indicators Unit
BTIZIER Bl
Average training hours By gender Male hour
per employee
ET ANBAZIIEH 4 RIE D B4 NS 11.24
Female hour
gk NS 12.67
By function Front-line hour
R AER Al 47 I)NBF 12.17
Management hour
BIEAE NS 11.35
Employee Development ST%#E

Establishing a complete career development channel is a key measure
for enterprises to attract and retain outstanding employees and cultivate
reserve talents. Establishing a reasonable promotion mechanism can help
employees promote career development and realise self-worth, and can
also help enterprises meet the needs of retaining talents and developing
together with employees. The Group has always been committed to
improving internal promotion channels for employees to help employees
plan their careers. We have established a “dual-channel (management
channel and professional and technical channel) career development”
model. Through the management channel, employees can improve
their management skills to become higher-level managers. Through the
professional and technical channel, employees can gain more technical
experience and skills to become technical experts and backbones. We
strive to create an objective working environment suitable for employees’
growth and provide employees with a place to fully develop their potential
and demonstrate their personal abilities.

In order to promote the healthy and rapid development of the Group,
we have established a fair talent promotion mechanism to rationally
flow and effectively allocate internal talents to promote employees’
work enthusiasm and initiative. In addition, we will set up a dedicated
organisational and personnel section in the Group’s monthly information
updates to update important personnel promotion and appointment
information in the Group, thereby encouraging and guiding employees to
set clear career development goals.
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Health and Safety

“Safety first, prevention first and mass prevention and control” is the
working policy we have always adhered to. We expect to build a deep
culture of occupational safety and health in the enterprise, under which,
the management and employees cherish and vigorously promote the
construction of a healthy and safe working environment.

Safety Management

The Group is committed to improving and perfecting the occupational
health and safety management system. The Group has formulated
multiple internal OSH documents such as the Environmental,
Occupational Health Operation and Testing Control Procedures, the Work
Safety Management System and the Occupational Health Management
System. We also state our safety management tenet in the Employee
Handbook that safety is always one of our top concerns. We plan
health and safety management issues with employees, and encourage
employees to participate in workplace health and safety programmes to
promote the construction of occupational health and safety culture.

The Group has established health and safety management procedures.
Our company, its branches and project departments must establish
a safety production leading group to be responsible for the health
and safety of employees and implement relevant health and safety
measures. The safety production leading group is responsible for
regularly inspecting, testing and evaluating the safety and health status
of the enterprise to ensure the health and safety of all employees. We
have emergency response procedures in place to identify and assess all
possible accidents and emergencies, take corresponding precautions,
and regularly arrange first aid, firefighting and evacuation drills. We also
have a proper accident reporting and investigation system in place to
encourage employees to report accidents and unsafe factors.

YEAR FE
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Safe Production

As a key part of our business, we not only regard production safety as a
legal obligation, but also believe that creating a safe production process
is an important part of fulfilling corporate social responsibilities. Before
putting into use or adopting newly purchased equipment, new materials,
new products, new production processes, etc., the Group will conduct
health and safety analysis to identify potential and possible factors that
may affect environmental protection, employees’ health and safety. The
Group has established complete safety operating regulations and requires
employees to strictly abide by them at work to ensure personal safety. If
any potential safety hazards are found in the workplace, employees must
report them to the relevant person in charge in a timely manner. Every
year, we organise relevant persons in charge of various departments to
conduct occupational safety and health inspections and risk assessments
on the procedures, positions, types of work and related materials of each
department, and take relevant preventive measures based on inspection
results and potential risks identified.

Our hazard risk assessments are conducted in dimensions. Firstly,
the responsible department stipulates quantitative values for three
dimensions, including the possibility of an accident (L), the hazard
occurrence frequency (E) and the injury severity (C). Finally, the final risk
classification value (L) is obtained through calculation, which is then
collected and compiled into the Hazardous Source Risk Assessment
Form.
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Health and Safety Training

The Group believes that fundamentally cultivating health and safety
awareness and knowledge and training relevant skills for employees
is an important part of preventing and reducing the occurrence of
various health and safety incidents. After continuous improvement and
supplementation, the Group has established standardised health and
safety training procedures and has incorporated health and safety training
into the annual training plan every year. During the year, the Group
recorded a total of 3,618 person-time participating in safety training,
with 9,785 training hours in aggregate. Both indicators have improved
compared to last year.

We conduct health and safety training for all new employees, transferred
employees and employees in accident-prone places, and require
employees to pass the training before they can start working. We carry
out such training to enhance employees’ safety awareness, and increase
employees’ safety knowledge and skills, aiming to prevent and reduce the
occurrence of various health and safety accidents and thus achieve safe
production.

The Group has standardised health and safety training procedures, and
incorporates health and safety training into its annual training plan. We
provide employees with various forms of safety training, including but not
limited to classroom teaching, seminars, group meetings, bulletin boards,
etc., which are carried out both online and offline. In order to strengthen
the fire safety awareness of all employees, strengthen their awareness
of red lines and improve employees’ ability to respond to emergencies
and self-defence and self-rescue capabilities, we regularly organise fire
evacuation drills and fire drills.

RIE-HHERELRHRS
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Prevention of Occupational Accidents and Occupational Diseases

By providing effective labour protection measures, the Group effectively
protects the personal safety and health of employees, prevents
occupational accidents and diseases and ensures its normal operations.
The Personnel Administration Department is responsible for the
prevention and control of occupational accidents and diseases. We
provide employees with a healthy and safe working environment, and
effectively protect female employees in accordance with the Procedures
for the Labour Protection of Female Employees. We set up relevant work
regulations for dust, toxic gas, noise and high-temperature operations,
and require employees to strictly implement these regulations during
production operations. We also organise employees to undergo physical
examinations and establish employees’ health records every year in
accordance with the requirements of the Law on Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases.

Excellence in Operations

We adhere to the two principles of product excellence and customer-
satisfaction-first, and constantly innovate product design, improve
product quality, and improve product performance to meet customers’
needs. In order to ensure that customers and consumers receive high-
quality, safe and environmentally friendly products and services, the
Group has established a full-process quality supervision system from
research and development, design, manufacturing to after-sales, and
strives to achieve the goal of “Life As You Wish e 524 5E U0 {RFfrFE”.

Green and Innovative Products

Adhering to the core strategy of “technology-driven, user-first”, the
Group takes improving the human living environment as a key direction of
product research and development, aiming to improve consumers’ quality
of life, realise a sustainable and evolving life vision and strive to build a
smarter, a more environmentally friendly and technologically advanced
living space. In addition to requiring the lighting products produced and
sold to meet national and industry standards, we further incorporate
environmental factors into consideration from product design and raw
material acquisition to continuously improve the energy efficiency of our
products and reduce the impact on the environment.
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Step 1: Customer Needs

TH—BREXR

Step 2: Product Design/R&D
T EREEt HE

Step 3: Raw Material
Assessment

SEE= R EEER

Step 4: Production
SN EREE

Step 5: Product Sales

TRE:EnEH
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Collect market information, investigate consumer demand for environmental and
energy-saving products, then put forward the product planning schemes

WETBER BEHEEHRFAHEBEERTR RHERRE

Carry out overall conceptual design; carry on trial production of products to verify
reliability and manufacturability; prioritise environmentally friendly materials; improve
products’ own energy efficiency

ETERAHER A MERRE TR BEEBRERFEME RAERB
BRE R

Conduct material assessments to ensure that raw materials comply with the requirement of
environmental protection regulations

ETMEEHE RERMERTSREERER

Establish stringent specifications on environmental production process to verify quality
and yield rate

FIEBRENIRFREENZRE  RBHERRX

Reduce the use of packaging materials in operations, make promotion plan and monitor
product performance

RO EEBETHNERYEMER  fIEEEE EEERKR

Life-cycle management of new products
WEBIE LB ETE
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Product Research and Development

The Group conducts research and development and product design
with a new structure oriented by “users’ needs”, and is continuing to
build a matrix of scientific research laboratories in the “Technology Iron
Triangle” — the international science and technology innovation centre,
the global industrial design centre and the AloT research institute
to comprehensively improve technology research and development
capabilities. We have established a customer-centric big data analysis
database, from data collection, data access and storage, visual query
and analysis to data-driven decision-making and product intelligence, so
as to achieve a fully data-driven linkage, gain a comprehensive insight
into user needs and provide recommendations for targeted products
and solutions. The Group has four R&D centres in Shanghai, Zhejiang,
Guangdong in China and Birmingham in the UK. During the year, the
Group applied for a total of 38 patents and obtained 31 authorisations.
The details are as follows:

B n i %

FEBUTARBRI AEONEHARBE
THENERR FEER TRRE=A
MER=EEE SEERMAIRLO 2K
TERSTROUKRAIOTHER U2 HE R
FERMAEEN - HMPRITUAER AR
DR RBBDOINE BERBRE  BEE
ANEF R PIREEH R D UK B
HRRNEREBESHEH BRYEBERD
2R 2HERBRIR LRMHHHEMNE
NWERNBRALERZ AEBENRFEN
EB VI BRUKRRENBERESREN
B FR AEBIERFEFNI8
HEREEIE ARBERNT

Number of
Patent Number of
Applications  Authorisations
Type HE HFEENHE BEHE
Utility model patents R 19 24
International Patent Cooperation Treaty (PCT) EREH & EIRA(PCT) 7
Copyrights E1ERE 0 1
Design patents SNER B BT 3 2
Invention patents ZHAHEF 9 4

The Group’s Guangdong Zhuhai Base has been recognised as a national
high-tech enterprise, which fully demonstrates the recognition of its
R&D investment, scientific research strength, scientific and technological
innovation achievements and other aspects from relevant government
departments. In addition, the Group owns three independent core
technologies: Arcade ballast technology, HEPAcharged (high-efficiency
particulate air filters) and disinfection technology centred on the “water”
element. The Group has applied for more than 170 patents, authorised
more than 30 invention patents, more than 132 utility model patents,
and more than 9 design patents. The Group won the “Design Excellence
Award” in the China International Lighting Design Competition many
times.
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Intellectual Property Rights Protection R EEERE

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of intellectual ZHEFESZSESERIABEENFE B4T
property rights and has formulated systems such as the Management (S ERFESERRE) (UHE#RF
Procedures for Protection of Intellectual Property Rights and the ZBREEBERERE)Z4IE UBEFEAAEENHE
Management Procedures for Confidentiality of Intellectual Property Rights # T{EME FRERE - R BB S N5
to ensure the orderly development of the Group’s intellectual property T B ERESRE ) UBERAAEBNE
rights. We also actively monitor and analyse intellectual property rights R RIBEZ T EICM AN ERE
trends in the industry to ensure that the Group’s product research and

development and brand building do not infringe the intellectual property

rights of others.

IPR Risk Control:
BEMBAEERRE

IPR Acquisition:
FE BN A R AR A

Obtain the maximum scope of

Existing IPR Protection:
MEFANEERE
Avoid the possibility of infringement Protect existing intellectual property

before the commencement of a project
RIEE B ERIREHEE R M

protection when patent licensed

B EGRER SRR RELE

rights from infringement

RAENMBEEFZEL

Three stages for protection of intellectual property rights

Fl1 58 E 1 (RAE T (ERY = A FEEE
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Product Responsibility

The Group adheres to the product development direction of “being
a recommender and practitioner of human green lighting” and has
established a full-process quality supervision system from product
R&D and design, production and manufacturing to product sales and
after-sales services. Only by being customer demand-oriented and
continuously improving product quality and performance can products be
competitive.

Product Quality Management

The Group has obtained 1SO9001:2015 quality management system
certification since 2010, and has established a complete internal quality
management system in accordance with 1ISO9001:2015 standards and
relevant laws and regulations. In order to ensure the safety and high
quality of products, the Group monitors and controls key points of
each production process, and has also formulated a series of operating
procedures including the Procedure for Control of Defective Goods, the
Corrective and Preventive Control Procedures and the Data Analysis
Control Programme to provide guidance for standardised production.

uMIEﬂE:H

1SO 9001:2015
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Standard

Certificate Regstr. No.

Certificate Holder:

Validity:

EmEE
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MEBEEE SERERDA BERMAER
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Certificate

1SO 9001:2015
01100 1325217

ETi Solid State Lighting (Zhuhai) Limited
Unified Social Credit Code: 91440400398016318T
Registration Address: Factory #2-2, 18t Period, No.1, Zhongzhu

h Road, Soieoe & Technlogy Innovato Coss,High-Tech
District, Zhuhai City, 519085 Guangdong, P. R. China
Operation Address: Office Buiding #5-2 and mey #5-3, No.1.
Zhongzhu South Road, Science and Technology Innovation Coast,
High-Tech District, Zhuhai City, 519085 Guangdong, P. R. China

Design, Manufacturing and Sales of Light Emitting Diode (LED)
Products, Ultraviolet Luminaries, Air Purifers, Hypochioric Acid
Generators.

Proof has been fumished by means of an audit that the
requirements of ISO 9001:2015 are met.

The certficate is valid from 2023-09-05 unl 2025-09-30.
It remains valid subject to satisfactory surveillance audits.
First certfication 2013

This certficate information can be searched on CNCA official
website hitp:/iwww.cnca.gov.cn

C
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Raw Material
Procurement
Stage
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Supplier
Management
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Product
Production
Stage
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Quality Control
Procedure

Procedure for
Control of Product
Monitoring and
Measurement

Product Labelling
and Traceability

and the Protective
Control Procedure

(B B 3
TAE )
(ERmBEEIRMN
RIEZEHIERF)
(ERIRHMN B
MR B2
)
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Stage
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Procedure
for Control of
Defective Goods
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Quality management standardised operation guidelines
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The Group’s Guangdong Zhuhai Base has compiled a quality manual AKAEBEHELEEMKIEGB/T 19001-
based on GB/T 19001-2016 and set quality targets for 2023. The 20164 B EF MM > W BE|TE 72023452
statistical results are as follows: E8E S ERUNT

Average Results
Monitoring Achieved during

Item Target Value Frequency the Year

FRTH
EH BiZE g R ERER
FQC random inspection of finished product quality index >95 points Monthly 96.48
FQCHiimp mB 2158 >95%) (=95 96.48
IQC incoming material batch qualification rate >98% Monthly 98.12%
IQCHEHHIE RE R X >98% B8R 98.12%
Qualification rate of original acceptance inspection >98% Monthly 99.76%
Em—RAEBE >98% 5A 99.76%
Supplier’'s on-time delivery rate >95% Monthly 98.52%
HEFERTER >95% A 98.52%
Equipment’s failure rate <3 times Monthly 0.00%
B-E(EES 3% A 0.00%
Training achievement rate >95% Monthly 100.00%
B el Rl = >95% A 100.00%
Production plan completion rate >95% Monthly 99.49%
FESTEISTTRE >95% (=95 99.49%
Supplier’s timely sampling rate >95% Monthly 96.54%
MBI R R >95% B8R 96.54%
Prototype on-time delivery rate >90% Monthly 92.04%
BRI IR B 2 A K >90% 5A 92.04%
Completion rate of new product plan >96% Yearly 100.00%
MEMRTEERE >96% SF 100.00%
Completion rate of new product plan >96% Yearly 97.70%
A e B e E >96% gF 97.70%
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Product Quality Certification

We are committed to providing consumers with safer, healthier, and
more environmentally friendly products and services. We have always
implemented a strict quality control system and conscientiously
implemented product safety standardisation work to ensure the quality
and safety of the products we provide. We have currently obtained a
number of national and international product certifications.

Domestic certifications

EilaEdtics

China Compulsory Certification “CCC”
rh = 58 ) 1% 2 SsR a8 CCC

China Quality Certificate “CQC”
BFEEEMRREICQC

CQC Energy Conservation Certification
CQCHiREER

SRRC Radio Transmission Equipment
Certification
SRRCEAR B 5T L HDE

Product certifications

0O 237 22%
EEEIL&ZZE..?

RIE-HHERELRHRS

EmE S5

BRI B HEERBERE BERE
FRENERMIRE —EBTEBNE
BEFAG REXATERZEREALT
B URREHNEREERZ2 KM E
AIERSZEBER K ERRERDE -

International certifications

EIFREREE

American UL Certification
ERULERE

American DCL Certification
E=EDCL:R:E

European Norms Electrical
Certification “ENEC”

BN IR 2 R BB5EENEC

BLEFIZERAIRAT 2023F K
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High-Quality Monitoring SmEEEEN

The quality monitoring work of the Group is led by the Quality ZAEBEHEBSEE I~ H 730 - 53130 F
Management Department, the Technology Department, the Planning 4 E U EINFIESEBEESERH T E-
Department and the Production Department. Through strict KM BBBEEMESER REMNIEELRE
implementation of the quality monitoring process and operating 5| BEZERNEES - EETENE RS
guidelines, the quality monitoring of the whole process is carried out =—fAHE’'EBHEAENREEN -B88
around the quality of incoming materials, production technology, and 1B &0 B o A BRI 45 52 0 38 B S RE R ¢
product quality. The Quality Management Department regularly analysed Z X > UHBRELRESETEAEBENLEE
the monitoring results, identifies problems, and tracks rectifications to BIBHBENEZE-

ensure that product quality is effectively controlled before entering the

warehouse and shipping.

Incoming materials monitoring & #} 58|

e The Quality Control Department and the Technology Department are responsible for the incoming materials monitoring.
Materials that pass the inspection are warehoused for later use, while the defective are handled in accordance with the
Procedure for Control of Defective Goods

s HENRKMEBEERMENIME SERRERHNYEIETAERSR T RHKE (TR RERRER ) EE

e For incoming materials that may probably be accepted but cannot be inspected due to urgent production needs, these
four departments shall work together to properly carry out review, identify and record, and separate semi-finished
products from finished products in movement, so as to recall and replace defective products in the future

e HRNEMEBERABRZHBLEEMARERRATENRE > MELPIE & (EMITF B R IE M08 &4 oo KA G BR R
# L EABRBORERTEIRER

Production process monitoring 4 E B 12 &5 i

* Production process monitoring mainly includes four major parts, being first inspection, self-inspection, special inspection
and in process quality control of the products and the technology, in which different responsible persons carry out
multiple inspections to identify potential problems before a product is finished, as far as possible

e 4EBEBAFESARESNIENER BB ER - KRBEAEHS AFRAEEABETZARR FENALAR
EIE: Sk a2

e Finally, the Quality Control Department performs sampling inspection on the packaged finished products and make a
judgement on the statistical analysis and feedbacks
s EXMBENHEBENMEMBRRERATESRHITNRE

Statistical analysis and feedback 4 &t %t 1 % 83

e The Quality Control Department is responsible for collecting all inspection data to conduct regular quality statistics
and analysis on incoming materials, process and finished products. If any problems identified, the department will
inform responsible departments in a timely manner, and follow up and verify the improvement measures taken by the
responsible departments

e HENMEBWEMBWAEE  EAMERRM VEBRENRENESHARTM DN > #5 HEEE RESMEEIR > LR
it Bns8 BB PIRV L BRI
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Product Recall Procedure FEHaEEEI#E

The Procedure for Control of Defective Goods of the Group sets out the AKEFEFE(AFASHE DILEFHERE) REESYH
control, review and disposal process for defective parts and products, THRERESRFASR RHNIZES I8 &
and clarifies the responsibilities of each responsible department to protect FEERE  UERERARA T TXEaEIHLFIN T

the rights and interests of customers to the greatest extent. RS UBRAKIREMEERE#ID o

For the disposal of unqualified products returned by customers, the quality department organises confirmation and
investigation of the reasons for the failure and the relevant responsible units

HRNBEERETERENEE AnEEHABED BEFRRERBMEEEN

Then the technical department proposes a disposal plan based on the poor condition of the returned products,
which is countersigned by the relevant departments and then handed over to the supply chain
management department for disposal

BRKMEFIKEERERNARRARHEEL R CARSMPERR IHEBEESEE

Returned goods due to customer reasons should be fed back to the marketing center which will
communicate with customers for processing

HERERRALEHNEREREREZEEHDP L HEHPLETFBEBERE

If the product is found defective after the product has been delivered to the customer
(including during transportation) or after the customer has put it into use, the customer shall be notified of the
unqualified information in time and corresponding measures shall be taken

NERERRNHER (GEEHRD AZFFERARHRTERN TSR
BERERIGHREENEE P L REEENEEE

Recall unqualified products when necessary, and the recall of unqualified products shall be carried out
with reference to the Product Recall Control Procedure

VEREFERERBR FERmNAMN2R(ERG EEWNRERF) T

Product recall procedure

N5 1% dn & O] 1

During the year, the Group did not recall products due to safety and HAEE > REBIW RAHKEZ 2 RERIE
health reasons. HEBER-

BLEFIZERAIRAT 2023F K
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Product Marketing and Labelling

The Group’s product label management strictly follows the national
energy efficiency labelling style. Product labels should clarify information
such as product names, specifications, energy efficiency levels, and
safety instructions to help customers quickly understand product
features, usage scenarios, safety precautions, and other usage
precautions. In addition, we promise not to use false advertising
information and will provide consumers with accurate and authentic
products.

Supply Chain Management

Effective supply chain management is critical to maintaining high product
quality and safety standards. The Group gives top priority to supply chain
management, establishes strict access conditions, standardises supplier
development and screening, regularly reviews and evaluates supplier
performance, and timely updates the list of qualified and compliant
suppliers to ensure sound management practices. Suppliers play a vital
role in our sustainability efforts. The Group incorporates sustainable
development elements into supplier management and implements
sustainable development initiatives to improve supply chain performance.

Strict Procurement Standards

In order to standardise the Group’s procurement process of production-
related materials and finished products and thus ensure that the
purchased materials meet the specified requirements, the Group has
formulated and implemented internal systems such as the Supplier
Management System, the Control Procedures for Supplier Management
and the Basic Regulations for Procurement Management. Such systems
clarify the responsibilities of the supply chain management department
and other departments and standardise the supplier management
process, laying the foundation for effective supply chain management. As
of the end of the year, the Group had a total of 792 qualified suppliers, of
which 735 were located in Mainland China, 11 in Hong Kong, China, and
46 in other regions.
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® [ ] o i o [ ]
Supplier Supplier Core and Compilation Supplier
Supplier evaluation contract strategic and performance
and signing and supplier maintenance appraisal and
deﬁvelopmezt 4 admission 4 management 4 .management e e of supplier list 4 management 4
B B i RS Pob BB e 8 (AT
BEEA R HEE HEREEE 4 il B A R EIZEER
o o o [ [ [

Supplier management process

MR & E

The evaluation of new suppliers is a critical part of supplier management.
We classify suppliers according to different types of purchased goods,
and then conduct on-site inspections and document evaluations. If a new
supplier is assessed as qualified, we will consider offering a trial period
of three months. After the trial period is over, the Supplier Management
Department will confirm whether it meets the relevant requirements for
qualified suppliers in the trial period. If yes, these suppliers are included
in the List of Qualified Suppliers which is updated quarterly to the relevant
departments.

Our goal is to establish long-term and stable cooperative relationships
with suppliers to ensure that their production levels and product quality
meet the Group’s requirements. When a supplier is rated as unqualified
in the annual audit, the Group suspends new project cooperation
and gives it a three-month rectification period while preparing for
any possible transfer-order plan by the procurement department. If
the reexamination remains unqualified, the BU Supplier Management
Department fills in the Supplier Elimination Application Form, which is
reviewed by the department head, the Quality Management Department
and the Technology Development Department. After review, the Supplier
Management Department signs the form, and the qualification will be
cancelled once the form is approved by the supply chain head.

MHEENTEEHESEENRARE
DeoHMBERBELRNAIREEETHE
REHHETRSERNEN TG -OR
HMUEENFEERFAGE RMET
BB dRPRA=ZER -ABPERE
HEFEENREIEEETaAABRK
GRHEBNEMER - WRFTE  KHT
MNMeaREEERE) TEFTEEH—RE
HHREERFT

ZPANERRAHEREYIRARENS
FRGE BAREEEKTNEREERE
FEBNER - HRFEBELDPTERST
GRNERE AEBREEFEEMEES
B> WiaF =18 R BYECH - R > SR E
PIR ERBEE -MREBNATEH
BUtIER B R KIER (HEEBAFHE
=) EEFBREASER THmEEES
BRifHEDETEE ERHEBEEL
ETBRE RKOAERMHEREEE AMRE
BOBUHHABMERER-
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RIE-HERELSHRS

e Update of qualified supplier information
to the List of Qualified Suppliers

s FHARHEREEREE(ERERER
C2E o)

Inspection
mE

e Assessment of suppliers in terms of
the qualified and timely delivery rate for
incoming materials, the price rationality
and compatibility

o HHAERMIRE SR REFER B8
SEM KIS EE M EEEETR—
Ziz

Selection

Confirmation

B

e Assessment and rating of suppliers,
such as on-site QSA review, sample
evaluation, social responsibility survey

o BEER TG NETT D TR WMIRG
QSASEE Ml B EERATE

Assessment

Bk

Supplier qualification process

EESTE RIEB T E

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

B 32

e Supplier information review, such
as whether the supplier has RoHS,
REACH related certification and
supplier’s social responsibility
undertaking

s HEMERSEZ NHEEEE
RoHS » REACH#E R3S » Bt &
HEEARRESE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group evaluates suppliers based on the supplier index every month,
and strictly controls the quality of suppliers’ supply through the display
of actual data to ensure the output quality of follow-up products with
high standards. The perfect admission procedure and review process
ensure the fairness and justice of supplier selection, and we also hope
that the cooperative relationship established through this process will be
more long-term and stable. At the same time, the Group also conducts a
timely and strict evaluation mechanism, with the purpose of updating and
eliminating the list of suppliers in a timely manner, so as to ensure that the
production level and product quality of suppliers meet the requirements of
the Group.

O 10 |—e @—o

RIE-HHERELRHRS

FEESARBHEBERETID 2
BERNBERT BRERNHERMHES
HE UUSREZR BREEERED
BE - TEMEABRFNEZBRERRT
HESHENATAE AKCRAEES
EEERBRIBRARERNG FRE% A
LERE B N BB B i KR B B8t
Whl > SERSEMMEAMER L MU
ERHEEENEEKTNEREE/RNW
EREENEXK-

afe )] W\

EREREE [ELER HAHAE TAER
Screening and audit Sample evaluation Assessment during the Elimination and
trial period update

Supplier admission procedure

REBENEF
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RIE-HERELSHRS

In order to establish a more solid partnership with suppliers and better
respond to changing market and industry needs, the Group held the
“Together, We Go Further 2023” Global Supplier Summit from 24 to 25
October 2023. The successful holding of this grand event provided a
platform and opportunity for NVC International and important cooperative
suppliers to jointly discuss industry market trends and deepen
cooperation between both parties.

mnaw % 0059 3 1 0 14 055 g 2 0 23 1 AT L DN SR i‘
i i e [ ; T L

A total of fifteen supplier representatives from all over the world attended
the summit. They demonstrated the advantages of their respective areas
of focus and shared their unique insights and development directions
with senior executives from various regions of the Group, stimulating
new cooperation opportunities and innovation sparks for both parties. A
symposium was also held during the summit, during which the Group’s
global regional business leaders provided an in-depth analysis of the
brand and market profiles of each region.
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Responsible Procurement

The Group takes social responsibility into consideration when selecting
suppliers, and conducts social and environmental responsibility risk
assessments for all suppliers. We request suppliers to fill in the EICC
Social Responsibility Survey Form and sign the Social Responsibility
Pledge, with the aim of urging suppliers to pay attention to corporate
governance and the sustainability of social development and ensuring the
stability and resilience of the Group’s supply chain.

RIE-HHERELRHRS

B

FEERECEHEEEMAREHEDZ
MEBERA — - HMPHEMAHEEET
HERREETRMTMG LERHIER
HR(EICCHEEERER) BE(MHEE
ERES) BEHEESEERHERERE
ERAENTELEROATFEN  URR
AT MIEERRBEMIME

Management Measures on Suppliers’ Social Responsibility

HEBHEEEEERSE

e Establish a social responsibility performance file for suppliers, and maintain evidence and records of evaluation results

and improvement measures

BUMEBRAEEEREER  REHEHFGERNASEROERMCER

e Select suppliers based on their social responsibility performance, and give priority to suppliers with good performance

and willingness to improve

REHREFINHEEERRBNEHER BAEEXRRIFERENENHERS

e All suppliers should sign the Social Responsibility Pledge after receiving an order or contract, and promise to abide by

local labour regulations and industry standards

PREHEERIEXNCRTRERELEEERES KRB TEMS B ZAMITERE

e The production department should arrange an on-site audit for suppliers at least once a year to evaluate the supplier’s
social responsibility performance and follow up on improvement measures

TERSEFEELZH —REBERSER FEEHEBLEEERET RENSHERT

e Existing suppliers who intentionally use child labour, forced labour or other violations of labour laws and regulations shall

be immediately terminated from the partnership

ZRAHBHNEEAEL REFHHHAMERFHEZRNRER > U LSFRAH

In order to respond to China’s “Double Carbon” goal and meet
customers’ expectations for environmental protection, the Group fully
considers the environmental performance and efficiency of suppliers in
supply chain management, and gives priority to environmentally friendly
products and services. This will balance economic and environmental
benefits and promote green procurement. We request our suppliers
of important production materials to have ISO9001, RoHS and 3C
certificates etc. to help us understand their management level at the
environmental and social aspects. We also request our suppliers to
strictly manage the chemicals in their products and work with them in
terms of energy and water conservation to reduce the negative impact
of their operations on the environment. We will consider cancelling
suppliers who are punished by administrative organs of the government
for violating relevant social responsibilities.

AEBTHESBEEDR RS EREMHERSHN
BRERBMNG  UWESEXNERH B1E
WHEEPHRFNEHEE - HME L EE
BERGTNERMRE I RELE N &
MERBEW @ HIGERE - HNIEHEE
SEMYRBNHERS HMEERMMAERH
ISO9001 ~RoHS~3CHEHRAAE » LLE B
HATGEMEERENTEEIEFEHK
FoRFFRMEXRMPEEBRSEEESRT
MWIEEYE > mEMMERE DRI
KEFEHRBREBEEEHRENEETZE - H
RREXBETEETMS R BATITEE
ESNMHER AMPBEEBEIHESGK
HERER -
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IR ERERHRS

Anti-corruption

The Group has always insisted on creating and advocating a corporate
culture of integrity and justice, and does not accept any form of
corruption or bribery. We understand the importance of maintaining
a fair, transparent and honest business environment for sustainable
development. We adopt a “zero tolerance” attitude towards all illegal
activities and resolutely oppose any form of corruption. To this end, we
have established a sound anti-corruption system and implemented strict
compliance measures.

Anti-corruption Initiatives

The Group adopts various measures to eliminate unfair business
practices. In addition to strictly abiding by all anti-corruption laws and
regulations, in order to standardise relevant management, the Group
has formulated a series of anti-corruption systems such as the Anti-
fraud Management System and the Regulations on Incorrupt Practices,
requiring every employee to strictly abide by business ethics and sign
the Integrity and Self-discipline Undertaking to avoid any direct or
indirect forms of bribery, corruption, money laundering, embezzlement
of public funds and unfair competition that violate professional ethics. In
response to the potential risks of fraud, we conduct an assessment of the
importance and possibility every year, and then formulate and implement
corresponding risk control measures based on the assessment results,
including but not limited to providing ethics education and training,
strengthening document system constraints, etc.
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Whistleblower Mechanism

In order to effectively improve and implement the Group’s supervision of
illegal activities such as corruption and bribery, the Group has established
a “four-in-one (i.e. letters, visits, calls and the Internet)” reporting and
complaint mechanism, and has clarified the operating procedures of the
mechanism. Firstly, through the various channels we have established,
we encourage all employees and stakeholders with direct or indirect
business relationships with us to report the corruption discovered with
the aim of severely cracking down on the growth of corruption. After
receiving reports and complaints, the Audit and Risk Control Department
will investigate relevant and potential commercial violations and report
the results to the Board of Directors or chairman. If an employee is found
to have violated relevant regulations, he/she is subject to disciplinary
actions, including dismissal, demotion and position transfer, by the Board
of Directors based on relevant regulations. If an employee is found to
have violated criminal law, such a case is transferred to judicial authorities
for handling.

RIE-HHERELRHRS

B

/TBUZENBERATDNHBREBED
EEPNEE AEBRERIIKE K
PRE ~ HEAS T fU — B2 RO IRICERS > 10
BIRE T MBI ETRE Bk BERIN
TREE RAXBEREIUREARM
EERUBEEFRAENTN B/ HE
BRNEBTRETRE®R RETBENIT
MERE  FRBIBERRFE > BHRAES
FIERBEEMEBEENBEEERTRHETH
B UREFERLIBREEFTEAEETR
EETHERTANMER  EFERIK
BARBAREASTED » S5 B - (AR
MERE BLTRENBESENERE
Eo

The whistleblower reports the corruption event via various

channels

HBEALTBBSRESREBTEN

The Audit and Risk Control Department
investigates the event and collects evidence

EitAESETRENE

After confirming violations, they will be dealt with
in accordance with relevant regulations

RERTARKEEMRETURE

When necessary, a special investigation team is established,
and external expert is invited to support the investigation

VERRI RSN BEEMNDER GBI RE

Anti-corruption reporting process

REBFRREETIE
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IR ERERHRS

Integrity Culture Training

In order to strengthen the business ethics awareness of all employees,
deepen the core values of integrity and honesty of the Group and
implement the construction of the management system, we conduct
integrity publicity and education for all employees and the Board, and
publish and publicise relevant institutional documents for integrity
through OA channels. During the year, we continued to carry out integrity
education and training for all employees, and 100% of the employees of
the Group participated in such training.

Responsibility to Customers

The Group puts the health and safety of its customers first and strictly
controls the quality of product raw materials to eliminate the possibility
of harmful substances adversely affecting customers’ health from the
source. We aim to improve customer satisfaction, respect customers’
feedback and respond to their needs in a timely manner in a bid to create
maximum value for customers with excellent products and services.
Among the 2023 quality targets set by the Group’s Guangdong Zhuhai
base, the statistical results regarding customers’ quality targets are as
follows:

EEFEFEXACE

ABRLE2EETINBEEBZEH  FEA
EENTEEHERZOEEENZESER
BREXZR BRMERE2BEINERSETT
FZ2EEHE BIBOARBERMIL A RE
BREMEBAFEXH AFEE > HMBER

AREESTHERERASI £EAT
BEZTIEI00% -
EREE

FEBRBERFNERAZEZEREMU &
RIEZEERRMHNEE  KREALES
EMEHEFRBEERN AN ER AR
M- HAURARTRFREERBR EEE
PRETRERBHEER LEEHE®M
HERBAERAERREE EEAEEE
R BEME EN2023FEEERFF
FRERFNEEERMAEROT ¢

Average Results

Monitoring Achieved during

Item Target Value Frequency the Year
ERTHY

EHE BiZE BEPESAER ERsER
Qualification rate of customer inspection batches >99% Monthly 100.00%
EEREHREEE >99% A 100.00%
Customer complaint rate <1.5% Monthly 0.38%
EEER e <1.5% (=95 0.38%
Customer satisfaction >90 points Yearly 90
BEERRE 29049} B5F 90
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Customer Satisfaction

The Group actively builds customer communication channels and assigns
special personnel to manage customer complaint hotlines and mailboxes
to collect customers’ opinions and understand customers’ needs. We
regularly sort out and integrate information on new products and services,
so that customers can obtain accurate and sufficient product information
directly on the Group’s official website anytime, anywhere. In addition, we
have established the Customer Satisfaction Measurement and Evaluation
Procedures and the Stakeholder Satisfaction Survey Control Procedures
to standardise the satisfaction survey.

R ERERHRS

ERRRE

AEBRBEZERPERRE BIKEA

E“ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬂ?&ﬂm’uW%%
FERLEBESER -RNCHYHE
mEBRFERETHRERS  UXKER
BREBENEETASEEREESERAR
THERER I ZEBERI(ER
mEEAEFERER)M(NaEREmE
EREZEFRER) UREREEREILF
BYETT -

Assess the reliability of the survey according
to the response rate

EER SRR R BB A (5

-+

Understand customers with the highest and
lowest satisfaction according to the score
assigned by customers

RERTERI THAEERSRRENER

-+

Confirm key
targets and projects
for customer service

improvement

BENEERRBIME
WEHRBRKRIER

Learn specific projects with the highest and
lowest satisfaction according to the scores
assigned to projects

REEFDTRAEERSRRENARER

Customer satisfaction survey mechanism

EFmEEAE T FES
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RIE-HERELSHRS

Customer Complaint Mechanism

In order to effectively handle customer complaints, take corrective
measures in a timely manner, and ensure product quality and service
reputation, the Group has compiled the After-sales Claims Settlement
Process and Policy, which sets out the internal after-sales service
management process to ensure the stable and efficient operation of after-
sales services. In addition, we regularly record and count the problematic
products recorded to continuously improve product quality and service
quality. During the year, the Group received a total of 106 complaints,
and resolved them based on the procedures for 100% of the complaining
customers.

In order to support customers in providing opinions and suggestions on
products and services through telephone, Internet, customer satisfaction
surveys and other channels, the Group has set up the Customer
Complaint Handling Procedures. Customer Service Department, Quality
Department, Technology Department, Supply Chain Management
Department and other related departments and suppliers perform their
respective duties and assist each other to jointly resolve customer
complaints. For major customer complaints, the Group responds to
customers within 4 hours, completes containment measures within 24
hours and completes 8D (Eight Disciplines Problem Solving) reports
within 3 working days.

Customer Privacy Protection

The Group strengthens the standardisation of the collection, review,
maintenance and management of customer-related information
and comprehensively safeguards customer privacy rights. We have
incorporated the detailed rules for customer privacy protection into
contracts, further clarified customer information security protection details
in employment contracts and employee handbooks, and made clear
requirements for employees to protect customer privacy. We require any
employee not to disclose the customer’s personal information to third
parties without the customer’s consent. All employees must strictly abide
by the data privacy policy, and any violation of data confidentiality is
strictly prohibited.

Community Engagement

The Group understands that community engagement is an important
part of corporate social responsibility. By actively participating in and
supporting local communities, companies can build long-term and stable
relationships. In the future, the Group will continue to act in a socially
responsible manner and as a good corporate citizen, develop harmonious
community relations and contribute to social development by participating
in and supporting local communities.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

=R R F

FEEFET(EREBRERBER) » X
B EEE P &I R R E A IE 5
WMmEFRERmEMRBEE HBERT
NEERRBEERE EMRESFER
MERRS TIERNREMN S BEE- L5
BRPERERENEEERETLHRNSR
O UFENEERRENRBEE -F
W AEBHWEN06RKRS  LHERR
MEHFTARFETER EE100%09 7
RE o

REFERFABHE -EE - ERREER
EEREREERMERBNEREES
AEERB(EREHRFBIERER) - ZE M
BREER - REP RN HEREIE
B EMAERMSMEEEE S EE
LWHEEHBE ERBARFKRHFHEEH
RERFEERHES: AEBEBE4NERESY
ZE> 24/NEFRSERE BB W HR3ET
{EH W52 8D(Eight Disciplines Problem
Solving)¥R & o

EREFRE

AEBRMBREZFEREENRE &
R EENEETHF 2L UEETRRRL
B RAREFRALREMABNBASH
PN ERBEORETIFMPE D
EEREEZ2REMS HEIRER
FRIAFHBAEEXR EMETERART
ERAANBENBERT AEAE=Z1R
BEREAGRE  EIABRRETHER
PR BRFHEMERBBERENT
%O

HESH

AEFEROHESERTERITHEER
NWEZERRED BREBEBSEANFE
it EEAURIRABERNRG X
ROAERREBUEHEEEEN AR
R —BREFEEARITSE ERERMHEM
ERfF TEBSRRXFEMLE BN
HEEE-



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Laws and Regulations

The Group establishes and implements internal policies related to
the environment, society and governance to ensure that its business
operations comply with applicable laws and regulations. The table below

lists the relevant laws and regulations:

R ERERHRS

ARRER

FEERIABITRIE -HERERER
AR BEXHEEBBEEANZE
BER - TRINLBRERER !

Aspect Applicable laws and regulations Compliance
BmE BRANEERER ARER
Resource e FEnergy Conservation Law of the During the year, there was no case of non-compliance with

consumption

People’s Republic of China

(PEARAEMBEHABERE)

relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the
Group relating to resource consumption. In addition, there were
no issues in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose.
FRoAERTREMNERBHEEREAEHAERSEHNERT
BHEBEREE M REBERKREBEA AR ERFEER
& o

BIRFEA J
Emissions o
BER .

Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China

Water Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China

Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Wastes
(FREARAEMBARRISEEAZE)
(FREAREMBKSERIEAEE)
(FREARAENBEE B RS HIR
iRB)S/D/£>>

During the year, there was no case of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on
the Group relating to exhaust and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and the generation of hazardous
or non-hazardous waste.

FRN AERTETOERBBERKORERBEHN MK L
M SR ESUBSERYNEEERNEAEBENERTENE
BEREH

Environment and e
natural resources

BRIERRXAER

Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China

«EPEAEEH\:*DI%in \Dx/£>>

During the year, there was no case of non-compliance with

relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the

Group relating to the environment and natural resources.

EW AEFTRAMNERBARERRAEREHAEREN
FENERERER

Employment and e
labour standards

EFERETEL

Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China

Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China

Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Minors
Provisions on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labour

(PEARAMBASZEZE)
(PEAREMBEHSHERE)
(REARHEMBRBFEAREZE)
(BIEEREIRE)

During the year, there were no instances of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the
Group relating to remuneration and dismissal, recruitment, and
promotion, working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other treatment and benefits.

During the year, there was no case of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the
Group relating to the prevention of child and forced labour, and
there was no reported case regarding child and forced labour.
FRoAEEREINERERAFNLER BREEREA  TEE
B FEREE 2t REBUREMGERET BHA
ERBEAFENEREZEERERT

FRAEEETOUERARPLEET RaH S T AN AERE
MERZENEZRERER TEABET KAHSE TEZR-
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RIE-HERELSHRS

Aspect Applicable laws and regulations

=T BRERRZER

Compliance

FHRIER

Health and safetye Work Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China
e Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases
REEZS o (FEARHEMEZZEEE)
o (PEAREMBEBERNBRED

During the year, there was no case of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which had a significant impact on
the Group relating to providing a safe workplace and protecting
employees from occupational hazards, and there was no reported
case regarding work-related fatalities or occupational diseases.
FRoAERBIAEREBARRZEBREMRREEEER R
HEBEEHAEREMEAXENEZEERET MEEIE
T ZERNEZE-

Product e Patent Law of the People’s Republic
responsibility of China
e Product Quality Law of the People’s
Republic of China
e Tort Law of the People’s Republic of

China
EmEf o (FEARHJMBERNE)

o (FEARHANEEREEZE)
o (PEAREMBFEEEEE)

During the year, there were no products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons

The Group was not involved in any litigation related to the
infringement of intellectual property rights during the year.

During the year, the Group was not aware of incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations regarding health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy issues and remedies for the
products and services provided.
FRAERRBFLIAL2ERREHMBEERKRESEXEEER
B E M °

FPy o AER IR AR E R ICK # E A R FR

FR AERBTANEEARMRRERRRBNBREZE B
ERBRAREEURMBR S ENBTERRERNE-

Anti-corruption e Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China
e Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China
R&5 o (HEAREMEMZED
e (PEARHENMBERAESHEFEE)

During the year, there was no case of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the
Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering,
and the Group was not involved in any corruption cases.

FR-AEEREINERBABR -HRE -FFFERERBZEH K
EEEBEATENHMEEREAREE  TRIREFNEEE

25
%o
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Performance Data Summary

Environmental Data

RIE-HHERELRHRS

HIERERE
TR 4

2022

Resources consumption

Electricity (kWh)

Petrol (Litre)

Diesel (Litre)

Natural gas (m?3)

Total energy consumption (GJ)

Total energy intensity (GJ/thousand US$
revenue)*

Tap water (Tonne)

Water consumption intensity (Tonne/thousand
US$ revenue)®

Greenhouse gas emissions
Total emissions (tCOze)
Direct emission (scope 1) (tCO2e)

Indirect emission (scope 2) (tCO2¢)

Emission intensity (tCO2e/thousand
US$ revenue)®

Exhaust gas pollutants
Nitrogen oxides (Tonne)
Sulphur oxides (Tonne)

Smoke and dust (Tonne)

Wastewater pollutants
Chemical oxygen demand (Tonne)
Ammonia — Nitrogen (Tonne)

HIRHFE

BH(E/ TR

Aol (2 )

ol (2 )

RAR (LK)

FERHFEREE (TIKEE)

MEEREE (FIEE/
TETTEER

EPY ONI)

FKEE (AW, FrRExam

BEREHR

BYWE (RE_ERES)

RN EE—)
(R | EHRES)

BEm EE )
(R ERES)

BFREE (AM_SEREE

TIETTEEER) O

BE R R
Y (AN
ety (R
B EE (R1E)

BEKBHY)
{EEREE (AN
28 (2F)

4 Density units in 2022 are presented in "GJ/thousand RMB revenue"  *

e Density units in 2022 are presented in "Tonne/thousand RMB  °
revenue”

e Density units in 2022 are presented in "tCO2e/thousand RMB  ©
revenue"

27,576,733 26,316,486
41,869 41,831
17,292 17,180

101,230 96,688
0.4290 0.0512
197,340 173,862
0.8363 0.0921
15,884 15,161
157 163
15,727 15,008
0.0673 0.0080
0.2963 0.2318
0.0009 0.0007
0.3214 0.5044
0.08 0.33

- 0.10

022 BEBMUITIEE, /TITAR
e 22 RE 151 ¥R

2022EREBMUIAM T ARKE
ESENRIE

2020 BEBMUTAB_GILRESE
FrARKEZELE 53R
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RIE-HERELSHRS

Hazardous waste

Total amount of hazardous waste generated
(Tonne)

Waste oil (Tonne)

Sludge residuals (Tonne)

Packages for waste mineral oil (Tonne)

Oily wastewater (Tonne)

Waste packaging drums (Tonne)

Waste lamp tubes (Tonne)

Activated carbon (Tonne)

Waste circuit boards (Tonne)

Others’ (Tonne)

Non-hazardous waste

Total amount of non-hazardous waste
generated (Tonne)

Recycled waste (Tonne)

Non-recyclable waste (Tonne)

Consumption of packaging materials
Total amount of packaging materials (Tonne)
Plastic bags (Tonne)

Colour boxes (Tonne)

Paper boxes (Tonne)

Labels (Tonne)

Others (Tonne)

I Washing waste liquid

BEEEEY
BEEEEYBE (R

BESH (A 0)

FIERISJE (ANE)
BEEREY R (RH)
2MEEK (A NE)
BEELEEE (R MR)
BEEE (2HF)

MR (R HE)

FEEE B RRAR (AN
Hh (2 0g)

—REEEY
—RREEEYBE (R

Bl E (ANE)
REUE (ANE)

BEMBERE
BEMEHES (ANE)
BRR (1)

Fa (RH)

ALAE (AR
RE (A0
H A (A )
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13.22
0.01

0.50
0.05
1.06
2.59
9.00
0.01

1,020
542
478

22,538
82
2,857
19,540

50

2022

F

934
560
374

27,672
67
2,889
24,590

21
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RIE-HHERELRHRS

BT

2022

|

Total number of employees
Gender distribution

Male

Female

Functional distribution
Management

Front-line

Age distribution

<30

30-50

> 50

Regional distribution
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Overseas

Employment type distribution
Full-time

Part-time

Contract type distribution
Long-term contract
Fixed-term contract
Educational distribution
Doctor’s degree

Master’s degree

Bachelor’s degree

College degree

Below college degree

Turnover - by age

Number of employees lost

<30

30-50

> 50

Quarterly average turnover rate
<30

30-50

> 50

WA
%553
B

2z
BEAE Y R
(=gl

FIESS
FHeD M
<30

30-50

> 50
& 53
A 3

G

iSDIN
BEEE DM
2

O
ERER DM
REEME
BEHERE
BEDM
B+

[zl

i

KE
RELF

MERBER-—RER

mERANE
<30
30-50

> 50

FEFIYREE

<30
30-50
> 50

1,967 2,246
734 835
1,233 1,411
288 501
1,679 1,745
310 309
1,451 1,723
206 214
1,532 1,925
0 8

435 313
1,967 2,246
478 480
1,489 1,766
17 24
224 278
268 294
1,458 1,650
323 563
535 856
58 115
26.05% 45.55%
9.22% 12.42%
7.04% 13.43%
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Turnover - by region

Number of employees lost
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Overseas

Quarterly average turnover rate
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Overseas

Turnover - by gender

Number of employees lost
Male

Female

Quarterly average turnover rate
Male

Female

New hire - by age

Number of new employees

<30

30-50

> 50

Quarterly average new hire rate
<30

30-50

> 50

New hire - by region

Number of new employees
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Overseas

Quarterly average new hire rate
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Overseas

MEBERL-—FME
MERAH

Rl

N

o
FEFREE
A

b

i=El

MKRER - ER
MEAH

ey

2k
FEFIYREE
e

2t

WIBEEE R —RER
EIUNE PN

<30

30-50

> 50
FETFHMARE
<30

30-50

> 50

MIZRBEL-#tE
MABAZ

A

b

=2l
FETOMARE
R

R

o
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655
0
261

10.69%

15.00%

357
559

12.16%
11.33%

339
302

49
27.34%

5.20%
5.95%

355

335

5.79%

19.25%

1,231
1
302

15.99%
3.13%
24.12%

843
691

25.24%
12.24%

303
462
29

24.51%

6.70%
3.39%

650
143
8.44%

3.13%
11.42%
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RIE-HHERELRHRS

New hire - by gender

Number of new employees
Male

Female

Quarterly average new hire rate
Male

Female

Training performance - by gender
Total number of employees trained
Male

Female

Percentage of employees trained
Male

Female

Total training hours

Male

Female

Average training hours

Male

Female

Training performance - by function
Total number of employees trained
Management

Front-line

Percentage of employees trained
Management

Front-line

Total training hours

Management

Front-line

Average training hours
Management

Front-line

Occupational safety and health training®

Total training person-time
Total training hours

HERER -
MABAB

e

2k
FEFIHARE
St

o

EINERE TR — R R
RNBAH
St

oy
RiBESLE
St

2k
3 4B B 2
Bk

2k

192 5B 2L
St

e

1 ANAER G — R B AE
RNBAZ

BIiE

IES

ZiESL

EIiE

EIESS

Z 48 I 88

BiE

AR

T 39 52 31 B 25

gig

A 43
BEZAEEEIe
BIBmAR
B3I 4B B 8L

e The data of occupational safety and health training covers data

of Zhejiang Jiangshan Base, Shanghai Qingpu Base, Guangdong
Zhuhai Base, Thailand Base and Vietnam NVC

8

295
395

10.05%
8.01%

646
979

88.01%
79.40%

7,260
12,402

11.24
12.67

139
1,486

48.26%
88.51%

1,578
18,084

11.35
12.17

3,618
9,785

2022

474
320

14.19%
5.67%

577
1,123

69.10%
79.59%

11,269
18,131

13.50
12.85

310
1,390

61.88%
79.66%

8,574
20,826

17.11
11.93

2,665
7,507

BEZEREBIHEERENIDILRE
e EEEHEM ERHTEEM  REE

i e iR B L RO B
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Operational Data EIE e

-:EI 2022
Total number of suppliers Y EEEE / Ed 792 793
Regional distribution & 5
Hong Kong EEHE / ER 11 15
Mainland China A B oA B / Ed 735 742
Other regions Hihth@ / Ed 46 36
Community engagement HtESH
Public welfare investment UNE PN RMB10,000 &7t - 60

Hours of voluntary work

Content Index

Aspect
=]

EETIERE Hour N

RER3I

Requirements of HKEx’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide

ERMZF(RE - ERERIRIESIVER

Section/Remark

B8 e

Governance
Structure

A statement from the board containing the following elements:
(i) a disclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;

(if) the board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and manage
material ESG-related issues (including risks to the issuer’s
businesses); and how the board reviews progress made
against ESG-related goals and targets with an explanation of
how they relate to the issuer’s businesses.

EFZELHNEBREIUTRE
(i) REEFEHRRE HEREAFENEE

(i EEENRE - HEREREESHREE  QERNTGE
BEEZRKEEEARE HERELEBAEE (QEHET
AEBHER BRE  REFRUARERE - HERER
HAERETER URBHEEIT AEBNRERG

Board Statement

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report
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Requirements of HKEx’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide

BRI (RE - HEREBRIESDER

Section/Remark

B

Reporting Principles

BERA

A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the following

Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG report:

(@) Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process
to identify and the criteria for the selection of material ESG
factors; (i) if a stakeholder engagement is conducted, a
description of significant stakeholders identified, and the
process and results of the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.

(b) Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used, and source of
conversion factors used, for the reporting of emissions/energy
consumption (where applicable) should be disclosed.

(c) Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any
changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant
factors affecting a meaningful comparison.

HUTHRERNTFERIRIE L ERERRSE P OE R
X

(a) EN RE - HEREARSEEE (HIERRE TS
RERFARNBEMNEZRE HINREETHEMNESE B
B BENFHERAREBETAFTNHESENBREMNER

(b) Bt ERERIRE FERER B A NRE - HE R’
B ETRUKRMERANERABIRNES

(© —RETABRTRRE - HEAREABRSPRER HE
FRARERIERNEE > EFNEMTEE SR LRAER

Reporting Guideline and
Principle

HEIESI RRE]

Reporting Boundary

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and
describing the process used to identify which entities or operations
are included in the ESG report. If there is a change in the scope, the
issuer should explain the difference and reason for the change.
RPRE - HEREARSHNREER TN POEN L BB 2R
MARB - HEREARENARRE EERBEZ LS BITAR
FRIERR 2 B R EHFEEA -

Reporting Boundary and
Reporting Period

BREBEREREH
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GRI
Materiality Indicators ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
BEMSE GRI3E1Z ESG#55| it =30
General
Disclosure
—MRiRE
The Organisation 2-1 - Organisational details Annual Report — Company
and Its Reporting ABBFARBNR Profile
Practices FR—RBNL
AR R HLIR S0
BRRH S A 2-2 - Entities included in the organisations’s Reporting Boundary and
sustainability reporting Reporting Period
MAMBEPIREERRENER WEBERBRSH
2-3 - Reporting period, frequency and contact Reporting Boundary and
point Reporting Period
HREMREEEMBEA R0 B K iR S A
2-4 - Restatements of information No restatement
EREI mEM
2-5 - External assurance No external assurance
ShEREESE sought yet
m o sy
Activities And 2-6 B5.1 Activities, value chain and other business Annual Report — Report of
Workers B5.2 relationships Directors
EEMI(EE EEBEENEMEREREG Supply Chain Management
FR-EBEERS
HIEREEE
2-7 B1.1 Employees Employee Composition
BT BT/
2-8 B1.1 Workers who are not employees Employee Composition

BT ZTIIEE

BT
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R ERERHRS

GRI
Materiality Indicators Description Section/Remark
BEMSE GRIEZ Ei:pan =30 §
Governance 2-9 Governance structure and composition Annual Report-Corporate
=P} BEARBEANAMR Governance Report
NN SN EE A
2-10 Nomination and selection of the highest FR-EREARS
governance body
REERMEIIE AN
2-11 Chair of the highest governance body
EEBEAKBNER
2-12 Role of the highest governance body in Board Statement
overseeing the management of impacts EEgEH
HEBREFE B S ARBNEEE
5
2-18 Delegation of responsibility for managing Annual Report- Corporate
impacts Governance Report
RHEEBERXENSTER FR-—GEEB/RS
2-14 Role of the highest governance body in Board Statement
sustainability reporting EEgEH
ERBEAMBRENREERRETNIER
2-15 Conflicts of interest Annual Report- Corporate
F) & Governance Report
FR-GEEBRS
2-16 Communication of critical concerns Materiality Identification
EEMUIBENES HBEEMEE
2-17 Collective knowledge of the highest Board Statement
governance body E=gE8H
R BAKBHNER A H
2-18 Evaluation of the performance of the Annual Report-Corporate
highest governance body Governance Report —
i = B A M AR TS Remuneration Committee
. . FR-—GEEB/RS
2-19 Remuneration policies e oy
- = —#NEESR
Hr BN EUR
2-20 Process to determine remuneration
mEEFHMERX
2-21 Annual total remuneration ratio

R RF N LR
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RIE-HERELSHRS

GRI
Materiality Indicators ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
BEMSE GRI3E1Z ESG#55| it EH
Strategy, Policies 2-22 - Statement on sustainable development Sustainability
and Practices strategy Management
RS BRI BB RN A5 R EERAVER B AIEEREIE
2-23 - Policy commitments Sustainability
B R AR Management,
Environmental Protection,
Cherishing Talents,
Excellence in Operations,
Responsibility to
Customers
ARFELEREE - RIER
HERAT SHEE
BEREAR
2-24 - Embedding policy commitments Cherishing Talents
MEHERA BRAT
2-25 - Processes to remediate negative impacts Customer Complaint
mHRamrZ2niER Mechanism
= T3 2] |
2-26 - Mechanisms for seeking advice and B RS
raising concerns
= REZE MR H B0 5
2-27 - Compliance with laws and regulations No major violations
BRERER BEREHRSEN
2-28 - Membership associations Sustainability
HENREEE Management
AFEERERE
Stakeholder 2-29 = Approach to stakeholder engagement Materiality Identification
Engagement MEmAEBB2RNE A HPBE M EE
1| 25 208
AR 2R 2-30 - Collective bargaining agreements Not applicable for the
EBRABE places of operation, and
abide by relevant laws
and regulations
EETEMAER
EFIERBDARER
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GRI
Materiality Indicators ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
BEMSE GRI3E1Z ESG#55I Ei:pan =30 §
Material Topics
BEHM4EE
Waste, Exhaust 305-1 A1 Information on: Environmental Protection
and Wastewater 306 (a) the policies; and RIGRE
Management 307-1 (b) compliance with relevant laws and
EEEY) - EEEM regulations that have a significant
EEKEIR impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
BRBERAAERBER S MK R T #B
B AERBEEEEYNELEN
(a) BE; &
(b) BTITHEBETABEARTENER
FERRFRANER
305-1 Al.1 The types of emissions and respective Emission Control,
305-2 emissions data Performance Data
305-3 BER TR 48 I B R BE I B Summary
305-6 BEmUES - BiERREE
305-7
305-1 Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect Tackling Climate Change,
305-2 (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in Performance Data
305-4 tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity Summary
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per RS mIEEME -~ BURRIR
facility) B
BERBEHERE CLIAMESHE) &k (W8
B ZE USESEMN SELHEE)
306-3 A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in Emission Control,
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity Performance Data
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per Summary
facility) BEmUES  IERREE
FRESXBESBREMEE UAMESE) &
WER) ZE MUSES8E A 518X
st &)
306-3 Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in Emission Control,
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity Performance Data
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per Summary
facility) BEmUES  BIERREE
FREEREEEMMEE UAMESE) &
WER) ZE MUSESE A -§ER
st &)
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GRI
Materiality Indicators ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
BEMSE GRI3E1Z ESG#55| it EH
305-5 A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and Environmental Protection
steps taken to achieve them BB (F#E
MR AR ENETERAIFAR -
306-4 A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Emission Control
306-5 hazardous wastes are handled, and a BERZE
description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them
HIEERERBEEEYMN G ZE R
ELXESNEHEKRFEHR
Energy 302 A2 Policies on the efficient use of resources, Environmental Protection
Management including energy, water and other raw BB {RE
BEREIE materials
BRERER (BFER  KREMEM
K N
302-1 A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption Tackling Climate Change,
302-3 by type (e.g. electricity, gas or ail) in total Performance Data
(kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit Summary
of production volume, per facility) RS mREME -~ BURKRIR
BRI SNERER HEEER (0 BE
Bmivh) @FEE U TETRFRE) &
BE MUSESEE( SEREFE)
303-5 A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity Water Consumption,
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per Performance Data
facility) Summary
BEKERTBE USESEMN -§EHRE KERFER - BIBRR
st &) BE
302-4 A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Environmental Protection
302-5 target(s) set and steps taken to achieve IRIGRE
them
AR E A st B KR PTG AR
303-1 A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue Water Consumption
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, KERFER
water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them
i SKEE AR KR LB BRI RIRE » MUK
A K 5t 5T B R PTG AL R
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Consumption of

products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced

S P AEEMENEE U AMEEE)
RNBER SEEBUGLE

Packaging Materials
BEMEHFER
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GRI
Materiality Indicators ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
BEMASE GRI3E1Z ESG#55I iz =30 §
Supply Chain = B5 Policies on managing environmental and Supply Chain
Management social risks of the supply chain Management
HEHEEIE BIRHAERNIRIE R g RBER HEEEEIE
- B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Supply Chain
region Management,
i 8o EEmEE Performance Data
Summary
HEEEEIE  BIERIR
me
303-1 B5.2 Description of practices relating Supply Chain
308-1 to engaging suppliers, number of Management
308-2 suppliers where the practices are HEEESE
414-1 being implemented, and how they are
414-2 implemented and monitored
HM AR A EERNES mERITE
RABRIR RS E ~ U B RIEANH
TRERF*
303-1 B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Supply Chain
308-1 environmental and social risks along Management
308-2 the supply chain, and how they are HEREE
414-1 implemented and monitored
414-2 A R HE R RS AR NIRIE Rt
ERMBNVIES > LU ERAMIT RER A %
306 B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Supply Chain
308 environmentally preferable products and Management
services when selecting suppliers, and HEESE

how they are implemented and monitored
T REHESREELHARFED KR
ARFERIE R > U AAERAMAT R B A
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GRI
Materiality Indicators ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
BEMSE GRI3E1Z ESG#55| it EH
Customer 416-2 B6 Information on: Responsibility to
Satisfaction 417-2 (@) the policies; and Customers
EERERE 417-3 (b) compliance with relevant laws and EREME
418-1 regulations that have a significant
419-1 impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and
methods of redress
BRMREHERMRBNEREAZS B
ERERIREEUARBR G EDN
(@) BE &
(b) ETFHBITABEALENERE
EERRAINE K
418-1 B6.2 Number of products and service-related Customer Complaint
complaints received and how they are Mechanism
dealt with B R E RS
BERNERRIRBIRFHE UK ES
7%
404-1 B6.5 Description of consumer data protection Customer Privacy
418 and privacy policies, and how they are Protection
implemented and monitored BREM(RE

N & & B RHRIE RAARER - Uk
RITRERTZE
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GRI
Materiality Indicators ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
BEMASE GRI3E1Z ESG#55I Ei:pan =30 §
Product and 416-2 B6 Information on: Product Responsibility
Service Quality 417-2 (a) the policies; and EmEE
Management 417-3 (b) compliance with relevant laws and
o R AR 418-1 regulations that have a significant
=gl 419-1 impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and
methods of redress
BRMMRHERMRBNERRAZE B
EFRERREEUARBRH A EDN
(@) BE &
(o) ETFHBTABEAZENERH
EERROINE R
- B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Product Recall Procedure
shipped subject to recalls for safety and REEmA B
health reasons
EERCEXERRY PR L2 EEEE
HEmARWNE 2
418-1 B6.2 Number of products and service-related Customer Complaint
complaints received and how they are Mechanism
dealt with BRI
FBERN E R R ARFB IR B MUK S
WAl
S B6.3 Description of practices relating to Intellectual Property
observing and protecting intellectual Rights Protection
property rights H#HERERE
e B A SR R IR PR A 5 EE R B RE BV 1B A
- B6.4 Description of quality assurance process Product Recall Procedure
and recall procedures e mA Bl
HiEERTEBRERERCKRER
418 B6.5 Description of consumer data protection Customer Privacy
and privacy policies, and how they are Protection
implemented and monitored BEEM(RE
it H B B BRI R AARRER » MUK A8
RARITRERF &
Research and - B6.3 Description of practices relating to Intellectual Property

Development,
and Intellectual
Property Rights
B 82 R A 38 E 4

observing and protecting intellectual
property rights
e B A R R R PR K 38 EE R R RE RV IB I o

Rights Protection
FNGH E R R

Economic Benefits
e

Sustainability
Management
OREEREE
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:A $E£t

RIS g

GRI
Materiality Indicators ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
BEMAE GRI51E ESG#55| it EH
Other Topics
Hith:& 8
Environmental
RIg
The Environment S A3 Policies on minimising the issuer’s Ecological Environment
and Natural significant impacts on the environment Conservation
Resources and natural resources SCRIRIG(RE
IRBERRAEIR BREBEBTAHBRRERRAERENERTE
LR
303-1 A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of
304-2 A3.1 activities on the environment and natural
306-2 resources and the actions taken to
manage them
HAEBESHIRERRABERNEARR
ERERNERARBTENTH
Climate Change - A4 Policies on identification and mitigation Tackling Climate Change
RIEE1E of significant climate-related issues which FEH RIZEE
have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer
A REHERROEGHETAELER
ENEARGEBASEHBER
- Ad.1 Description of the significant climate-

related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them

HIE R RAIEEHBETAELERENSE
ARBZHEBAER REHITEH
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Materiality
BEMASE

Environmental,

GRI
Indicators ESG Guide
GRIIE1Z ESG155|

Social and Governance Report

RIE-HHERELRHRS

Description
iz

Section/Remark

B

Social

HeE

Employment

(=

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare

BRI RE B REH  TIERE-
R THERE  Zoib s RIRRUREA
FBREMNN

(a) BE; &

(b) ETHBTABEAZENERH

ER R

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

Cherishing Talents
BHREAS

B1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment
type (for example, full- or part-time), age
group and geographical region

R BEEE (N2 B R  FRe
AR R @B DB R BARE

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region
R FE AR Rt e B D HNEE R

b=

Employee Composition
BTN
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GRI
Materiality Indicators ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
BEMSE GRI3E1Z ESG#55| it =30
Occupational 403 B2 Information on: Health and Safety
Health and Safety  |419 (a) the policies; and RERZSE
BERRREZS (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards
FRRHZE2TFIRERREREE BB
EMBEN:
(a) BE; &
(o) ETHBITABEAZENERHE
EE RGN E K
403-9 B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Health and Safety
ATIERMEMETHABKLEE - REEZS
403-10 B2.2 Lost days due to work injury Health and Safety
RAIEEEIIIEAH REEZE
4083-1 B2.3 Description of occupational health and Health and Safety
403-3 safety measures adopted, and how they BENAZS
403-5 are implemented and monitored
403-7 P ER ARV B 2E R R B 2 2 AT AR

HEARITHNERS X
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GRI
Materiality Indicators ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
EHMESE GRUSI®E  ESGIS3| it L
Employee Training 404-2 B3 Policies on improving employees’ Development and Training
and Promotion knowledge and skills for discharging BREREI
BTEIEE duties at work. Description of training
activities.
BRREAREBITIIFBENN M RELE
RO Z6 o HE M 15 5 E B
- B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Development and
by gender and employee category (e.g. Training, Performance
senior management, middle management) Data Summary
RENREEEN EREEBE -PRE | BEREIEI BEBERR
BES% AonZlREE DL BmE
404-1 B3.2 The average training hours completed Development and
per employee by gender and employee Training, Performance
category Data Summary
RENREEENE D BHREETME BRI BIERIR
Bl P B B HE
Labour Standards 408 B4 Information on: Protection of Employees’
ET#AR| 409 (a) the policies; and Rights and Interests
419-1 (b) compliance with relevant laws and REST#HR
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced
labour
BRAR L& T esamss ThY
(a) BE; &
(b) BTITHETABEARTENER
FERRRANER
408-1 B4.1 Description of measures to review Protection of Employees’
409-1 employment practices to avoid child and Rights and Interests
forced labour REST#=
ST RIS 1B ARV S e LUB 2 B8 T 258
g T
408-1 B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate Protection of Employees’
409-1 such practices when discovered Rights and Interests

MR RERBREHRA RIS RATR
By BR

RIEEETH#x
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GRI
Materiality Indicators ESG Guide Description Section/Remark
BEMAE GRI3E1Z ESG#55| it EH
Anti-corruption 205-2 B7 Information on: Anti-corruption
REE (a) the policies; and RERE
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering
BRAM LERERE ~ Bh R~ BREF A B ERA0 ¢
(a) B &
(b) EBTITHEBETABEATENERE
FERRRANER
205-3 B7.1 Confirmed incidents of corruption and Anti-corruption
actions taken RERE
ERENEE S RENNITE
205-3 B7.2 Description of preventive measures and Anti-corruption
whistle-blowing procedures, and how they RERE
are implemented and monitored
PR EE A K R RAZ T 0 LUK ABRA AT
BRAE
- B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training Anti-corruption
provided to directors and staff REB
HhmEFKETRENREFIEI
Local Community 413 B8 Policies on community engagement to Community Engagement
Bit@ understand the needs of the communities HE2H
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests
EUHe2ERTREEMEIHLERE
MEREER T EEBH BN @ENEER
203-1 B8.1 Focus areas of contribution Community Engagement
EIEREE HE2HE
201-1 B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Community Engagement,
EHIBEFABAER Performance Data
Summary
He2E -HEXRREE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NVC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of NVC
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 184 to 308,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS Standards”) issued by
the International Accounting Standard Board (the “IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
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and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate Ho

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

MEEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANESNARERARESER

Impairment reversal assessment of interest in an associate,
Brilliant Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd. (“BLIHP”)
FE—5 B & 2\ E]Brilliant Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd.
(I'BLIHP 1) £9# &2 8 & # [B] 5712

We identified the impairment reversal assessment of
interest in an associate, BLIHP, as a key audit matter due
to the significance of the balance to the total assets of the
consolidated financial statements, and significant judgment
and estimates are involved in determining the recoverable
amount of interest in BLIHP.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had interest in BLIHP
with carrying amount of approximately US$154,735,000
which represented 31% of the net assets of the Group. As
disclosed in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements,
BLIHP is engaged in investment holding, manufacture
and sales of lamps, luminaries, lamp transformers,
lighting electronic products and other appliances. Due to
improvement on the financial performance of BLIHP, the
Group’s management conducted an impairment reversal
assessment of the interest in BLIHP by comparing the
recoverable amount of the interest in BLIHP which were
estimated based on value in use calculation with the carrying
amount
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Qur procedures in relation to the impairment reversal
assessment of interest in BLIHP included:
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o Understanding and evaluating the key control over

the management’s impairment reversal assessment
process of its interest in BLIHP;
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o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and

objectivity of the independent qualified professional
valuer and obtaining an understanding of its scope of
work and terms of engagement;
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANEANAREMARESNER

The Group’s management engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to assist them to determine the
recoverable amount of interest in BLIHP, based on the past
performance of BLIHP and the expectations from the Group’s
management for the market development estimate. The value
in use calculation is based on the investor’s share of the
present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to
be generated by BLIHP, based on certain key assumptions
and inputs, namely sales growth rates, gross margin,
perpetual growth rates and discount rate, used to estimate
future cash flows.
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Based on the value in use of the interest in BLIHP, impairment
loss of US$24,229,000 was reversed during the year ended
31 December 2023.
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o Challenging the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and inputs, namely sales growth rates,
gross margin and perpetual growth rates, based on
the historical financial performance of BLIHP and the
industry trend; and
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° Engaging our internal valuation expert to evaluate
the appropriateness of the valuation technique, i.e.
discounted cash flows method, and the reasonability
of discount rate used in the value in use calculation.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS Standards issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wong Ka |.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

*A =0 L
raiEmR
For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E 20234512531 HIF F /&
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
US$’°000 US$’000
FET F=TT
NOTES (Restated)
HizE (&)
Revenue WA 5 235,978 279,468
Cost of sales SHE R A& (168,660) (215,618)
GROSS PROFIT EF 67,318 63,850
Other income Ha A 7 6,605 7,280
Other gains and losses Hihigm 8 2,253 (6,022)
Selling and distribution expenses  $HE K9 iH & (34,851) (39,985)
Administrative expenses EREEH (36,572) (33,444)
Reversal of impairment losses BRERBEATNERN 24
(impairment losses) in respect of EEBK M CREERX)
interests in associates 24,229 (7,421)
Impairment losses under expected FEHAE S1ELER T 9
credit loss model, net of reversal AL kR 350 22
Other expenses HMER 10 (5,184) (6,394)
Finance costs MBER 11 (875) (2,463)
Share of results of associates (LB AT A 17,163 21,152
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX WA (8518) 40,436 (3,425)
Income tax expense FriSiR& R 12 (2,786) (2,122)
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR  Zx£ % (§518) 13 37,650 (5,547)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable ZxA B#EHA A BG4 E
to owners of the Company 8 (K518) 35,713 (9,785)
Profit for the year attributable to JEPE S (A FFE
non-controlling interests 1,937 4,238
37,650 (5,547)
2023 2022
20235 20224
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE SFREH (518)
Basic (US$ cents) HA (E) 17 7.79 (2.31)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

ZEEEkEMERERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B Z 2023412531 HIFEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
US$’°000 US$’000
FET FE
(Restated)
(&)
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR  Zx&F 78 (§518) 37,650 (5,547)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Htm2EER
EXPENSE
Items that will not be reclassified to 7~ & E #5748 E #8 7 7 £
profit or loss: EHH
- Fair value loss on investments in - —# A ABEFAEMEZEIA
equity instruments at fair value (MERAAREESAREMEZE
through other comprehensive WA WERETEKREAR
income (“FVTOCI"), net of BEEBE NREREMmER
related income tax (160) (44)
(160) (44)
Items that may be reclassified HBEBWM 7 HEETEm&IER
subsequently to profit or 10ss:
- Exchange differences arising on —#EBINEFELENESR
translation of foreign operations =¥ (12,647) (31,791)
— Share of other comprehensive —EEBEASEMEE
expense of associates, net of & A FREREE
related income tax i8R (2,080) (6,369)
(14,727) (38,160)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FEHME2EER
EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR (14,887) (38,204)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TEZEKA (BR) &%
INCOME (EXPENSE) FOR THE
YEAR 22,763 (43,751)
Total comprehensive income UTFEAEEHNZEBA
(expense) attributable to: (BA) a8t
— Owners of the Company R VNCIE T=DN 20,334 (46,658)
— Non-controlling interests — FEFE I = 2,429 2,907
22,763 (43,751)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMBINRR
At 31 December 2023
JR2023%F 12531 H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
2023F 20224 2022
12R31H 12831H 1B1H
US$’000 US$'000 US$'000
F=n TEn x5
NOTES (Restated) (Restated)
i3 (& E=751) (i E751)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERZE 18 50,195 53,045 54,204
Right-of-use assets FHESE 19 24,627 25,476 30,570
Investment properties RENE 20 1,540 1,807 1,221
Goodwill GES 21 29,845 30,351 33,155
Other intangible assets HtEREE 22 42,481 46,990 53,780
Interests in associates REERB 2 @ 24 156,478 119,205 93,710
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BRARBESAEMEZE
WARERZTE 25 1,919 2,080 2,319
Financial assets at fair value BAnBESARR ((BAR
through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”) BEHABLE) NEHEE - - 83
Deferred tax assets FIREEE 34 1,518 1,345 1,575
Deposits RiE® 27 41,993 42,646 46,581
350,596 322,945 317,198
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories EE& 28 45,236 64,305 97,878
Trade and bills receivables B REBREIER 26 49,464 45,853 78,486
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HMEWERR  RESRBAR 27 13,437 12,346 17,815
Tax recoverable BARE - 622 2,177
Financial assets at FVTPL BAnBESABaNEHEE 29 3,939 4,327 6,368
Pledged bank deposits BIBETER 30 - 53,567 13,061
Fixed deposits with maturity of more than BRBE=EENTHEER
three months 30 21,158 - -
Cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEY 30 108,273 85,057 148,732
241,507 266,077 364,517
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables BRELERT 31 39,445 32,792 95,648
Other payables and accruals HtENRARBRER 32 29,501 24,790 39,886
Contract liabilities ERAEE 33 5,516 5,601 5,365
Borrowings CE 35 1,699 39,034 6,279
Deferred income B 36 142 145 158
Lease liabilities HE&aRE 37 1,793 1,547 2,335
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BRAABESABGNEHAR 29 - 1,068 =
Tax liabilities REBER 1,082 1,663 2,500
79,178 106,640 152,171
NET CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE 162,329 159,437 212,346
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERTR#HER 512,925 482,382 529,544
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMBRRR

At 31 December 2023

32023412531 H
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
20235 2022 20224
12A31H 12A31H 1A18
US$°000 US$'000 US$'000
TERT TEr FTEr
NOTES (Restated) (Restated)
i3 (&) (&5
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred income R 36 221 225 260
Lease liabilities HESR 37 3,438 3,105 4,761
Deferred tax liabilities RIERESE 34 6,665 7,644 9,364
10,324 10,974 14,385
NET ASSETS BEE 502,601 471,408 515,159
CAPITAL AND RESERVES Bkt
Share capital f& & 38 1 = s
Reserves i 483,770 454,492 501,150
Equity attributable to owners of FAREE AEE#ER
the Company 483,771 454,492 501,150
Non-controlling interests FEEERIM S 18,830 16,916 14,009
TOTAL EQUITY mrgs 502,601 471,408 515,159
* Less than US$1,000 * DT ET

The consolidated financial statements on pages 184 to 308 were HNFE184EI08B V6 MBRE2EN
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March ~ 2024F3H28 AKX E St E R IE R T >
2024 and are signed on its behalf by: WH NIEERREE

WANG DONGLEI
ILE
DIRECTOR
EE

CHAN KIM YUNG, EVA

R 1 25

DIRECTOR

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

maEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) before tax
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of other intangible assets

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of investment properties

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of other intangible assets

Impairment loss in respect of property,
plant and equipment

(Reversal of impairment loses) Impairment
losses in respect of interests in
associates

Impairment losses under expected credit
loss in respect of trade receivables,
net of reversal

Impairment losses under expected credit
loss in respect of other receivables,
net of reversal

Write-down of inventories

Government grants released to
consolidated statement of profit or loss

Losses on fair value changes of held-for-
trading investments
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2023
20234
US$’°000

F=r

40,436
(1,432)
875
(17,163)

385

5,675

237

2,706

6,457

(24,229)

(94)

(256)
1,340

668

2022
20224
US$'000
TE7T
(Restated)
(gE=5)

(3,425)
(1,995)

2,463
(21,152)

5,626

49
2,983
7,124

149

7,421

(60)

38

3,723

(35)

2,434




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital
Decrease in held-for-trading
financial assets
Decrease in inventories

(Increase) decrease in trade and bills

receivables

(Increase) decrease in other receivables,

deposits and prepayments

Increase (decrease) in trade and bills payables
Increase (decrease) in other payables and

accruals
Increase in contract liabilities

Cash from (used) in operations
Income tax paid

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Placement of pledged bank deposits
Placement of fixed deposits with maturity

more than three months

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits

Interest received
Purchases of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Realisation of derivative financial liabilities

Additions to other intangible assets
Additional capital investment
in an associate

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
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2023 2022
20234 20224
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx =T
(Restated)
(&=75))
15,605 5,357
= 293
16,725 25,349
(4,298) 26,816
(1,561) 4,084
7,227 (49,017)
5,144 (23,271)
8 711
38,850 (9,678)
(3,755) (2,910)
35,095 (12,588)
- (53,567)
(21,239) =
52,875 13,061
1,432 1,995
(3,645) 4,321
525 963
(1,405) -
(3,337) (4,922)
- (32,926)
25,206 (71,075)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BLFE20234F 12531 HIFFZ

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares

Proceeds of bank loans
Repayment of bank loans
Lease payments

Interest paid

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND & RIB£ZSEWILm GRl) B8

CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE

BEGINNING OF YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF YEAR, represented by bank

balances and cash
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2023 2022
2023 20224
US$’000 US$’000
F%ET FE7
(Restated)

(&=&7))

8,945 =
179 34,397
(37,610) (994)
(1,563) (2,121)
(875) (2,463)
(30,924) 28,819
29,377 (54,844)
85,057 148,732
(6,161) (8,831)

108,273 85,057




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

NVC International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited company incorporated in the territory of the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI") as a limited liability company on 2 March 2006
and was redomiciled to the Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its substantial
shareholder is Elec-Tech International Co. Ltd., with its shares
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are the manufacture and
sale of lamps, luminaries, lighting electronic products and related
products. Information on the Group’s subsidiaries is set out in
Note 40.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
(“US$"), and the consolidated financial statements are presented
in US$ and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”)

Amendments to IFRS Standards that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRS Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning
on 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

IFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts
the October 2020
and February 2022
Amendments to

IFRS 17)
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform

— Pillar Two model Rules

Amendments to IAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Except for the following amendment to IFRS, the application
of other amendments to IFRS Standards in the current year
had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

Amendments to IFRS Standards that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to
material transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance but has
affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting policies set out
in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRS Standards that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?
Amendments to IAS 7 and  Supplier Finance Arrangements?
IFRS 7
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

Except for the amendments to IFRS Standards mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all other new and amendments to IFRS Standards will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

196 NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”)
and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

. clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current or non-current
only if the entity recognises the option separately as an
equity instrument applying IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that the classification should not
be affected by management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months
from reporting date which are conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with which
an entity is required to comply with on or before the end of the
reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
Covenants which are required to comply with only after the
reporting period do not affect whether that right exists at the end
of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”)
and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”) (continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could become
repayable within twelve months after the reporting period, if
an entity classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements as
non-current when the entity’s right to defer settlement of those
liabilities is subject to the entity complying with covenants within
twelve months after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of applying
the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with
the 2020 Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with early application
permitted. If an entity applies the 2020 Amendments for an earlier
period after the issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should
also apply the 2022 Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2023, the application of the 2020 and 2022 Amendments will not
result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

% A B PR B 755 3 5 22 A (TR B
MESEHREERN) 2185 (&

B IR EREBI T BRI
REENRHEET S (F

EBTERB1HEZIETE
EREA B IET B R E
FRFREE55EZ HHRGIEET (20204E)
(T2020E1657)) REE L 518
BUFE15E 2 15T B 2492 FE 7
B1&) (T2022418571) ()

tb5h > 2022 EETFERR HEREE
RRIEESEAMERNERNEBURR
ERTREHBT_MAARNETHE
MERERZHFELENERBDES
FERBaE ARBEEMHREER
ETHRAEIEAERSHELT @
BREENERINER -

2022F BT IR 2020 FE BT I A 3
HEHEZ2024FE1B1HR 2B
W EERSH2022FE5TER
2020FE BT H B2024F1H1H 8 >~
BREBHNEERSHEN  AFFIEA
HAE - NREEE2022F BT %M
BHEK 2 HARIEAR2020F 57 8]
ZERNTEEZEBER2022FE
K

RiEAREER2023F12831HM*
BEaE  EA2020F 5] %2022
FRIFAEERHAEENEGESE
MET D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS Standards issued by the IASB.
For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material
if such information is reasonably expected to influence
decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated

financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has
changed its presentation currency from Renminbi (“RMB”)
to US$ for preparation of its consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.
Having considered that most of the Group’s transactions
are denominated and settled in US$, the directors of
the Company believes that the change of presentation
currency will enable the shareholders and potential
investors of the Company to have a more accurate picture
of the Group’s financial performance.

3.2 Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its

returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BLFE20234F 12531 HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2  Material accounting policy information

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

SAMBRENENEER
EAGHKEAE (8

3.2 EXREHHEEH B

HREBE (&

WEEERBERER L=
BHEGSIHEERE BRI U E
tﬂfﬁiﬁé@ s REB G S TG

HEAHKREHKRERAEH
%o

MBABZEGARNRAESE
B B 15 A R BT B~ ) 2
BERG URNEAEERER
RWNEB AR Z IR L -

BokHEMEERAZER
BERBRAATER ARIF
PERME R o BN & B HUOFE
1% 1 o BR 1S B AL A AR 0 Y B
ABZz2EWABETDNRSB
EAZIS/&T%EEAEHHW%J M
$ 2%

R ER RHNEBASZ/M
BRERELAE  USHES
WRERERZ G5 BER—
e

ERMAEBERNE A B 2B
SHMBEERARARABZE
EkaBE - #m WA H
RIBERER G HETHH
o

PP B A Bz JF = S R m
BAERRETNRLE D
2 5REHEEEED AR
TRA ARRPEE ARE
B DEBEENE QDS
BE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BLFE20234F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. LEMBRRNGHRELER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEAXTHHRESH &
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2  Material accounting policy information 3.2 EXRGHEBEKREN (#B)

202

(continued)
Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an interest in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Interests in associates (continued)

An interest in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the interest in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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# F2023412/531 6 1 1
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEUBHRRNEREER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAGHBEER &)

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2  Material accounting policy information 3.2 EXRGHEBEKREN (#B)

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

Further details about the Group’s accounting policies
relating to revenue from contracts with customers are
disclosed in Note 5(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys

the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BLFE20234F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2  Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use

assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the

lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives

receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BLFE20234F 12531 HIFFZ
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. LEMBRRNGHRELER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEAXTHHRESH &
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2  Material accounting policy information 3.2 EXRGHEBEKREN (#B)

(continued)

Foreign currencies 7/‘ f-’ﬁ

In preparing the financial statements of each individual HERENERSENTFE
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the R WIEMUZERI fg‘E “f
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are M (SNEE) TR 18T
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the HHIR{TEXRESD ﬁé%&%,ﬁﬂ

dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. US$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
foreign currency translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group’s net assets in RMB or other currencies to the
Group’s presentation currency (i.e. US$) are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in foreign currency translation reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss subsequently.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit (loss) before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BLFE20234F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. LEMBRRNGHRELER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEAXTHHRESH &
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2  Material accounting policy information 3.2 EXRGHEBEKREN (#B)

210

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the time
of transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than buildings under construction as described
below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management, including costs
of testing whether the related assets is functioning
properly and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. LEMBRRNGHRELER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEAXTHHRESH &
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2  Material accounting policy information 3.2 EXRGHHBEKEN &

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued) #Z,% e ﬂﬁE/} RiE (nég
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised ME-BMEREEEERHE

upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with definite useful
lives are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets with definite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units.
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4 AH

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. LEMBRRNGHRELER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEAXTHHRESH &
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)
3.2  Material accounting policy information 3.2 EXRGHHBEKEN &

(continued)

Inventories 7? ,%:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net FEERAERBIRZFEZ
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined K & 5 BR o 17 B B A< 32 N #E
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value EHRAAETE o A 2IRFE
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less EFEEZHAEBRBER
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to FFEMMARIEHIEE TS

make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-

ZRA ETHEFT BRI RAE
BREERBNREENIES

incremental costs which the Group must incur to make MARAKEBBZETHEM
the sale. MBEFENIEIE SR A -
Financial instruments ETHITA

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised

EEEERAAETMEER
TRBEGHNRXZEINT
Ko EEEDZELR &/
BEZMABE— ﬂ%%ﬂé&*%

on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are HEEBD KRB - —K
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery BEERTIEBREGIE G %K
of assets within the time frame established by regulation EZ2HRAXRNEEZERM
or convention in the market place. BEEEER-

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially THEENREMEBVBRIEZ

measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

NABEFE (ﬁfg—i%ﬁ,\,\u
BHNEENE S EIRMY
TIREBEBERMBRSENE
1655t 29N - ERHEBNE
AXBTEHREERETHE
B2 R Z AN B
FATHEENSHEE (7
BRBERAME) 2ANBEDN
e ER o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. The Group
always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, for
other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2  Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other
payables and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had goodwill of
approximately US$29,845,000 (2022: US$30,351,000) which
was arise from acquisitions of businesses. The Group’s
management conducted impairment assessments of the goodwill
by comparing the recoverable amounts of the cash generating
units (the “CGUSs”) with respective carrying amounts and engaged
an independent qualified professional valuer to assist them to
determine the recoverable amounts of the CGUs based on the
respective CGUs’ past performance and the expectations from
the Group’s management for the market development estimate.
The value in use calculations utilised cash flow projections based
on financial budgets and an appropriate discount rate, and
involve significant judgement and estimates on certain key inputs,
namely sales growth rate, gross margin, perpetual growth rates
and discount rate. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU is
lower than respective carrying amount, impairment loss would be
recognised.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of goodwill are
US$29,845,000 (2022: US$30,351,000), net of accumulated
impairment loss of US$57,920,000 (2022: US$58,902,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
Note 23.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment assessment of interest in an associate

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had interest in BLIHP
with carrying amount of approximately US$154,735,000 (2022:
US$117,473,000) which represented 31% (2022: 25%) of the net
assets of the Group. As disclosed in Note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements, BLIHP is engaged in investment holding,
manufacture and sales of lamps, luminaries, lamp transformers,
lighting electronic products and other appliances. Due to
improvement on the financial performance of BLIHP as disclosed
in Note 24, the Group’s management conducted an impairment
assessment of the interest in BLIHP by comparing the recoverable
amount of the interest in BLIHP, which were estimated based on
value in use calculation, with the carrying amount.

The Group’s management engaged an independent qualified
professional valuer to assist them to determine the recoverable
amount of interest in BLIHP, based on the past performance of
BLIHP and the expectations from the Group’s management for
the market development estimate. The value in use calculation
is based on the investor’'s share of the present value of the
estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by BLIHP,
based on certain key assumptions and inputs, namely sales
growth rates, gross margin, perpetual growth rates and discount
rate, used to estimate future cash flows. In cases where the
actual cash flows are less or more than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which result in revision of future cash
flows estimation or discount rate, a further reversal or material
recognition of impairment may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.

During the current year, the management determined an
impairment loss reversal amounting to US$24,229,000 was
recognised in profit or loss as the recoverable amount of the
interest in BLIHP which represented the value in use was higher
than the carrying amount. Details of the impairment assessment
are disclosed in Note 24.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B E 20234 12531 HIFFE
5. REVENUE 5. WA
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) SHEEREERWA
customers

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12B31HLLEE
International Domestic International
NVC non-NVC non-NVC
Segments 2 Ep brand brand brand Total
B Bl Bl
B mh FELTRE FELT R a8F
US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEr FEx FTEx FEr
Sales to external HENBER
customers 36,839 14,041 185,098 235,978

Geographical markets ~ hIEmHI5

United States ES - - 132,372 132,372
Japan HZs 7 - 39,926 39,933
The PRC F - 14,041 - 14,041
Netherland o1 8 - - 4,582 4,582
United Kingdom Y 24,235 - 1,074 25,309
Other countries HMExR 12,597 - 7,144 19,741
Total &5t 36,839 14,041 185,098 235,978
Timing of revenue WA T SR B R
recognition
A point in time HEEEEh 36,839 14,041 185,098 235,978
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

5.  REVENUE (continued)

5.

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

WA (#

(i) BUEREEWA (E)

B E2022F12831HILEE
International Domestic International
NVC non-NVC non-NVC
Segments 7 E brand brand brand Total
]S A 7]
BELmkE FELRE FELRE &t
US$'000 US$’'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FE7T F=T FE7T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(& E5)) (B E5)) (B E5)) (12 E3))
Sales to external HEIBER
customers 43,097 17,492 218,879 279,468
Geographical markets #1325
United States 5 - - 169,745 169,745
Japan H4 11 - 35,171 35,182
The PRC A - 17,492 - 17,492
Netherland e - - 8,734 8,734
United Kingdom HEH 22,644 - 929 23,5673
Other countries HMER 20,442 - 4,300 24,742
Total &t 43,097 17,492 218,879 279,468
Timing of revenue WA B SR B
recognition
A point in time SR 43,097 17,492 218,879 279,468
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

The Group sells lighting products to the retailers over the
world.

Revenue is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been shipped
to the specific location (delivery). Following the delivery,
the customers have full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon delivery.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers
have a right to exchange for defective products within
30 days. The Group uses its accumulated historical
experience to estimate the number of exchange on a
portfolio level using the expected value method. Revenue
is recognised for sales which are considered highly
probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur. A contract liability
is recognised for sales in which revenue has yet been
recognised. The Group’s right to recover the product
when customers exercise their right is recognised as a
right to returned goods and a corresponding adjustment
to cost of sales.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

All goods provided by the Group are for contracts
with original expected duration of one year or less. As
permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B F20235F 12531 HIEFE

5. WA #&

(ii)

(iii)

ERARBEYNER

FEBREERTERHEE
FRBAEM -

EEYNEHEERE S
MPEEERTEHE ()
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REF) B U o] 2GR 2 REF) FE SR
RHBREE WARRHEBIHEN
ZIKO

SEFERARZFTRE
NEEZRBER

rEBERENRMBESEREI Y
RIRGBRHBHRA —FIU
THER -REBEERTHRS
ERF15RHIFTR » D F &%
FRTEHEEZRZEHEE
TIRE -

BTEFERARASE 202355

225



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bl F20234F 12531 HIEFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered or

provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8

Operating Segments are as follows:

6. RBEDE

mETERD R E D BRIEM
RETFEARBDATESE AIETEEE
RBEAN(TEEBEBRRAY) NEH
EPRARORERENERARE

BEEME A5BRERMBRSE
REQFALAE 7 FRIIRE 0 B0

T
. International NVC brand - sales of NVC branded lighting . R+ L — i E1E 9
products outside the PRC EETRERBER
. Domestic non-NVC brand — domestic sales of non-NVC . ANIEE+ ZE—FRFHEIERN
branded lighting products in the PRC HEFE L RBERBEE D
. International non-NVC brand - sales of non-NVC branded . MRIEE + e — RIS b

lighting products outside the PRC

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable segments:

Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers

Segment results

Reconciliation

Other income

Other gains and losses

Unallocated expenses

Reversal of impairment losses
in respect of interests in
an associate

Impairment losses under
expected credit loss model,
net of reversal

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Profit before tax

226

DEULA

HETFIBER

DEBELE

SBETIEH

HAah A

Hithig s

KNECE R

BRERBE AN
BB B A i

FEHEEERLERTHY
BEE L BRI

MEER

FEMEE AT EE

MAIF)HE
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HEFELMERRER

UTR/BRERDE2INHAEERD
WA REEDH

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12A310ILEE
International Domestic International
NVC non-NVC non-NVC
brand brand brand Consolidated
i3 EA i3
ELmhE FEELTRE FELRE =&
US$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 US$’000
FEx FEw FTERx FTE
36,839 14,041 185,098 235,978
12,688 1,719 52,911 67,318
6,605
2,253
(76,607)
24,229
350
(875)
17,163
40,436



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt E20234F 12531 HIFF/E
6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 6. KEPH &
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12B31HILLEE
International Domestic International
NVC non-NVC non-NVC
brand brand brand Consolidated
B Y Bl
BELmE FEL R FELRE Ra
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FE7T FE FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(R E5) (B E5) (fRE5) E<=27l)
Segment revenue: DEUTA -
Sales to external customers  SHE FINPES 43,097 17,492 218,879 279,468
Segment results DEEE 13,712 1,953 48,185 63,850
Reconciliation FHETIEH
Other income HAa A 7,280
Other gains and losses Hhigm (6,022)
Unallocated expenses KO ER (79,823)
Impairment losses in respect of 7 B K i & A S Y
interests in associates R EEL (7,421)
Impairment losses under FEHREEIRAREE TN
expected credit loss model,  JF{EIBL > OBRDEY
net of reversal 22
Finance costs HMHBER (2,463)
Share of results of associates  FEh Eft & A Bl E4E 21,152
Loss before tax RAIE 8 (3,429)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same A& TR @& 5T ISR B MY SRS At A
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment EENETHREFEHEEB DI H BHIER
profit represents the profit earned by each segment without D ESFrBEEVAY A 0 R B E Mt Uk
allocation of other income, other gains and losses, impairment AHEHMEZ BEANBHES AT
losses and reversal of impairment losses in respect of interests mHREBRA R BEELNE TR
in associates, impairment losses under expected credit loss EEBRLAER THREEES (0
model, net of reversal, unallocated expenses, finance costs and M) RN EEER - MEERAKEWNL
share of results of associates. This is the measure reported to the BE NG G LY REHRTESE
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance REABRERSEERIRTEHN
assessment. & 1 ©
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iR e M IRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BLFE20234F 12531 HIFFZ

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results
of each segment. No analysis of segment asset and segment
liability is presented as the CODM does not regularly review
such information for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue and
segment results are presented.

For the year ended 31 December 2023

RED &

TEEBRRERES DML E
REFHRR - AREEEBERRA
TEHRERSEARTRFMGZE
BmERERILEER B2
DEHBEERDEERD M -HIL 2
2D EBRA R D EBEE -

HE2023F12A31HLEE

International Domestic International Total
NVC non-NVC

brand
[

brand
el

Etmk FELmE

US$'000
Txn

Amounts included in the measure 5+ A 43 2B 8 % 3¢ 23 2B
of segment profit or loss or BESENEE !
segment assets:

Capital expenditure* BARZ W 976
Right-of-use assets FREEE 985
Write-down of inventories MoRFEE (408)
Depreciation and amortisation ITEE R H 1,120

Amounts regularly provided to the & HA 6] = BB & 8B R SK
CODM but not included inthe  AIRHEBARFTA D

measure of segment profit or EEEmB DI EE
loss or segment assets: FTEMNEER

Impairment losses recognised ME ZEWRT K
(reversed) on trade receivables  ELfth FE UK BR R AR SR
and other receivables, net (8O BRE
&8 R E (256)

Reversal of impairment losses in & B B & A= Y
respect of interests in associates Az AR BB 5K
JREH (24,229)

US$'000
T&n

150
1
(139)

1,569

non-NVC  reportable
brand segments Others Consolidated

] BE
FELRE AEaE Hift Ra
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TER T£n TE7

5,796 6,922 2 6,924
607 1,593 576 2,169
1,875 1,328 12 1,340
12,078 14,767 308 15,075
(94) (350) - (350)

= (24,229) = (24,229)

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 H 1F FZ

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 6. RKEFE &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F12831HIEEE
International Domestic  International Total
NVC non-NVG non-NVC reportable
brand brand brand segments Others  Consolidated
EilE A S RE
EtmlE  FETRE  EErRE arF Hth e}
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FER TEn TEx TEw TEw TEn
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(IR E51) (i E51) (fm=5) (BE5) (BE5) (IR =51)
Amounts included in the measure st AR BERINDEE
of segment profit or loss or STENEE:
segment assets:
Capital expenditure* BARY 382 ™M 14,659 15,752 34 15,786
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE - 4 119 123 - 123
Write-down of inventories MAaFs 434 297 2,992 3,723 - 3,723
Depreciation and amortisation FTEREH 935 1,653 12,809 15,397 385 15,782
Amounts regularly provided to the TR EEEARAR M
CODM but not included inthe BRI AN HEZEHHE
measure of segment profit or BEHENEE:
loss or segment assets:
Impairment losses recognised ~ FEE B EMERFR E 1t fEUR
(reversed) on trade receivables  ERFNFEED (B[E) RUR(E
and other receivables, net BB 36 236 (8) (250) (22) = (22)
Impairment losses in respect of  BRIREE AT N ERMN
interests in associates PEREES 7,421 S S 7,421 = 7,421
Impairment loss in respect of BRENE BERREN
property, plant and equipment  HER% - - 149 149 - 149

and equipment and other intangible assets.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

i BEASXHEEREYE BREKRR
BUREMETLEE -

BTEFERARASE 202355
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 6.
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and other
countries.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
is presented based on the location of the customers’ operations.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented
based on the geographical location of the assets.

REDER (&

& Ek
AEBBOEFUNPEREMER -
ERAEERBIIBERHERAE
M REEFIEEMIEZY] B

AERFRDEENEHNDLREE
ERENEZY] -

Revenue from
external customers

Year ended Non-current assets
SEBEEHBA

HEUTHHLEEE EREEE
ERVAVIPOPEI  31/12/2022 EERVAPTPIPXE 31/12/2022
20234 2022% 20234 20224
12H31H 12831H 12H31H 12831H
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FET FE7T FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(B EF) Cg-27))
United States EH 132,372 169,745 676 1,139
Japan Hz& 39,933 35,182 2,201 2,506
The PRC A 14,041 17,492 306,081 296,038
Netherland i 4,582 8,734 = =
United Kingdom Y 25,309 23,573 7,897 7,131
Other countries HER 19,741 24,742 30,304 12,706
235,978 279,468 347,159 319,520

Note: Non-current assets excluded equity instruments at FVTOCI
and deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 6.
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

ir e MR HRRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

REDE (&

Customer A' HEA
Customer B! =EB'
Customer C' =HEC!

! Revenue from International Non-NVC brand segment.

BEFEERMER
HEFTEEMAEBEHEHELEI0%

UENERANT

2023 2022

20234 20224

US$’000 US$’000

FEx FET

(Restated)

(& E73)

65,305 94,060

55,253 72,378

39,933 35,182

! REBRIEE L amE D MBIUA -

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HA

2023 2022
20234 2022%F
US$’000 US$’000
FE7T FE=
(Restated)
(&)

Government grants and other B B R E ARG (07 53E)
subsidies (Note) 987 1,899
Bank interest income IRITFIE WA 1,432 1,900
Other interest income HF WA - 95
Surcharges from suppliers KBHEFNKNE 15 199

Rental income — lease payments HEWA—TCEHEENR

that are fixed 1,550 244
Consultancy service income B AR TS WA 1,063 1,076
Trademark licensing fee EEELEIE- 1,525 1,499
Others Hi 33 368
6,605 7,280

BTEFERARASE 202355
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

7. OTHER INCOME (continueq) i

Note: Government grants of US$980,000 (2022: US$1,885,000)
that have been received in the current year. The
government grants were unconditional and therefore
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the current year. Other government grants have been
received by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries as tax subsidies
and incentives for research and development activities
and the expansion of production capacity of energy-
saving lamps. Government grants associated with assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position as disclosed in Note 36.

nts

HUA &

Hiet -

RNEERIBFHEI80T ETT
(20224 : 1,885F E7T) ° HHEAK
TR R E\EEN > AL ERFEE
NiraERRPEE c RERHN P
EM B AR EESSBHMBUTH
B fEAMEMBEE TS URIEKR
B AE I Y AE FE BE 1 B9 AR WA RE AL B
EhignE - MEEMBANBNFHEE
RiGEMBR R RPREREIEILI
= RN 3ES6FT I ER) ©

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hfthigsm
2023 2022
20234 20224
US$’°000 US$’000
FET F=EmT
(Restated)
(I E75)
Net foreign exchange gains (losses) SMNEF U (BK) 3,469 (3,197)
Losses on fair value changes of held-for- RZMEFERENAABEES)
trading investments B (668) (2,434)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of TR E - E KR EEIH
property, plant and equipment PEREEEES = (149)
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, EEVME -BEREHEZ
plant and equipment (38%) Wm (385) 32
Loss on disposal of other intangible EEHMEREEEZBX
assets = (46)
Others Hith (163) (228)
2,253 (6,022)

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ir e MR HRRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 9. FEHAEEHELERTHREE
5%

CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL {g » 30 F%*;I:Ffﬁ
2023 2022
20234F 20224
US$’000 US$’000
F=ET FE=T
(Restated)
(&)
Impairment losses reversed MU TIEB HEE (FER) B
(recognised) on: ERL
— trade receivables — B EWIRRR 94 60
— other receivables — HMEUWRR 256 (38)
350 22
Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 44(b). BTG EE B EY R M 5E44(b) ©
10. OTHER EXPENSES 10. HMtEHA
2023 2022
20235 20224
US$’000 US$’000
FE FEx
(Restated)
(e E75)
Research and development costs MEKRFAZEER 5,184 6,394
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BHHEEHR
2023 2022
20234F 20224
US$’000 US$’000
F=T FE
(Restated)
(&)
Interest on vendor financing HEFMENS 283 623
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEMN S 320 423
Interest on borrowings (RIS 272 1,417
875 2,463
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. FRISIREH

Current tax: BRHATR 1A -
Hong Kong BB
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R 2FTEIR
Other countries HEIR
Underprovision in prior years: MEiFEEDE -
Hong Kong 5%
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FRE R EFRER
Other countries HMBEIR
Deferred tax (Note 34) EIERRIE (BY2234)
Total =

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) 2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
US$’°000 US$'000
F=E7T FE7x
(Restated)

(BREF)

1,443 1,288
364 919
1,489 479
3,296 2,686
78 61

(45) 180

47 52

80 293

(590) (857)
2,786 2,122

REMAFNESRNEFIE 5 ERK
EEERENE2 000FH TH EE
8.25% M X > M2,000FE T
LU ERAERI216.5% R K- -
TRHEMBHEFNERXGNENER
ERNABEBBEEIR16.5%H—

RIBFPBEPEFRESRE (THEMRSI
A RIEEFRBRIEZERE 1P
F B B B A B R E RV R
#£25% o



12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12.

ETi Solid State Lighting (Zhuhai) Limited (“Zhuhai SSL”) and
Zhejiang Jiangshan Sunny Electron Co., Ltd. (“Sunny”) were
recognised as high-tech enterprise by the PRC tax authority and
entitled a preferential tax rate of 15% during both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit (loss)
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
follows:

4= AH

iR IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

FRIRER (&

168 (BkE) AEREERAE (MTE
BRAD EFITILU=KREFER
NE) (T= k) w0 B 7R R
ASHEMEE BERMEEERE
B15%MNEERE

HthB zEELENREATRES
BB EZEERTREFE

METFE (8518)

Profit (loss) before tax

BF RIS MK
FEINMANIRB L&

Tax at the average income tax rate (Note)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ~ B ERRUTANIRFE R £

purpose
Underprovision in respect of HaiFEE DR
prior years
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERREBEENRBEE
Tax effect of deductible temporary REDBAIRINEREEED
differences not recognised METE

Withholding tax on undistributed profits of 777 E4E & fY [ B A 5 R DB

FUBRTRINR
REEMNXFAENFRER

subsidiaries operating in the PRC
Income tax at concessionary rate

PRSI E H

Income tax expense

Note: The average income tax rates for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 represent the average tax rate
of the operations in different jurisdictions on the basis
of the relative amounts of profit (loss) before tax and the

relevant statutory rates.

<SHERRIA (iE)

FRAREBERIZATREEFEGERmRET]
Z AT E (B518) HERWT -
2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
US$’000 US$’000
FE7T FET
(Restated)
€<E==27l)
40,436 (3,425)
3,658 (915)
466 3,828
(4,897) (7,282)
80 293
4,273 6,261
198 798
- 7
(992) (868)
2,786 2522

Hiat . BE2023F K2022F12H31H 1k
EEN TR ERREIERERA
I8 (518) MBS EREMAE
REEHORED S EEE B0
FIRE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

13. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at after charging

(credited):

13.

AEFHE (§518)

AEFE (G18) Th

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as expense 22 E R EE 4

Amortisation of other intangible assets
(included in “selling and distribution
expenses”)

Depreciation
— Property, plant and equipment
— Investment properties
— Right-of-use-assets

Total amortisation and depreciation

Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration (Note 14)):

Wages and salaries

Pension scheme contributions

Other welfare expenses

Total staff costs

Research and development costs
(included in “other expenses”)

Write-down of inventories
(included in “cost of sales”)

12 %4 Bl 7

HihE EE#

GtATSERDHER)

e
—WE BB Rkt
—REYE
—EREEE

HE R AR R

EERMAX BEEERES

TRABHFM Hat14))

TERHE
RIREFFEIHR
HftaH & A

BT A #82E

MK E R

Gt ATHAMERY)
WoREE

(Gt ATESE R A )
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Wk (5FA) L

TRIBRBEN
2023 2022
20235 20224
US$’°000 US$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&)
688 697
167,320 211,895
6,457 7,124
5,675 5,626
237 49
2,706 2,983
15,075 15,782
40,743 38,827
3,062 3,618
1,076 1,383
44,881 43,828
5,184 6,394
1,340 3,723
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt ZE20284F 12531 H1F EE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 14. EEREETHRASHM
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RBiELFTTRNEEEANTIER K E
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong WAFEEAESTHRABEHFMAN
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: HS
2023 2023
Chief
Executive
Ms. CHAN
Mr. WANG Kim Yung, Mr. XIAO Mr. WANG Ms. CAO
Donglei Eva Yu  Keven Dun Qin Total
RETHAR
ILERE REBit HFRE THERE =2yt Bt
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn TEn S TET T&7 SN
(note 1) (note 2) 2023
(Hit1) (Hz2) 20236
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A) #i78%

Fees s 38 38 38 38 79 231
Other emoluments: Ehiis
Salaries and allowance HeRE 925 1,107 236 209 - 2477
Pension scheme S
contributions 17 9 - 7 1 34
Sub-total NG 980 1,154 274 254 80 2,742

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

LTERTEZNMENARSHFADRFEENEESHRURBA A

B)

Mr. YE Yong
HERE
US$000
S
NON-EXECUTIVE B EHIEZS
DIRECTORS
Fees ik 38
Other emoluments: Ethi<
Salaries and allowance HeREl 107
Pension scheme RAIREHBIER
contributions 3
Sub-total NG 148

The non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as the director of the Company and its subsidiaries, if applicable.

THFHOESNNE DR EREARFARENBAR MER) NESMA -

BTEFERARASE 202355
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B F2023F 12531 H 1 F/E
14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 14, EFERERSITEHASHM
EMOLUMENTS (continued) =)
Mr. WANG Kong Wai, Mr. CHEN
Xuexian Conway Hong Total
IBEEE  FEERE RikxE &t
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FE5x SiE T F#x S
2023
20236
C) INDEPENDENT NON- C) BUEHTEZS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees e 38 64 38 140

The independent non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

TRBUFRTERNNE A REEEAATERMZA
Total At 3,030
2022 20224
Chief
Executive
Ms. CHAN
Mr. WANG Kim Yung, Mr. XIAO Mr. WANG Ms. CAO

Donglei Eva Yu Keven Dun Qin Total
BBTHAR

TLERE  Raswt EESnks THEE BZut At

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn T e FER FEn FEn
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(= =51) (&) (&=30 (=31 (&=31) (&3)
(note 1) (note 2) 2022

(1) (iz#2) 20005

A) EXECUTIVEDIRECTORS A) H{7EZ
Fees ik 38 38 38 38 38 190
Other emoluments: Hthih<
Salaries and allowance HERE 750 1,049 200 64 = 2,063
Pension scheme RIEEFEED
contributions 4 8 - 3 - 15
Sub-total g 792 1,095 238 106 38 2,268

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

LRATESNMENAREAFAAREEENEREHRERB Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 A o
e TSR R EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
B FE20234%F 12531 HIFF/E
14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14. EFRREITHASEHM
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#)
Mr. YE Yong
HEEE
US$'000
FER
(Restated)
(=7
B) NON-EXECUTIVE B) FHTEZF
DIRECTORS
Fees e 38
Other emoluments: HEthi<
Salaries and allowance HEREh 107
Pension scheme RIKEFEIET
contributions 3
Sub-total Nt 148

The non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as the director of the Company and its subsidiaries, if applicable.

IRFRTESNMENHAREA AT RANBAT (B HESMR

Mr. LEE
Mr. WANG Kong Wai, Mr. CHEN
Xuexian Conway Hong Total
I2REE  FEERE Bk ks At
US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn TEn TEn TE1
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(=3 (&=30) (=31 (=75
2022
20205
C) INDEPENDENT NON- C) BUEHTEZS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees ik 38 64 38 140
The independent non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.
TRBUFRTEENNE IR B ERAS AR ESEMZA
Total At 2,556

BTEFERARASE 202355
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

kR E M ERR M

2 o = |
For the

year ended 31 December 2023

B F20235F 12531 HIEFE

14.

15.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Note 1: Mr. WANG Kevin Dun was re-designated from a non-
executive director of the Company to an executive director
of the Company with effect from 1 September 2022.

Note 2: Ms. CAO Qin resigned as executive director of the
Company with effect from 29 December 2023.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
both years.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included three directors (2022: three directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 14 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2022: two) highest
paid employee who is neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:

14.

15.

%ﬂ%&s’%%ﬁﬁ)\é%ﬁﬁm

Miat1  EIRGEERERBIFNITESRE
RERBEMITESE > B2022F971
HEEER -

a2  BEERTREARBDRITES B
2023F 125290 LM

KmEFEFE EFARSTHRABL
|ET IR SR BN AR A # BN
2o

hfisE#iM g S

rE - FEBLURSHMESSERE
SIEE (2022F : = EE) > HF
BisE S8 LM 14 - EARES
BARAERARBITHRAENEGT
ML (2022%F @ M) RS MIES
BUFTBEF B0 H ¢

e REMREYN T
BARE 5T EIHR

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Performance related bonuses
Pension scheme contribution
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2023 2022
2023%F 20224
US$’°000 US$'000
F=T FE7x
(Restated)

(REF)

236 397

17 55

20 30

273 482




15.

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 15.

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the

directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

Ifis=#HMES &)

HHEMA R A THREANIFEERF
EFNmREFMESNAZRNT

HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000
(equivalent to US$128,000 to
US$192,000)

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
(equivalent to US$255,001 to
US$319,000)

Total

1,000,00038 75 E1,500,00038 7T
(BEM128TETE
192F %=71)
2,000,001 75 E2,500,0007 7T
(FHE 255,001 ETTE
319F =7)

There was no arrangement under which a director or the Chief
Executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

both years.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors and
five highest paid employees as incentive on joining or as
compensation for the loss of office during both years.

DIVIDENDS

16.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022, nor has any dividend been proposed since the

end of the reporting period.

2023 2022
20235 20224
No. of No. of
employee employee
BEAH BEAH
- 1

1 1

1 2

RMEFE EFNRBITHRABL
#E] IR SR B E AR A # BN Y
2o

RMEFE BEAZEERANURS
HMEEX T ERNMEFERMAR
BUEE B S BE M AR 18 o

RE
HE2023F12H31H K2022F 128
S1HLILEEE AR ERTREZRE

KERSZERRE  BREARTE
BEEIREMRS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

kR E M ERR M

2 o = |

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

17.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings (loss) figures are calculated as follows:

17. SEREH (5B18)

ERBEEANBEELSREFN (B
B) AEEERUTEE

&8 (B58) BENTENT

2023 2022
20235 20224
US$’°000 US$’000
F=T FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit (loss) for the purpose of basic BRtEEREARM (BB B
earnings (loss) per share FE (5i8) 35,713 (9,785)
2022
20224
000
Fi&
Weighted average number of AREESREART (BB B
ordinary shares for the purpose of LB N9
458,168 422,728

basic earnings (loss) per share

No diluted earnings (loss) per share for both 2023 and 2022 were
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for
both 2023 and 2022.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares of 458,168,000
(2022: 422,728,000 (Restated)) in issue during the year, is
adjusted to reflect the effect of the share consolidation as
disclosed in Note 38. Comparative figures have also been
adjusted on the assumption that the share consolidation had
been effective in the prior year.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

20283F K2022F KR EFETET R
BF (B518) » AA20234F K2022F
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FREETTERNME TS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 H 1F FZ

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ME -BERSE

Leasehold Plant and Furniture Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements machinery  and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
&7 REE  BRREA  XERKE b HE ] HRIR 8
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEL Tin TEn TEL SE REH TET
COST A
At 1 January 2022 (Restated) R2002E151H (FE5) 35,597 5,336 46,755 2,075 2,35 4,003 96,921
Additions HE 306 683 4190 576 121 4,982 10,864
Transfers a5 (1,133) - 68 - - 68) (1,133)
Disposals RE = (301) (5,412) (169) (153) = (6,05)
Exchange adjustments ERBEE (3,254) (409) (3,785) (239) (113) (316) (8,116)
At 31 December 2022 (Restated) 12022125318 (B E5]) 31516 5,309 41,816 3,143 2,096 8,621 92,501
Additions HE 79 114 2,873 166 192 163 3,087
Transfers B 9,480 - - - = (9,480) =
Disposals BE - - (5,703) (78) (77) - (5,859)
Exchange adjustments EQER (372) 2397 (1,776) 919 (402) 812 1578
At 31 December 2023 120235126310 40,708 7,820 37,210 4,150 1,809 116 91,808
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZHNERARE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2022 (Restated) 12002615 18 (8 E5) 8749) (2742 27,389) (2,109) (1,728) = (@2,717)
Provided for the year EREE (864) (951) (3,257) (445) (109) = (5,626)
Impaiment loss recognised REREINHESS
in profit or loss - - (149) - - - (149)
Transfers B 374 - - - - = 374
Eliminated on disposal HERIEH - 234 4,656 117 129 - 5136
Exchange adjustments ERBE 782 45 2,047 177 7 - 352
At 31 Decernber 2022 (Restated) R2020E12A318 (£E5) (8457) (3.214) 23.892) (2,260) (1,633 = (39,456)
Provided for the year FREfE (819) (857) (3,403 (395) (201) - (5,675)
Eliminated on disposel HERITH - - 4,809 78 1 - 4948
Exchange adjustments ERBE 143 (2,114) 968 (657) 230 - (1,430)
At 31 December 2023 120235126310 (9,133 (6,185) (21,518) (3,234) (1,543 - (41,613
CARRYING VALUES Egef e}
At 31 December 2023 12023128310 31570 1,635 15,692 916 266 116 50,195
At 31 December 2022 (Restated) 12022126318 (FE5) 23,059 2,095 17,924 883 463 8,621 53,045

BTEFERARASE 202355



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B 22023412531 HIFFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18.
(continueq)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, after taking into account the residual
values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following

rates per annum:

ME-BERSE (&

L E BB RRE (FEITER
S EE RFGEBERRERESE
BUUFLERIFE

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of lease, g REEHF18E405F
or 18 to 40 years Y B 4T HA S
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the term of lease, HiE5 RHEERF2ESFH
or 2 to 5 years Y B 52 HA 1
Plant and machinery 3 to 10 years BRI SE105F
Furniture and fixtures 1 to 7 years KEREE 1E7F
Motor vehicles 4 to 8 years 14 &) E5 & 4FEBE
19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. EFRAEEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
gL HEME &%
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FE7 FEx FET
As at 31 December 2023 $:2023%12H31H
Carrying amount IREE 4,334 20,293 24,627
As at 31 December 2022 (Restated) 22022F12H31H (R E75)
Carrying amount IREE 4,507 20,969 25,476
For the year ended HFE2023F12A310ILEE
31 December 2023
Depreciation charge ERX 112 2,594 2,706
For the year ended HZE2022F12831B LEE
31 December 2022 (Restated) (€<3=7l))
Depreciation charge ERX 116 2,867 2,983
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

19. EREEE (&

Expense relating to short-leases BRI EERNER
Total cash outflow for leases REMHBELREE
Addition to right-of-use assets REFRAEEE

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses,
equipment and vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 3 months to 47 years for both years.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for various
offices. As at 31 December 2023, the portfolio of short-term
leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed above.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of US$5,231,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of US$20,293,000 as at 31 December
2023 (2022: lease liabilities of US$4,652,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of US$20,969,000). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

2023 2022
2023 20224
US$’°000 US$'000
F=E7T FE7x
(Restated)

(BEF)

5,679 840
7,562 3,384
2,169 123

KMmEFE  AEEHEESERA
E-RE - RBEREWMHAEE Y
BermBEFE HEGRKIER
EA7TEWEIE RS - HEMFRRTD
RIFEREEBE  LEITEAEF
B - EEEAE R KT AT
ORI ARNRERN  AEBRAS
B B9 E & I &8 E & [7) 7J 58 ) 3017 BY
HAR -

AEBHEASHAETI N EEA
B 2023F12831H A EA
SH YW EREEERIHE
B ERFA EAE S AL o

tH B PRI 55

E4h > 722023F 128318 » LIARREE
ARBE20,293TETHIMAESE
155,231 T FE 75 (20224F : LU+BRA®
BAHEEE20,969 T = cHEREESE
B4,652TFT E7T) cBEBEAFTAENE
EEETRWERERIN HEHRET
MM EREMRZE - HEEERSTH
EEERIEIF R
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in e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BLFE20234F 12531 HIFFZ

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various offices under operating leases with
rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 3 years (2022: 1 to 3 years), with unilateral rights
to extend the lease beyond initial period held by lessees only.
Majority of the lease contracts contain market review clauses in
the event the lessee exercises the option to extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s
option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.

20.

REWFE

FEBREBEEEHSELHEHETHA
EOoHEESRAXN -HERBEVS
AEA1E3ME (20224 1 E34F) » H12
AEANEREFASHEELEEEY
YEREALLSN o FE AR AT AE BSR4 M
HBERT AZEEEERBEa™S
BEEER

AERBAEREREEZHMAZINEG
R ARFEEEHUNERERS
BNIEERSHE-HEGRAES
FerEERERNABATEEE
HRBEEMENERERE

US$’000
F=x

COST 57N

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2023 was US$2,762,000 (2022: US$2,808,000).

At 1 January 2022 (Restated)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2022 (Restated)
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2023

DEPRECIATION

At 1 January 2022 (Restated)
Provided for the year
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2022 (Restated)
Provided for the year
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2023

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2023

At 31 December 2022 (Restated)
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2022 181H (=) 1,601
EVE -BERREEH 759
BE R oEEE (157)
1120225128310 (K&&EF) 2,203
PE R %L (37)
R2023%E12831H 2,166
e

2022 181H (=) (380)
KNEEE (49)
PE R %R 33
22022812831 H (#EE5) (396)
B (237)
BE R % 7
2023%12831H (626)
IREE

2023%12831H 1,540
1120225128310 (K&&EF) 1,807

R2023FE12831H  KEEBEREY

ENRARBES2,762F =T (2022
F :2,808F %) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 H 1F FZ

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 20. IXEYE (&
The fair value was determined by management of the Group NABETHAEESERERERER
based on the depreciated replacement cost approach, where EEEMAEET EREREH AL
the key inputs are unit replacement cost, based on current cost EREEYENERNANEBENE
of replacement of the property, and adopted depreciation rate, ERAUERBEZEEYE BT
based on professional judgment. EXo
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best PMEEtEN AR EBER  YENR
use of the properties is their current use. The fair value of the SEERERRAHENBER NRE
investment properties is at level 3 fair value hierarchy at the end R REMENAABEAFEIR
of the reporting period. NRBERES
The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight- P EYENRIOERNLUEG EIT
line basis over 30 years. Eo
GOODWILL 21. B8
Elec-Tech Shanghai
Solid State Arcata
Lighting Electronics
(HK) Limited Co., Ltd. NVC DK
(“HKSSL”) (“Arcata”) A'S Others Total
8 (F#)
RERE LEMERE
ARAT  EFERAA NVC DK
(T&#GE) (TR +%81) NS Hith B
US$'000 USs$'000 USs$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FTET FTEr TEn FTET TEn
COST D%
At 1 January 2022 (restated) $20206£1A18 (EEF)) 50,167 1,156 3,813 33,362 97,498
Exchange adjustments ERRE (5,003) (98) (329) (2,821) (8,245)
At 31 December 2022 (restated)  $22022512831H (18 &%) 54,164 1,058 3,490 30,541 89,253
Exchange adjustments ERAE (903) (18) (58) (509) (1,488)
At 31 December 2023 20235128318 53,261 1,040 3,432 30,032 87,765
IMPAIRMENT BE
At 1 January 2022 (restated) 1202261818 (EF) 27,168 = 3,813 33,362 64,343
Exchange adjustments ERAE (2,297) - (323) (2,821) (5,441)
At 31 December 2022 (restated) ~ #22022512831H (B &%) 24,871 - 3,490 30,541 58,902
Exchange adjustments ERRE (415) - (58) (509) (982)
At 31 December 2023 12023F12831H 24,456 - 3,432 30,032 57,920
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2023 20235128318 28,805 1,040 - - 29,845
At 31 December 2022 (restated)  #22022512831H ((E &%) 29,293 1,058 - - 30,351

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed
in Note 23.

ERBEREAANFBEENWE
231 BB o
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B E20234F 12531 HIFFE
22. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22. HthWEEEE
Trademarks  Trademarks Deferred
(indefinite (finite Computer Customer development
useful lives)  useful lives) software relationships costs Patents Total
BE(ER  HE(ER EEHE
AERESR) FEAEEH BE#RH ERH% R LT EH
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
T%n Fxn T%n e Fxn T%n FER
CosT (1%
At 1 January 2022 (Restated) 1202281818 (BE5) 2,760 12,573 995 51,927 1,641 32,503 102,399
Additions RE = = 36 = 899 3,987 4,922
Disposals EE - - (80) - - = (80)
Exchange adjustment ERHE (233) (1,064) (81) (4,429) (166) (2,684) (8,657)

At 31 December 2022 (Restated) 142022128318

(& E5) 2,527 11,509 870 47,498 2,374 33,806 98,584
Additions RE - - 679 - 1,207 1,451 3,337
Disposals EE - - - - - - -
Exchange adjustment ERER (42) (191) 171 (529) (44) (533) (1,168)
At 31 December 2023 12023128314 2,485 11,318 1,720 46,969 3,537 34,724 100,753

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Z3t# 8

At 1 January 2022 (Restated) 72202215 1H (£ E31) - (7,963) (476) (12,803) - (27,377) (48,619)
Charge for the year KERR - (2,373) (61) (2,196) - (2,494) (7,124)
Eliminated on disposals HERITH - - 3 - - - 3
Exchange adjustment ERHEE - 745 42 1,153 - 2,206 4,146

At 31 December 2022 (Restated) 142022128318

(& =5) - (9,591) (492) (13,846) - (27,665) (51,594)

Charge for the year KEBY = (1,851) (85) (1,615) S (2,906) (6,457)

Exchange adjustment ERERE - 124 (154) (440) - 249 (221)

At 31 December 2023 120235128318 S (11,318) (731) (15,901) = (30,322) (58,272)
CARRYING VALUES REfE

At 31 December 2023 12023%E128318 2,485 - 989 31,068 3,587 4,402 42,481

At 31 December 2022 (Restated) 12022£128318
(& E5) 2,527 1,918 378 33,652 2,374 6,141 46,990
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Deferred development costs are internally generated. The Group’s
computer software, customer relationships and patents were
acquired from third parties. Trademarks were purchased as part
of a business combination in prior years.

The above intangible assets other than trademarks with indefinite
useful lives have finite useful lives. Such intangible assets are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the following period:

Trademarks with definite

useful lives
Computer software
Customer relationships
Patents

5 years

510 10 years
5 to 20 years
5to 10 years

The trademarks with indefinite useful lives are renewable at
minimal cost. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group would renew the trademarks continuously and has
the ability to do so. Various studies including market, competitive
and environmental trends, and brand extension opportunities
have been performed by management of the Group, which
supports that the trademarks have no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the trademarked products are expected to
generate net cash flows for the Group.

As a result, the trademarks are considered by the management of
the Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trademarks will
not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite.
Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of the
impairment testing are disclosed in Note 23.

22,

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 H 1F FZ

HthEREE (&

BIEFR S BB EL - ~EER
BT EPEGRREMETLES
ZHEB - BENBEFEERES
GHHE—SOMBE-

PREERAEAFRVEIERIN £t
BREEHRARIERFH - ILH
BEBERUTHBRER AEHN -

BERAEREHNER 55

B 5F104F
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E-rEREEEEETEEME
BENS RERRRED UK DE
IEHERE ZSMARABEHER
BENERRRAATEEELS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

23.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND  23.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE

USEFUL LIVES

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and trademarks
with indefinite useful lives set out in Notes 21 and 22 have been
allocated to three individual CGUs. The carrying amounts of
goodwill and trademarks (net of accumulated impairment losses)
allocated to these units are as follows:

HKSSL
Arcata

LB EREMS  WaE21 K22FFr
FEHERAERNERBFHNER
ENRE-ZEEBREcELEMNU-D
REF%EFEANEERBENREE
(DR RsHREBRER) 0T :

Goodwill Trademarks
meE 5L
2023 2022 2023 2022
20234 2022%F 20234 20224
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FERT FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E7)) (&&:7))
EBERE 28,805 29,293 2,485 2,527
fa =15 1,040 1,058 - -
29,845 30,351 2,485 2,527
bR EMEmEREEN EERERE

In addition to goodwill and trademarks above, property, plant
and equipment, other intangible assets and right-of-use assets
(including allocation of corporate assets) that generate cash
flows together with the related goodwill and trademarks are also
included in the respective CGU for the purpose of impairment

assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (continued)

HKSSL

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 16.43% (2022:
16.21%). HKSSL's cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2% (2022: 2%) growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the historical consumer price index
growth rate and does not exceed the average consumer price
index growth rate in the United States. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows which include sales growth rates and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance
and management’s expectations for the market development.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
management of the Group determines that there is no impairment
on HKSSL. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of HKSSL to exceed the recoverable amount of HKSSL.

23.

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt ZE20284F 12531 H1F EE
78 R B IR B (8 A A A0
®REEREIR (&)

ERRE

ZEBEMUMNTWESEEREERB
Bt LET ZtEFERENREE
B ENRELEHRMBEEENIR
ERETERAKRITIEE16.43% (2022
F 116.21%) - EBABERLERU
EHIRERESFERBEN2% (2022
F12%) BEREEEHEBH ZEREX
ERELHEEBREHERE TA
THBEEETHHEEEREHER
Ko BEREBEEFEANAEMBERR
REBESHA LGt ARE BF
HEREXREMNX ZEAENZ
BNBEXRELAEEBHTHER
BYFEHER

B E2023F K2022F12831H IE4F
EAEREEBEECEBRELE
BE BEEERE TAZERERW
FEREEIEEZFHHEFITENETE
IBENETDEBESEERENTW
EEFEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

23. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND 23. B2 K EERr{FRAEHEN
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE mAEERENS &)
USEFUL LIVES (continued)

Arcata k1S
The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based ZBEAUMNTWE£2EERIE-EHE
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow BxtELiEBET ZAEFTHRENEE
projections based on financial budgets approved by management HEMNKELFHMBEEENIR
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 14.18% (2022: S RETAAIRITIRE14.18% (2022
14.14%). Arcata’s cash flows beyond the five-year period are F114.14%) P FEBAFEBULER
extrapolated using a steady 2% (2022: 2%) growth rate. This HEREFEHEEN2% (20224 .
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts 2%) BEXEHEBH ZEREXER
and does not exceed the average consumer price index growth MHETEWNRETED > B ABEF
rate in the PRC for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions METENTFHEEERIEHIE
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash EX-HEFERBEGSHANEMEER
inflows/outflows which include sales growth rates and gross BREBSARA R GstAER &
margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance EHENEXRRENXK ZMGER
and management’s expectations for the market development. ZBMNBFRELREEBEH TS XL
R R
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December B E2023F12831H K&2022F128
2022, management of the Group determines that there is no SIHIEFE AEEREEBEEM £
impairment on Arcata. Management believes that any reasonably Bl ERE BEEBDA EUZE
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the BENENESENEEHHITE
carrying amount of Arcata to exceed the recoverable amount of RAEENEREEBAM RSN
Arcata. U [o] & 58 o
24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 24, REERTZ ¥
2023 2022
20235 20224
US$’000 US$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(#&=E=75))
Cost of interests in associates REE QB R = A A 145,313 147,778
Share of post-acquisition profit or loss LW EERF B EEREMNEE
and other comprehensive income, WA HOBRE WA S
net of dividends received 11,789 (3,298)
Impairment losses recognised EERERIE (624) (25,275)
156,478 119,205
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ir e MR HRRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 24, REEATIZELS (B)
Details of each of the Group’s material associates at the end of REBZSTEBRE AT NHEE K
the reporting period are as follows: =R
Country of Principal Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation/ place of  ownership interest  voting rights held
Name of entities registration business  held by the Group by the Group Principal activities
By FEEMEAMAER FEEMERERE
Bkl ARER @ FEEEME un (] a7 TEEY
2023 2022 2023 2022
IR 20220 [PIPRESE 20224
Brilliant Lights International Singapore Singapore 30% 30% 30% 30%  Investment holding and
Holding Pte. Ltd. (“BLIHP") manufacture and sales of
lamps, luminaries, lamp
transformers, lighting
electronic products and
other appliances
Brilliant Lights International s s 30% 30% 30% 30% RELEBRUKRBEREE
Holding Pte. Ltd. (TBLIHP) KAREEBRERS
BRETEMREAMER
Zhuhai Zhengtong Electrical The PRC The PRC 10% 10% 10% 10%  Sales of lamps, luminaries,
Industrial Co., Ltd." lighting electronic products
(“ZZED) and other appliances
KETEAEIEE HE HE 10% 10% 10% 10% HENR BE -RAET
BRAA (B ER) EmREMER
Beijing Marriott Runde Energy The PRC The PRC 20% 20% 20% 20%  Research and development of
Saving Technology Co., Ltd.* LED lighting products and
(“BJWH") other appliances
ITRERBEMERE FE + 20% 20% 20% 20% LEDRPERKEMKXEN
BRAR ((HRER) R
L These companies are limited liability company in the PRC. # ENTEEPEPVERSEL

The above table lists out the associates of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affect the share of results
of associates for the year or constitute a substantial portion of the
Group’s interests in associates. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Note: In the opinion of the directors, BLIHP, ZZElI and BJWH are
regarded as associates of the Group because the Group
appoints director in the board of directors of the respective
companies which indicates the Group has significant
influence over the respective companies.

o

a Ry

ERINHEEB R ETEZERBEH
ERDFEXEUBREERN B
ERNARmEERB D ZAER B
ERA EFRRIHAMBEART
HBE BYLEBERBESRR-

Mzt EEBAH > BLIHP BB EB KL
REERGARERNBERT
AREEBRESRENEZTERE
FEF EXRAFEEHI QTR
BERTE-
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24.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Impairment assessment of interest in BLIHP

BLIHP and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “BLIHP
Group”) are engaged in manufacturing and sales of lamps,
luminaries, lamp transformers, lighting electronic products
and other appliances with the NVC brand in PRC. BLIHP’s
sales were made through various e-commerce platforms and
traditional sale channels, representing the online and offline
segments respectively. Triggered by the influence of Covid-19
pandemic in PRC, BLIHP’s offline business had been adversely
affected during the year ended 31 December 2022, resulting
in a substantial shortfall in operating profit when compared to
previous year’s financial budgets approved by management.
As at 31 December 2022, the accumulated impairment loss
amounting to US$24,640,000 was recognised. Subsequently,
the Group’s management concluded there was indication for
impairment recovery in 2023 due to improvement on the financial
performance of BLIHP, and conducted valuation assessment
on the carrying amount of interest in BLIHP, an associate of the
Group, as a whole.

The Group’s management engaged an independent qualified
professional valuer to assist them to determine the recoverable
amount of interest in BLIHP, based on the past performance of
BLIHP and the expectations from the Group’s management for
the market development estimate.

The recoverable amount of the interest in BLIHP is determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period, and discount rate of
14.5% (2022: 14.0%). BLIHP’s cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 2.2% (2022: 2%) growth
rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average consumer price
index growth rate in the PRC for the relevant industry. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include sales growth
rates and gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s
past performance and management’s expectations for the market
development.

The results of the valuation assessment using these assumptions
show that the recoverable amount amounting to US$155,978,000
is above the carrying amount of interest in BLIHP as at
31 December 2023. The directors of the Company have
consequently determined an impairment loss reversal amounting
to US$24,229,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 24. REERBIZELE (B)
Summarised financial information of a material —REEBHE NG N FEE R
associate )
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s EEAREFRTEH S ATNHBTE
material associates is set out below. The summarised financial R EHIW T - U THBEERBE
information below represents amounts shown in the associate’s IEZBMEANTRIERRE FSIRE £
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS Standards. B4R AV BI FR IR R FAYI S EB o
All of these associates are accounted for using the equity method RZEEEMBERERP FRERSEH
in these consolidated financial statements. ENBIIR AT EARE
BLIHP BLIHP
2023 2022
20234F 2022%F
US$’000 US$’000
F=T FE
(Restated)
(&)
Current assets REEE 538,374 364,080
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill ~ IERENEE (FEIEESE) 549,141 572,269
Goodwill RS 283,668 288,478
Current liabilities mENEE (536,028) (414,814)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (357,576) (374,269)
Net assets FEE 477,579 435,744
Less: P
— goodwill e (233,844) (237,809)
- non-controlling interests in A A =YNEIPA VNG
the associate’s subsidiaries JEZEGIEER ((HEATW
(“Associate’s NCI”) FEFEHIMERER ) (31,474) (35,128)
Net assets, excluding goodwill and FEE AOEBERMERTN
Associate’s NCI PRI M 212,261 162,807
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBEFMBEEE DL 30% 30%
Group’s share of net assets of the REBRGEHERTFEE
associates, excluding goodwill and FEEBERBE AT
Associate’s NCI JEESI = 63,678 48,842
Goodwill on acquisition of the associate U EEH & AT HE 84,630 86,046
Impairment loss recognised ERRERIE - (24,659)
Other adjustment HhiEze 6,427 7,244
Carrying amount of the investment RS REE 154,735 117,473

ELERERARAST 2023F®R 255



256

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

kR E M ERR M

2 o = |
For the

year ended 31 December 2023

Bl F20234F 12531 HIEFE

24.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 24.

Summarised financial information of a material
associate (continued)

Revenue

Profit for the year

Profit for the year excluding non-
controlling interests in an associate’s
subsidiaries

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
excluding non-controlling interests in

an associate’s subsidiaries

REERBZ#ER (&
—XETEBRE AT EER
E (&)
2023 2022
20234 20224
US$’000 Us$'000
FErx FE
(Restated)
(&)
WA 708,334 646,548
REFHE 57,095 70,309
REME FEEREE
NEZ M BRI IEZEHIE
e 57,074 69,394
AEZEBA G 50,183 35,759
AEZEBA G FEERKE
RNEIZ M BRI FEEE S
B 50,141 34,845

Aggregate information of associate that are not

individually material

& 5! 3 7 B KRV B E A B B EE LR
B

The Group’s share of profit

The Group’s share of total
comprehensive income

A& [ AL )

FEHBGEEEWRASE

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEBRZEHE AT NERN

interests in these associates

AstiREE

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
# E2023F HZE20224F
WPISESIENE- I 125310 ILEE
US$’000 US$’000
FET FE
(Restated)

(BRE7F)

41 334

41 334

1,743 1,732
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EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI

25.

iR IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

BRARBESAHMEZEK
A IR

Listed equity securities R
Unlisted equity investments LRSS

The above listed equity investments represents ordinary shares
of an entity listed in the PRC and the above unlisted equity
investments represent the Group’s equity interest in a private
entity established in the PRC. Both investments are not held for
trading, instead, they are held for long-term strategic purposes.
The directors of the Company have elected to designate these
investments in equity instrument as at FVTOCI as they believe
that recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair
value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s
strategy of holding these investments for long-term purposes and
realising their performance potential in the long run.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

26.

2022

2023%F 202245
US$’000 US$’000
FET FE7T
(Restated)

(&)

1,808 1,967
111 113
1,919 2,080

PR EHREERERERE LT
ERMNEER RFLETREERE
EAEBEATETREMAINMEEERN
RiE-2ERETLFFIEXZER
MmE~ARRAEBRENMFTR FAF
EEEERERTAEREEERR
ARBEFAHMEEYRA  BBRK
ERANEDERZEIRENAR
BEERKHRAERARATAEZ
SRERREBEREBEARBENNR
BE N AT o

B 5% R RERKARR

E 5 R
W EEERER

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for credit losses

FBREUERR

Bills receivables

As at 1 January 2022, trade receivables from contracts with
customer amounted to US$77,628,000 (restated).

2023 2022
20235 20224
US$’000 US$’000
FET FET
(Restated)

(&)

50,787 46,892
(1,569) (1,663)
49,218 45,229
246 624
49,464 45,853

R2022FE1B1H KEER&ERMW
BRI AT7,628TE T (K&
) o

BLEFIZERAIRAT 2023F K
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26.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

The credit period on sales of goods is ranging from O to 120
days.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are amounts due from
related parties of US$166,000 (2022: US$179,000) which are
repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to the major
customers of the Group.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, presented based on the transaction
date, and an analysis of bills receivables by age, net of allowance
for credit losses, presented based on the bills issuance date at
the end of the reporting period.

26.

B 5 RkRERIKRIRR

o

(%)

A8

EmEENEERNFOEI120K-

FEUWRA B HBR RN 166 T =71 (2022
FEATITER)FAREEE ZEW
R ZERANWEREERMFAR
HEAEBFEZLANEEES -

UTRERXZEHEINEZRE
W (BEHNREEEEER) iR
B URERRSHARNEZRE
THHEZY) ZREZDHREEU
R (BHREEBERER) D

Trade receivables B 5 RN
Within 3 months 3ER K

4 to 6 months 4ZF6@ AR

7 to 12 months 7TE12@ A

1 to 2 years 1EE2F
Over 2 years 2F Uk

Bill receivables EiRREUER TR
Within 3 months 3MEB R

4 to 6 months 47618 B

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of US$5,081,000 (2022: US$7,790,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, US$1,837,000
(2022: US$1,443,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is
not considered as in default based on repayment records of those
customers and continuous business with the Group.
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2023 2022
20235 20224
US$’000 US$’000
FET FET
(Restated)

€<==27l)

42,658 38,173
5,501 6,673
435 184
134 75
490 124
49,218 45,229
232 379

14 245

246 624

R2023FE12831H AEEBNE S
FEWRAGEPTEBEREEES
5,081 F %7 (20224F : 7,790F =
7o) WREWRZ ZEERERRN
REHBE AP TR ERIES
1,837 FTFET (20224 : 1,443F %
7o) BEEEAOH N FE RERE > BRI
ZERPNERTRKARERN
FEER T HEABEN
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

As at 31 December 2023, total bills received amounted to
US$246,000 (2022: US$624,000) are held by the Group for future
settlement of trade receivables. All bills received by the Group are
with a maturity period of less than six months. Other than bills
receivables, the Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Trade receivables amounted to US$7,591,000 (2022:
US$8,247,000) have been pledged as security for the Group’s
borrowings (Note 42).

Details of impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables
are set out in Note 44(b).

26.

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

BERRERBWIR™M (&

R20283F12B31H AEEFHEE
BEOWERR4EEE246T E 7T (2022
F1624F =TT BRNARREEES
FEURBR TN e REE N EIRIFR B ZHR
EIEREAMR /LR NE B o BREIRE I
RPN AEBUBRZSERTE
EAIKIR G o

B EEA7,591F =T (20224 : 8,247
TET) NEZERERCIEARE
B & AR R & T LUE IR (M 5E42) -

B MEEEWRDB R ET G
1E&FMI5E44(b)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

B F20235F 12531 HIEFE
27. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 27.
PREPAYMENTS

Non-current asset ERENEE
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, UEEI% R E &
plant and equipment REZGREE
Current assets REEE
Prepayments SEANEN

PRC value added tax recoverable AJREPEIEER
Deposits paid to and other receivables BFEZFNREEK
from third parties FEUR S = 75 H h FEURBR FR

Other receivables due from related parties & Wi B Bt 75 B9 = fth FE Uk BR =X

Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEERERE

Other receivables due from related parties & Wi B Bt 75 B9 = fth FE U BR =X
- Associates —HERE
— An entity with significant influence over
the Company
— Subsidiaries of the entity with
significant influence over the
Company

MEAE

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables are set out
in Note 44(b).
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—HEARBEEATENER

—HARBEEAFENEEY

=] x
HhEUWRR - FEE RTE
=k
1?] TA
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
US$’°000 US$'000
F=E7T FE7x
(Restated)
(&E7)
41,993 42,646
2,450 1,730
4,037 3,871
3,500 3,469
3,581 3,663
13,568 12,733
(131) (387)
13,437 12,346
1,781 1,808
939 955
861 900
3,581 3,663

Hh R AR ETEEBEN
ftzE44(b) o
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B FE20234%F 12531 HIFF/E
28. INVENTORIES 28. =8
2023 2022
20234 20224
US$’000 US$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&)
Raw materials and consumables BEMRFHFE R 8,422 11,549
Work in progress ¥l em 3,059 3,266
Finished goods DA 33,755 49,490
45,236 64,305
During the current year, management of the Group considered the NEAEE > ANEEFRSEEBEEZET
market performance and the expected net realisable value of the EREERGENTER IR EE-
inventories. As a result, the Group has written down inventories, b REBEEEFEE (W FEEDO)
net of reversal, of US$1,340,000 (2022: US$3,723,000) to their 1,840F %7t (20224 © 3,723F %
net realisable values and included in “Cost of sales”. 7T) WR E H e 2 IR %8 > st A MEH
EmAE] -
29. FINANCIAL ASSETS (LIABILITIES) AT FVTPL 29. A ABHEAESHNSH
= ==
B5E (88
2023 2022
20234 20224
US$’000 US$’000
FE7T FE
(Restated)
(&)
Listed securities held for trading: BEBE LHHES
Equity securities listed in the PRC, PR EmMRAES %
at fair value NAEETER 3,939 4,327
Derivatives that are not designated in FEHAGFBAGRPIEENTT
hedge accounting relationships: o = =
Foreign currency forward SNERARA A —
contracts — Current liabilities mEEE - (1,068)

BLEFIZERAIRAT 2023F K
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE
29. FINANCIAL ASSETS (LIABILITIES) AT FVTPL  29. EARBES ARz SR

(continued) BE (87 @)

Major items of the foreign currency forward contracts are as INESRER AT EEAM T

follows:

Year ended 31 December 2023: B E2023F12H31HLLEE .
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate
LBREHE ZIHRE EX
N/A N/A N/A
iE A TEA T

Year ended 31 December 2022: HZE2022F12A31HLILEEFE :
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate
LBREHE EIHRE Ex
Sell GBP1,764,000 28 February 2023 GBP1: RMB8.90
H € 1,764,000% 5% 2023%F2H28H 1385 - AR¥8.907T
Sell US$5,000,000 15 February 2023 US$1: RMB6.54
4 £5,000,000% 75 2023%2H15H 170 AR¥6.547T
Sell US$5,000,000 7 March 2023 US$1: RMB6.43
i €5,000,000% 7T 2023%F387H 170 0 AR¥6.437T
Sell US$5,000,000 7 March 2023 US$1: RMB6.43
5,000,000 7T 2023%F3A7H 1275 . AR#6.437T

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED 30. IRERIRETEEY EIEHF

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

BANK DEPOSITS/FIXED DEPOSITS WITH
MATURITY OF MORE THAN THREE

MONTHS

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and short
term deposits for the purpose of meeting the Group’s short term
cash commitments, which carry interest at market rates ranging
from 0.01% to 1.00% (2022: 0.01% to 0.03%). The fixed deposits

carry fixed interest rates at 3.1% (2022: nil) per annum.

$R1T HBIRABA = 1B A KO E
FREcE

HeRBEcEBYEREIHEIR
AR mEAEBRREPRSAEN
EEHEF A F0.01%E1.00%
(20224 : 0.01%=E0.03%) BT %5
FEFE - EHEFEHRE3.1% (2022
F 8 NEANXFE-



30.

31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS/FIXED DEPOSITS WITH
MATURITY OF MORE THAN THREE
MONTHS (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, pledged bank deposits amounting to
US$45,992,000 carry fixed interest rate of 3.25% and represent
deposits pledged to banks to secure the Group’s bank borrowing
amounting to US$34,397,000, which was fully repaid in February
2023 and the pledged bank deposits were released upon the
settlement of relevant bank borrowing. The remaining pledged
bank deposits amounting to US$7,575,000 carry fixed interest
rate ranging from 1.45% to 2% and represent deposits pledged
to banks as security for the bills issued by the Group to the
relevant suppliers for future settlement of trade payables. The
pledged bank deposits were released upon the settlement of
relevant bill payables during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances and pledged
bank deposits are set out in Note 44(b).

TRADE PAYABLES

30.

31.

ir e MR HRRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

$R1T HAIRARIB= A
R (@)

2022 12831H > £ % 445,992
FTETWEIRFIRITERIZE T
E3.25%st B 7 151K 1F FIR1T LUER
REBRIRTMHER34,397F =7 (BN
20283FE 2R & FEE) NFEF BIE
HIRITIERNAAREIRITENRSER
RIS EBAT7 575TETHETD
HWIFRITEREN F1.45%FE2% W
BElEFEFE IFEFTRTHE
TOEARNEEREBEERZEHE
BUHHREEE SENKRRBIE
WG NE E2023F12H31HIEF
E>BIRHRTEIENIERENE
BEERRE

847 45 B e B 98 9 4R 1T 75 AR 9 L 1B
BT 5 3% 15 #UR I 3E44(b) o

Trade payables due to third parties
Trade payables due to related parties

supplier finance arrangement (Note)

Note: These relate to trade payables in which the Group has
issued bills to the relevant suppliers and related parties
for future settlement trade payables. The Group continues
to recognise these trade payables as the relevant banks
are obliged to make payments only on due dates of
the bills, under the same conditions as agreed with the
suppliers and related parties without further extension. In
the consolidated statement of cash flows, settlements of
these bills are included within operating cash flows based
on the nature of the arrangements.

FEI S =7 B 5 BT RRRX
FE (T REB /5 B8 A FE (T AR R
Trade payables due to third parties under HEEREZH TENE=ZH
B R ETRRR (B75E)

=

B S EIRMR
2023 2022
20235 20224
US$’°000 US$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&)
35,280 27,682
1,083 1,580
3,082 3,530
39,445 32,792

Hiez . ZERFERERDAERHERD
ol el sk VNN Y
BEZENERRNEZEORMN
B -AERBRERIZSEIRE
R ARARRTRREMRE
7 e R B 5 1 E RO MR B 7E
SRIPETR MAGE—FIT
H-RGEoReERBRP ZER
BREEREZHNMEESAKLE
REME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt E 20234512531 HIF F /&
31. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 31. EFEMKRR (Z&
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
US$’000 US$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&)
Trade payables due to related parties  FE{:BE B 75 B8 5 FEHEREX
- Subsidiaries of the entity with —HANBBEAXENEREN
significant influence over the b /&S A 8]
Company 1,080 1,145
- Associates —EE AT 3 435
1,083 1,580
The followings is an aged analysis of trade payables not under TREHTIFENTZHENEHE
supplier finance arrangement presented based on the transaction BREZHTE S EMIRAWVIRE
date. DHTe
2023 2022
20235 20224
US$’000 US$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&=E=75))
Within 3 months 3MEB R 34,616 26,880
4 to 6 months 4ZE6fEA 776 1,243
7 to 12 months TE12E R 200 713
1 to 2 years 1FE24F 562 242
Over 2 years 2E L F 209 184
36,363 29,262
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ir e MR HRRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

31. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 31. BSEMAKRM &
The followings is an aged analysis of trade payables under TREFNENVNEEERITHIANME
supplier finance arrangement presented based on the bills HREZHETESZENERAERE D
issuance date. Mo
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
US$’°000 US$’000
FET FE
(Restated)
(RE7F)
Within 3 months 3EBR 1,403 1,500
4 to 6 months 4ZF61@ B 1,679 2,030
3,082 3,530
The average credit period on purchase of goods is 30 to 180 EBESYNTEHESEA30E180K
days (2022: 30 to 180 days). (20224 : 30E180XK) ©
32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 32. HtEMKRRAFBERER

Other payables and accruals
Dividend payable

Refund liabilities

Other payables due to related parties

Other payables due to related parties
— Associates
— Subsidiaries of the entity with
significant influence over the
Company

Hi (IR TR IR & A
RS

HEE =K
HAhFE (SRR 75 BRAR

Lt £ B 0 75 B
—BEAT

—HEARBEEAFENEEY

MEAE

2023 2022
20235 20224
US$’°000 US$'000
F=7T FE7x
(Restated)

(&E=75)

26,026 22,283
541 541
2,485 1,217
449 749
29,501 24,790
135 227
314 522
449 749
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023

#E0003412831 B 1F
33. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 33. EEIAR

2023 POP2:

20234 20221F

US$’000 US$’000

F£5T FE7T

(Restated)

(s 1))

Sales of goods HE S M 5,516 5,601

As at 1 January 2022, contract liabilities amounted to
US$5,365,000 (restated).

The contract liabilities were expected to be recognised as
revenue in the next 12 months. As permitted under IFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contract which has
an original expected duration of one year or less is not disclosed.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities and how much relates
to performance obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

R2022F181H AR &EA5,365
FE=7T (KE)

BRHEREBREREREKI2ER iE
BAWA - RIEERMHRSZERE
165EMEF Rl DEETF R EH (R
BHBRAS—ERNER IRFER
RFWEE -

TRERTEINBALEESE
BENEREENKREMNFBEE
BTHBENERBNARREE-

Revenue recognised that was included FHFTAGRBEERN

in contract liability balance at the BRI A
beginning of the year
— Sales of goods —iHESMm

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

2023 2022
20234 20224
US$’°000 US$’000
FErx FET
(Restated)

(& E75)

5,601 5,365




34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BLFE202345F 12531 HiFFE
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 34. IRERIEEE &E
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement MRS BERAEZTNEYN M >
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities EFiREERBEEERBEERIKEE
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax MTAMTEREME=NIELERIE
balances for financial reporting purpose: WEERDT
2023 2022
20234 20224
US$’000 US$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&E75))
Deferred tax assets RILRIBEEE 1,518 1,345
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEEE (6,665) (7,644)
(5,147) (6,299)
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets UTFTEREAEERBEEERIEN
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior TERERTE BB BEEULRESE
years: & .
Taxable
Fair value Fair value temporary
adjustments change of difference
arising from Deductible financial arising
business temporary assets at from
combinations differences FVTPL relocation Total
RAAERE
FABEN e
TEAH EREE 51H2Z
HECN a0 ARER e
EEEES ERER 2y ERER EH
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TEx ST T£n TEn ST
At 1 January 2022 (Restated) 120221811 (R EF) (7,060) 1,580 (321) (1,988) (7,789)
Deferred tax credit (charged) to ~ FMBaE Mt A (418 #9
profit or loss ELRE 780 (204) 213 68 857
Exchange adjustments ERBE 573 (128) 20 168 633
At 31 December 2022 (Restated) 12022128311 (K E5) (5,707) 1,248 (88) (1,752) (6,299)
Deferred tax credit (charged) to  FMEZHEFA (N8R B9
profit or loss ELRE 747 (245) 22 66 590
Exchange adjustments ERER 529 (57) 1 89 562
At 31 December 2023 120235 12A318 (4,431) 946 (65) (1,597) (5,147)

BTEFERARASE 202355
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kR E M ERR M

2 o = |
For the

year ended 31 December 2023

B F20235F 12531 HIEFE

34.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(continued)

The Group has accumulated tax losses of US$7,380,000
(2022: US$7,380,000) as at 31 December 2023 that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the respective group companies in which the losses
arose. In addition, the Group has accumulated tax losses of
US$27,644,000 (2022: US$14,849,000) and US$29,298,000
(2022: US$22,881,000) as at 31 December 2023, which will
expire in one to five years and in one to ten years for offsetting
against taxable future profits, respectively.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax
losses of US$64,322,000 (2022: US$45,110,000) arising from
the subsidiaries as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available in the foreseeable future against which the
accumulated tax losses can be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of US$56,011,000 (2022: US$52,492,000).
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately US$7,574,000 (2022: US$6,489,000) of such
deductible temporary differences. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining approximately
US$48,437,000 (2022: US$46,003,000) as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to US$55,478,000
(2022: US$68,468,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

34.

RIERIBEE &R (B

R2023FE12831H  AEEMN Rt
RIEEE7,380T E 7T (20224
7,380F E7) c JEIEHIRHEESE
EEZABMEE AN KRKERR
o b4 > 722023 12831H » 4
ERMNERTRIERGE27,644T =TT
(20224 : 14,849F E7T) £&29,298
F =0 (20224 122,881 F%57) » A
DRI ESEAR KRN 1E10E W I
RIEERRAE o

HRAEERANTBERKRZSE
AIHENEFREBEAY BE
BRABEE WEAMZENB
NBELEMNRNIEE1E64,322F =T
(20224 : 45,110F =7T) FESIIEIE
MIBEE -

RIREHEFR AEENITNREFE
RE#56,011F E 7T (20224 : 52,492
FEm) - ZEUNAERERETLN
7,574F %5 (20224 : 6,489 =
7)) ERBIRIEREBEE - FHL
48,437F 37T (20224 © 46,003F =
T0) ARRBEERBEEE AT K
AEATMUATNREREBIEHEDN
FEARFR A o

RiIFPE =TSR E > 52008451
B1HEE s E M &A= BEF
BEIRMNREBHWEINR BN A
EEE B B ST 4 BF &= 38 9 2 [O] BF
B BEETERNEREREREED
BEAG BB M ATELEEMBRERD
TR ENEASN R EESD
BB ERE55,478F =T (20224
68,468F = 7T) EHIRIEIR B o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt ZE20284F 12531 H1F EE
35. BORROWINGS 35. f&™
2023 2022
20234F 20224
US$’000 US$’000
F=ET FET
(Restated)
(&)
Secured bank loans that are repayable E—FREENE RS
within one year or contain a repayment  EEREFTNEIRBIETER
on demand clause (shown under current  (fEREh& & FEET)
liabilities) 1,699 39,034
Borrowings comprise: BRERE
Contractual
Maturity date interest rate Carrying amount
38R EEEIES BREE
2022
20224
Us$'000
TEr
(Restated)
(EF)
Secured bank loans (Note a) BIRPRITER (W3ta)  on demand Base*+1.90% p.a. 1,699 4,637
(2022: on (2022: Base™+
demand) 1.90% p.a.)
BEREM BEAR R EE1.90%
(2022FF : 8E  (2022%F | BAF|R
KEDMT) +EF1.90%)
Secured bank loans (Note b) BIEPIRITER (Wab)  February 2023 N/A - 34,397
(2022: 1% p.a.)
202328 AR
(20225 : BE1%)
1,699 39,034

BLEFIZERAIRAT 2023F K
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B F20234F 12531 HIEFE/ZE
35. BORROWINGS (continued) 35. ™ (&)

Note a: The secured bank loans represented facilities secured Hizta: BIERIRITERIEUUE TE ZEK
by the pledge of certain trade receivables (Note 26). IR (MF5126) TEHRIR Z A E o TR UR
The loan is repayable upon the collection of the factored CIEEENEZEKERSE ZE
trade receivables. BEMBENEEER.

Note b:  The secured bank loans represented facilities secured by Mizth: BIRIRIETETISUBIERIETE
the pledged bank deposits (Note 30). The loan was fully = (M13E30) EIRIRE B - BB
repaid in February 2023. K20235%F 28 2 EE

* “Base” refers to the Bank of England base rate. & TEAF= | IEHMEEIRITHEARF

it'i o
36. DEFERRED INCOME 36. EIEW

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
US$’°000 US$’000
FErx FEx
(Restated)
(BRE7F)

Government grants related to property, Y R KR AR MY
plant and equipment BT #e B 363 370

Analysis as: DIUWT

- non-current —3JEREN 221 225
- current — 142 145
363 370
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iR IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B FE20234%F 12531 HIFF/E
37. LEASE LIABILITIES 37. HE&R
2023 2022
20234 20224
US$’000 US$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&)
Lease liabilities payable: EEAEAE:
Within one year —FR 1,793 1,547
Within a period of more than one year —F U FEFBEMFENEREA
but not exceeding two years 1,253 918
Within a period of more than two years MU _EEBRBE L ENHEREN
but not exceeding five years 2,185 1,811
Within a period of more than five years B8 A EMNHRA - 376
5,231 4,652
Less: Amount due for settlement with B OREIBE TR 1218 A B H
12 months shown under current EENFIE
liabilities (1,793) (1,547)
Amount due for settlement after 12 RIERBIBEETIIR2ER %
months shown under non-current EEIIE
liabilities 3,438 3,105
The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities range HEEEFHANEEERFENZX
from 3.7% to 9.4% (2022: 3.7% to 9.4%) per annum. NEIT%EQ.4% (20224 : 3.7%E

9.4%) °

BLEFIZERAIRAT 2023F K
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

38. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary share of SRR E{E0.000001%E 7T
US$0.000001 (20224 : 0.0000001%

(2022; US$0.0000001) each 7t B9 B ARG

Authorised: EE
At beginning of year iRl

Decrease on 27 October 2023 12023E10827 B/

At end of year RERXR

Issued and fully paid BETRER

At beginning of year RER

Issue of shares (note b) BT (M Eb)

Share consolidation (note a) B3 &4 (Mizta)

At end of year REXR

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

38. fg#
Number of shares Share capital
RIZ&HE g7
2023 2022
20234 2022
us$ USs$
ETT =
(Restated)
(BE7)
500,000,000 500,000,000 46,977 46,977
(450,000,000) - = _
50,000,000 500,000,000 46,977 46,977
4,227,281 4,227,281 423 423
845,456 - 845 -
(4,565,463) = - =
507,274 4,227,281 1,268 423
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iR IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BLFE202345F 12531 HiFFE
38. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 38. BR#& (&)

Notes: Hiat -

a) On 27 October 2023, every ten issued shares of the a) 2023108270 AR B &+
Company were consolidated into one consolidated share BETROEHA—REFHKRSD
and the number of consolidated shares was rounded down SHBRMBERLD THNERERE
to the nearest whole number by disregarding each and B  MAREEENE—
every fractional consolidated share which would otherwise ERESHERD
arise.

b) On 9 July 2023, 845,456,130 shares of the Company were b) R2023FE7H9H » AN B ET
issued at the total subscription price of US$8,944,985. 845,456,130 %10 > SR BEEB & 5t

8,944,985% 7T ©

39. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 39. BEAXRRHMKEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
US$’000 US$’000
FErx FE
(Restated)
(E75))
Amounts contracted for but BEFINERNREGEHFRE
not provided in the consolidated BHENEEE
financial statements:
Acquisition of property, plant and WEEME - BRERRE
equipment 971 845

BTEFERARASE 202355
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=AH
AR

PAFSER R B 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BLFE20234F 12531 HIFFZ

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the material subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by

40. AT EEMEBAF

REEH
WEKXWEAQS

the Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below.

A

AX > ARBERKEEFA

SHEHEIMT -

Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered and Effective equity interest
Company name and business paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
BEITREHR
BTy R /AR
REHTE HRREEL S RYES FEEREANRE IEED
directly indirectly
Ef i
2023 2022 2023 2022
020F PRGN 2023F [EPIPRES
Zhejiang NVC Lamps Co., Ltd.* The PRC RMB20,000,000 - = 51% 51%  Manufacture and sale of lamps and
(“Zhejiang NVC") related products
WIELRAERAR el & #20,000,0007 - - 51% 51% RERBERRREEER
(MHIEL)

Sunny™ The PRC RMB10,000,000 - - 100% 00%  Manufacture and sale of light tubes
for energy- saving lamps and
related products

=R e A& %10,000,0007 - - 100% 100% RERBESEREEREHER

Jiangshan Phoebus Lighting Electron  The PRC US$7,000,000 - = 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of light tubes

Co., Ltd.* for energy- saving lamps and
related products

TULGEERRAERAR" i 7,000,000 7 - - 100% 100% HRERBESEBEEREHER

Arcata” The PRC U$$10,000,000 = = 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of lamp
transformers and other lighting
electronic products

RS e 10,000,000% 7 - - 100% 100% RERBEGRERBREMEH

World Through Investments Limited BvI US850,000 100% 100% - - Investment holding

HEREFRAE AREARES 50,000% 7 100% 100% - - REER

NVC Lighting Limited England and (GBP5,000,000 100% 100% - - Trading of lamps, luminaries and

Wales/the UK other lighting products
NVC Lighting Limited ERERERL 5,000,005 5% 100% 100% = - BELR-BAREMEBHER
/%

NVC Lighting International Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% 100% - - Trading of lamps, luminaries and
other lighting products

ETRBERERAR X 200,000 7t 100% 100% - - BEAR-BAREMRRER

NVC International Development Hong Kong HKS1 - = 100% 100%  Investment holding

Limited
FELDERERERAT &8 187 - - 100% 100% REZR
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

g A
i 3

RAF5 e R =X

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 H 1F FZ

40. BABETEMBARFE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#)
(continueq)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered and Effective equity interest
Company name and business paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
BEITREHR
AL/ 5/ #RR
G ARREENE B4ES FEEEEENRE IEEY
directly indirectly
Ef i
2023 2022 2023 2022
020F [WPPESE  2023F [EPIPRE
LED Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - = 100% 100%  Investment holding, R&D on LED
semiconductor technology and
related applications
REZRERAT &% 100,000% 70 - - 100% 100% REZR RERBEELEDFERER
i AR AT A
Zhuhai NVC Youpin Industrial Co., The PRC RMB10,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Research, development and sale of
Ltd.™ luminaries and solar modules
KEELBRBEERAF" HE AR 110,000,000 - - 100% 100% HERHERERABEEH
Arcata (Yangzhou) Electronics Co., The PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Manufacture, processing, sales and
Ltd.™ technical consultation of electronic
components and digital audio and
video codec equipment
[+& BN EFBRAR" HE AR 5,000,007 - - 100% 100% BEMI HEREHEFEE
Y7 ERAERERNRNA:
Shenzhen Leiyun Optoelectronics The PRC RMB10,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Installation of intelligent control
Technology Co., Ltd.” systems, lighting systems,
intelligent lighting products,
lamps, smart door locks.
Research, development,
manufacture and sales of parts,
low- voltage electrical appliances,
anti-theft alarms, fire emergency
equipment, lightning protection
equipment products
RNEEXERBERAT" HE AR 110,000,007 - - 100% 100% ZEBERGIRA BBRA B
RBER SORREMEMHE 1
¥ WERHERS HEER
FERER HhEZRERNE
REERD
HKSSL Hong Kong US$15,000,000 100% 100% - - Trading of lighting products and
investment holding
BERE &8 15,000,000% 7T 100% 100% - - EERPELREREER
ETI Solid State. Lighting Inc. The United US$25,000 - - 100% 100%  Trading LED lighting products and
States LED fixtures
ETI Solid State. Lighting Inc. 6@ 25,0007 - - 100% 100% EEBLEDBHERKLEDIG
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

B 22023412531 HIFFE
40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. EATRETEMBATFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(continueq)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered and Effective equity interest
Company name and business paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
BEITREHR
A/ Ba/ iRk i
G AMREENE BRES FEERLENRE IEEY
directly indirectly
ER i
2023 2022 2023 2022
020F WPVPES 20237 [P
ETI Solid State Lighting (Wuhu) Ltd.*  The PRC US$15,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Research, development,
manufacturing and trading of LED
lighting products
il (&) AEREBRAT e 15,000,000% 70 - - 100% 100% A& REREELEDRAER
ETI Solid State Lighting (Zhuhai) The PRC RMB130,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Research, development,
Limited™ manufacturing and trading of LED
lighting products
il Gk8) KERRAERAE" e AR 130,000,007 - - 100% 100% W& REREELEDRHAER
NVC Lighting Japan K.K. Japan Japanese Yen - - 100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading of LED
300,010,000 lighting products
NVC Lighting Japan KK. BE 300,010,0008 - - 100% 100% HEREELEDRBER
Yidong (Zhuhai) Technology Co., The PRC RMB1,000,000 - = 100% 100%  Trading LED lighting products
Ltd.™
183 (58) BEBRAT" el AR 1,000,0007C - - 100% 100% BELEDRAER
NVC Technologies Canada Ltd. Canada - - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
NVC Technologies Canada Ltd. MEX - - - 100% 100% REER
NVC Global Solutions Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% - - Investment holding
T1ER (5% BRAH ¥ 10,0007t 100% 100% - - REER
Yixun (Huizhou) Lighting Technology ~ The PRC RMB5,000,000 - = 100% 100%  Research, development, sale and
Co., Ltd.* distribution of lighting products
18l (EI) KERRERAE e AR 5,000,000 - - 100% 100% W& BERIHERBER
Shenzhen Bao Cheng E-Commence ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 = = 100% 100%  Sale and distribution of lighting
Co., Ltd.* products through e-commerce
platforms and distribution
channels
AMTEASTEBERAE" e 1,000,007 - - 100% 100% BREFHETARAHRENE
RAERBER
NVC Lighting & Electrical Technology  Singapore Singapore Dollars 100 - o 100% 100%  Sale and distribution of lighting
Singapore Pte. Ltd. products, management
consultancy services
WNRELRAZRRERAT MR 1005718 - - 100% 100% HERDIERAER EEAARE
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e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B 22023412531 H 1F FZ
PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. ERBEEXEMBAEFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#)
(continueq)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered and Effective equity interest
Company name and business paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
BEITREHR
AL/ 5/ #RR
G ARREENE B4ES FEEREENRE IEEY
directly indirectly
Ef i

2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 20024 20235 20220%F

Crawford Global Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% - - Investment holding
FERRARAT &# 10,000%7 100% 100% - - REZR
NVC Vietnam Technology and Lighting ~ Vietnam 1S$8,000 - - 100% 100%  Manufacture of electric lighting
Company Limited (approximately equipment
Vietnamese Dong
('VND")
186,400,000,000)
NVG Vietnam Technology and Lighting ~ #7 8,000%7 (4 - - 100% 100% HEETRERE
Company Limited 186,400,000,000
HEE (HmE))
NVC International Vietnam Company ~ Vietnam US$20,000 - S 100% 100%  Manufacture of electric lighting
Limited (approximately equipment
VND
462,800,000,000)
NVC International Vietnam Company ~ #7 20,000E 7 (4 - - 100% 100% HEETRERE
Limited 462,800,000,000
HEE)
NVC International Investment BvI US$10,000 100% 100% - - Investment holding
(BV) Limited
NVC International Investment (BVI) HBARAREE 10,000% 7 100% 100% - - REER
Limited
Bengbu Leiting Electronic Business ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Sale and distribution of lighting
Co., Ltd products through e-commerce
platforms and distribution
channels
EREEETHHERAT HE AR 1,000,000 - - 100% 100% PFBREFHETARIBRERE
EpBRAER
NVC Lighting AB Sweden Swedish Kronor - = 60% 60%  Sale and distribution of lighting
30,000 products
NVC Lighting AB Tt 30,0005 £2 72 6 - = 60% 60% HERIHRAER
NVC DK A/S Denmark Danish Krone - = 100% 100%  Sale and distribution of lighting
(DKK") 500,000 products
NVC DK A/S A% 500,000/ % 52 58 - = 100% 100% HERSHEHER
(TA%ERH)
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40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

*

These companies were wholly-foreign-owned companies in
the PRC.

*k

These companies were limited liability companies in the
PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of both years.
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40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries

of the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

40.

Proportion of
ownership
interests and

Place of incorporation
and principal place

voting rights held by
non-controlling

49%

Name of subsidiaries of business interests
gl 5y
A B 3L 3t B PSR R
MEAE4LE RIEEEME BERLH
Zhejiang NVC The PRC 49%
MIEL H

BA IR RERE—
FEERBAR

Individual immaterial subsidiaries
with non- controlling interests

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

ir e MR HRRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

Z}éﬂ%ﬂi%ﬁi%’&ﬂﬁ'ﬁ%

BEEEAFEFMESNIERZE
ft B A BB

TRINTEBERFEFEERR
FEBIFL2EWBASD !

Accumulated
non-controlling

Profit allocated to
non-controlling

interests interests
ARE
JEsEI R ZEHIEERIE
bl s

2023 2022 2023 2022
2023%F 20225 2023%F 20224
UERN  USS'000 EVERE USS$'000
TEw TEx xR FTErx
(Restated) (Restated)

(&5 (TE5))

1,923 2,931 19,802 17,237
14 1,307 (1,062) (321)
1,037 4238 18,830 16,916

ERAEEEAEAFESE R
WERBARDNMBENSZEH
AT -UTHHFENREAREER
BRI EE TR RE

BLEFIZERAIRAT 2023F K
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt E 20234512531 HIF F /&
40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. BRATEEMBATFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY C{%")
(continued)
Zhejiang NVC HIEL
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
US$’000 US$’000
F=T FET
(Restated)
==y
Current assets MENEE 48,528 44,971
Non-current assets EREBNEE 11,711 12,361
Current liabilities MEIEE (19,336) (22,067)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (306) (87)
Equity attributable to owners of the KABHEE ABEER
Company 20,705 17,941
Non-controlling interests of Zhejiang NVC  #7LE T RIFEZEFI MR 19,893 17,237
Revenue A 80,243 100,199
Expenses B 74,824 94,218
Profit and total comprehensive income KEFNBREZEWRA G
for the year 5,419 5,981
Profit and total comprehensive income KR ANEEFBRE2ERA
attributable to owners of the Company =11 2,764 3,050
Profit and total comprehensive income AT E TR IERE S M R S PR T
attributable to the non-controlling REBERAEST
interests of Zhejiang NVC 2,655 2,931
Profit for the year REF]H 5,419 5,981
Net cash inflow from operating activities 4 & EENEERESRAFEE 11,009 3,489
Net cash outflow from investing activites R & EENEERSTH FEE (1,592) (1,360)
Net cash inflow from financing activites BB EBIELIRS A S 570 =
Net cash inflow WRERMAFEE 9,987 2,129
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt E20234F 12531 HIFFE
41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. FABEB 35
(a) Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated (a) ML s BREEHE Mt
financial statements, the Group has following transactions HIWEEN  REFHERK A
with related parties: BEELUTRZ .
Relationships Nature of transactions 2023 2022
EAREA RBMHE 20234 20224
US$’000 US$’000
F%ET FE
(Restated)
(R&EF)
Subsidiaries of the entity
with significant influence
over the Group:
HEAEEMAFTEATLENER Trade sales 228 309
BB AT fHE
Purchase 2,956 5,682
BE
Rental income - 116
AU A
Other expenses 8 -
HpEx
Rental expenses - 9
ikl
Associates of the Group:
AEBEMNBERT - Trade sales 131 290
oE
Purchase 556 1,904
BE
Consultancy service income 1,063 1,076
B AR WA
Trademark license income 1,525 1,499
ELEEREILY N
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) RNEETESIE A E I
Group
2023 2022
2023 20224
US$’000 US$’'000
F=7T FE7x
(Restated)
(&=&=7))
Short-term employee benefits mHrRERN 3,303 3,028
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year ended 31 December 2023

B F20235F 12531 HIEFE

42.

43.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group’s borrowings had been secured by the pledge of the
Group’s assets and the carrying amounts of the respective assets
are as follows:

E 5 R
BIRIRIRITER

Trade receivables
Pledged bank deposits

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year. The capital structure of the Group consists
of borrowings and lease liabilities disclosed in Notes 35 and
37 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, retained profits and other reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the management, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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42, IRIREE
AREBNERUSNERNE EFHR
#HoEAEENREBEUT !

2023 2022

20234 20224

NOTES US$’°000 US$’000
=3 FErx FEx
(Restated)

(=)

7,591 8,247

- 53,567

7,591 61,814

43.

BARERE

AEBCEAEEETRAREAER
BETERSERELE AFEBE
EEHZRREGHDSRRFNES
O AEB ERRBRBEFE
MPAE AEEEAERERED A
RIS RITHBENEMKREESR
B HEREERRESEBIYRERT
EAAEGLEDZ (BEEZETRE
BEMBREMER)

EEESHEERN —RELRBF
HUEBERN - EEEEERE
ERRAERSEERWHERE &
REEEBRMHZER SEBRER
KERE S BITHRMND ROEER
BONEFABEBEAEHFEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

44.

iR IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B F20235F 12531 HIEFE

TR

(a)

Financial assets EMEE
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL

— Held-for-trading —FER S

BERAANBEFAEDE

Financial assets at amortised cost Z#FHM AT ENSHEE

Equity instruments at FVTOCI
EHTA

Financial liabilities =R
Financial liabilities at amortised
cost

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets (liabilities) at
FVTPL, trade and bills receivables, deposits, other
receivables, fixed deposits with maturity of more
than three months, pledged bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, trade payables, other payables and
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented in a timely and effective manner. The
policies to mitigate these risks are set out below.

Market risk

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk during both years.

REHER A ENEREE

BARBESAEMEZERAN

BARBEFSABEGNERERE

(b)

ERMITAER
2023 2022
20234 2022%F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
(Restated)
(I E75)
3,939 4,327
185,845 191,222
1,919 2,080
59,465 84,400
- 1,068

MBEAKREEERRER

rEENTIEERITAEGE
BARBESAHMEEWY
AR TR -BAREBES
ABmNEREE (BB &
ZREBBEEBWEIRR REBEE
HAth B U AR~ BAFR 848 = {8
BRNERER EHRMIETHE
PoRERREFEY BH
FEATBRAR ~ HMh B BR AR K 18
MoltEFEMT AFBIRER
ZEENNFZ BZEEMIA
ERNRREEDSER (B
R RR R E R R B
R -EERBRKRBES
JERLBgR o B IS G0 1R R AR 52 5 LR
WERHENTX - EEEERE
R B ¥ UL 5 R B LA R Rz By
BRHEITEERE - BERS
BB R BT o

155 Jal &
7 £ B W 8 F 2 E R A

9 A o K B R R R A R
LTI
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44, £EMTH (&

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b)
policies (continued)

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, bank balances and
borrowings which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. They are mainly denominated in RMB and USS$.
The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange rate
risk arising from transactions that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the group
entities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities
=L
2023

;H‘%ﬂl‘x‘i EEERKRBE

3 P B

g
KRNBETHBABEINE
BEEVIRTEFRAER XK
EEEHIERE -ZEEE
FEUARBKRETHE &
EETERHUEEERD
FEEEMUNEBAENR S
Fft = 4 B9 9N BB OB =R & B o

RS R AEBELUSNE S
BExERKEEREKAERGZ
BREIEWT !

Assets

BE

2022 2023 2022

20234 2022%F 2023%F 2022%F
US$’000 US$’'000 Us$’000 US$'000
FE7T FE7T FET FE7x
(Restated) (Restated)

(L&) (LEF)

RMB AR =

= 15,025 72,775

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2022: 5%) increase and decrease in the functional
currencies of the group entities against the relevant
foreign currencies of respective group entities. 5% (2022:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the end of the reporting period for a 5% (2022: 5%)
change in foreign currency rates. A negative number
below indicates a decrease in profit for the year (2022:
an increase in loss for the year) where the functional
currencies of group entities strengthen 5% (2022: 5%)
against the relevant foreign currency. For a 5% (2022:
5%) weakening of functional currencies of group entities
against the relevant foreign currency, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit for the year
(2022: loss for the year) and the amounts below would be
positive.

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

44, £EMT R (&

(b) ﬂ;ﬁ%)ﬁ%%iﬂﬁﬁ&&%
=

EEmpE (2
BT E DT

TRELNAEBHER SR
NEEKEEEE SRR
INUE T+ B K B2 5% (20224 .
5%) ZBKE ©5% (20224 :
2%) ThEEEEEAE I
MEEANIFRESEFHFRAZH
RELLR KIBEIEEEINE
PEXRA AR IBE S~ FT1g o
BHEDNEEERKSE
2SN EZEBIEE I
REREHIRILE5% (20224
5%) CEXRESEFHHIREELT
HE LUTAHRTERSE
BIThEE & 1 2 AE R SN T (&
5% (20224 : 5% ) Mz F
TR (20226 @ AEFIBIY
m o HMEBRERBNINEEE
RARRINE BT (B5% (20224 ¢
5%) » HAREF]E (20224F :
XEFR) BEAEFEFAERD
FEHL T EEALEE-

Profit or loss Bm
RMB AR

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the relevant years.

2023 2022
2023 20224
US$’°000 US$’000
F=7T FE7x
(Restated)

(&&=7)
(601) (2,911)

EEERR FRERTHE
BR A8 B F Z B9 R BR > EUBURL
7 E A S E R R I EE A
RMe
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44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to pledged bank deposits (see Note 30) and
fixed-rate bank borrowings (see Note 35 for details). The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (see Note
35 for details). The Group cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates
on borrowings. The Group aims at keeping borrowings
at variable rates. The Group manages its interest rate
exposures by assessing the potential impact arising from
any interest rate movements based on interest rate level
and outlook. The management will review the proportion
of borrowings in fixed and floating rates and ensure they
are within reasonable range.

Total interest income from financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost is as follows:

44, £EMTH (&

(b)

Interest income FMEWA
Financial assets at

amortised cost
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AEEEFERSEFRITER
(RMEE30) KR EEF KIRIT
B (FBRME3S) BB
RABEMNKER - AEETR
HEREFEBRTER GFBER
fi5E36) ARIMVIR S RER X
B AEBNBETRENK
REEEEPRERMERN
KB - AEBNERERFE
EF R -KAEBREBENERKF
RERZEFGEEANXESHE
TMEBTRE UBEBHAX
R B o B 1R B A% ET Al TE B R
BAERRBYLL B > I BRI F AR

REEHEERA -
REBHMNAGFENEHREE
R BURAMERT -
2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$’000 US$’000
Fxx TET
1,432 1,995




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Interest expense on financial liabilities not at FVTPL:

44.

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B F20235F 12531 HIEFE

EWMIA &

(b)

Interest expense MEMZ
Financial liabilities at amortised

cost

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis point (2022: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease in variable-rate bank borrowings represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. Bank balances are excluded from
sensitivity analysis as the management considers that
the exposure of cash flow interest rate risk arising from
variable-rate bank balances is insignificant.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2022: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit (2022: post-tax loss)
for the year would decrease/increase by US$8,000
(2022: increase/decrease by US$23,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its variable-rate bank borrowings.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has increased
during the current year mainly due to the increase in
variable rate borrowing.

REBHER A ENTREE

?%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ&&%
=]

FIEE R (B)
WIEERAABEFAERZD
THEaEnNFERY
2023 2022
20234 20224
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FE
272 1,417

HRE T

T #t 81 JE E o AT AR R 3R & P
FTOFIERBEET - Z DR
BRRHMEBRFEENSH
TEZ2EHREIE-FEBIRIT
ERAF = EFH I T ES501E
EHB (20224 : 50 HEZ) » 1€
REEBHANEXSEES
FWF L - AN EEEIRAF
BIRTHEGBEENRESRE
MEESIAE KR WIRITE
BRASEESRRED A -

WHRIZE EF T ES01EE S
(2022%F : 501 &2 > MFR
EHEMBEMHIT A BRE
BZAERF)E (20224F © FHRKR
BEIR) BRLD EMSTETT
(20224 : M,/ #w/23F
ET) o b T ERMN A ERE K
SHEBRITEIMNARE
% Ffr 8K o

RAFE » &NEBEHMKAH

RERBM TE2HNFEBER
BN 2L o
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44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk and other
price risk arising from its investments in equity securities
measured at FVTPL and FVTOCI, and financial assets
(liabilities) at FVTPL, respectively. For equity securities
measured at FVTPL listed in the PRC, the management
of the Group manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. In addition,
the Group also invested in certain quoted equity securities
National Equities Exchange and Quotations for long
term strategic purposes which had been designated as
FVTOCI. The Group has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based
on the exposure to equity and other price risk at the
reporting date.

If the prices of the respective instruments had been 5%
(2022: 5%) higher/lower, the profit (2022: post-tax loss)
for the year would increase/decrease by US$197,000
(2022: decrease/increase by US$168,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of financial assets(liabilities)
measured at FVTPL and the other comprehensive income
would increase/decrease by US$96,000 (2022: other
comprehensive expense would decrease/increase by
US$104,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of
equity investments measured at FVTOCI.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
and bill receivables, other receivables, deposits, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover
its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. The Group only accepts
bills issued or guaranteed by reputable PRC banks if
trade receivables are settled by bills and therefore the
management of the Group considers the credit risk arising
from the endorsed or discounted bills is insignificant. In
this regard, the management considers that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 13% (2022:
9%) and 37% (2022: 31%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits and
credit approvals.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model by grouping trade receivables based
on shared credit risk characteristics by reference to the
Group’s aging of balances. Impairment of US$94,000
(2022: US$60,000) is reversed during the year. Details of
the quantitative disclosures are set out below in this note.

4= AR
7177

R F5 ek R st

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Pledged bank deposits/bank balances/bills receivables

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and bill receivables is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit agencies. The Group assessed
12m ECL for pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and bills receivables by reference to information relating
to probability of default and loss given default of the
respective credit rating grades published by external
credit rating agencies. Based on the average loss rates,
the 12m ECL on pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and bills receivables is considered to be insignificant and
therefore no loss allowance was recognised.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management
makes periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The management believes that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment based
on 12m ECL. For the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022, the Group recognised a reversal of impairment
allowance of US$256,000 (2022: impairment allowance of
US$38,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 H 1F FZ

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44, &I A (&
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HMFRAMEEBIEREER
policies (continued) (#&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EERERBEFFE (Z)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment REBNARNILEERRSER
comprises the following categories: L BT ER -
Internal Other
credit rating Description Trade receivables financial assets
A EETR i B 2 IR HtEmEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have  Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
any material past-due amounts - not credit-impaired
ERE g HFEFEANRBEME BXBERERER GFERBEREESE 1288 EHAEERE
;A B-—REBELEER
(=l
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
but usually settle in full - not credit-impaired
TR BHEARENRIBEHBEREBERERN GFEATEREESEE 12@BBEREERE
B-—RELEEEH
&
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
recognition through information developed internally or - not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired
external resources
Pl &% RIBANEER SN ERRCEERG B LR FEPRAGEES FEHABHEES
FRLLR A IR IE hn B-—RELEER B-FRELEER
(=l ]
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
- credit-impaired - credit-impaired
518 EEBEBTEECRLEEERE GEMRAEES FEBEREES
B-BE4EEER B-BELEER
& ]
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
i #5 BREBRETEBALREARUBRE  BAEE HIBWMHE FRIEH A $H

REWERIENRER R
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

44, £EMTH (&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continueq)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

assessment:

(b) MBEREEBRKREE

(&

EEmEERBEE (&
TR EAEBEHEER
BFRACEBERIGENESER
R

Gross carrying amount

REAE
External Internal
credit credit
Notes  rating rating 12m or lifetime ECL 2023 2022
shap 1208 A HFED
it EEFR  ABEETHR  EHEESRE 20234 20224
Us$’000 US$'000
FTER TEn
(Restated)
(RE5)
Financial assets at amortised
cost
REBHRAIRZENEE
Trade receivables 26 N/A Low risk (note 1)  Lifetime ECL 50,787 46,892
(Collective assessment)
B SR IRR 26 TEA ‘AR H21) FREEHEESE
(EBBaT ()
Bills receivables 26 AA N/A 12m ECL 246 624
ZRRBIRR 26 MA TER 12BREHEERE
Other receivables and deposits 27 N/A Low risk (note 2)  12m ECL 7,081 7,132
EmEUER kRS 27 TEA ‘R Bi2) 12BREHEESE
Pledged bank deposits/bank 30 AA N/A 12m ECL 129,431 138,624
balances/fixed deposits with
maturity of more than
three month
BERRTERRTER/ 30 AA TER 12BEBHEEHE
HRBBE=BEANEREN
Notes: KiaE -
(1) For trade receivables, the Group has applied the (1) ThEZEWRD AEEBE

simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines
the expected credit losses on these items by using
a provision matrix, grouped by past due status.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Notes: (continued)

M

(continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group uses debtors’ ageing to assess
the impairment of trade receivables from
customers because these customers consist
of a large number of customers with common
risk characteristics that are representative of
the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due
in accordance with the contractual terms. The
following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
which are assessed on a collective basis by using
provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-
impaired).

ir e MR HRRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

44, £EMT R (&

(b) ?%ﬁ%%ﬁaﬁ&&%
=

EERERBEL (B)
Kzt : (4
) #)

FREEBEERRERE
B—8 0 AERE AR
BRMARE T EERERE
ZERFBEEBR BAAZ
EEXEREEAREAAHE
EBREFENER  2EFHEE
RrERIRIEEHRRZ
PRAE B EARIAMAE D - T
KRHEEMEEENES
FEWERRFTEENEER
REF BRAERLEBR
FREBHEREERE R¥
EEERG EENRAE
BT o

Average

Gross carrying

loss rate amount
TIIERE IREAEE
% US$’000

FET

31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H

Current BPHA

Less than 2 months past due BHA O 2E A
2 to 6 months past due mHICE6ME A
7 to 12 months past due AETE12ER
Over 1 year past due mHTEM E

0.18 45,706
1.06 1,921
5.99 1,422
73.35 577
82.95 1,161
50,787

BLEFIZERAIRAT 2023F K
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Notes: (continued)

44, £EMTH (&

(b)

()

MEREEEBERER

1= B /m B2 R i B 5T 1S (48)

M (&

(1) (continued) ) %)

Average Gross carrying
loss rate amount
TBLE ERMEAR(E
% US$’000
FEx
(Restated)
(RET)

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H
Current BPHA 1.59 39,102
Less than 2 months past due #HR DR 2@ B 2.68 6,347
2 to 6 months past due HIHA2Z61E B 21.57 542
7 to 12 months past due BHITE12( 8 69.36 455
Over 1 year past due BHEM E 98.37 446
46,892

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group made a
reversal of impairment allowance of US$94,000
(2022: US$60,000) for trade receivables based on

the provision matrix.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Notes: (continued)

@

In determining the ECL, the Group has taken
into account the historical default experience and
forward-looking information as appropriate. There
had been no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. As at 31 December 2023,
reversal of impairment allowance of US$256,000
(2022: impairment allowance of US$38,000) were
made on other receivables from third parties
and related parties amounting to US$3,500,000
and US$3,581,000 (2022: US$3,469,000 and
US$3,663,000), respectively.

B F20235F 12531 HIEFE

44, EFT A (&
HERGESEEERKE

(b)

G-}

1= B /m 52 R B 5T (A

KtaE (4

@)

RETHEHREEBIBR
AEBEBEEEZERBEN
BARBRATREERN -8
YRR LR FE R Rt
mEBEIE N - 722023412
B31H WMEKBFE=ZFAK
RA B 5 B E h E U BR 7R (9
B %3,500F 3% 7t % 3,581
T =77 (20224 : 3,469F
ETRK3,663T %7T)) 1F
R B ZE E #0256 F = 7T
(20224 : FEZEEI8T
EJT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44, £EMTH (&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following table shows the reconciliation of loss,
allowances that has been recognised for trade receivables

(b) ﬂ?i%)ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬂﬁ*%&&%
=

1= B /m 5 R BT (A

TRITEREBIET AR
B BUWEMERNEER

under the simplified approach. HBEER-
Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
EERE
(R&&E
EERE
US$’000
FE
As at 1 January 2022 (Restated) 20225181 H (BEF) 1,879
Changes due to financial instruments recognised 1220221 81HRXR BERER &R T A5
as at 1 January 2022: RED !
— Impairment losses recognised — BB RERIE 110
— Impairment losses reversed —BEEHESIE (1,299
New financial assets MSEMEE 1,129
Exchange realignment PE G5B 2 (156)
As at 31 December 2022 (Restated) 1220225128318 (& E7) 1,663
Changes due to financial instruments recognised 1220231 81HMRERE S/ T A5
as at 1 January 2023: RHEE !
— Impairment losses recognised —BRBAEBE 127
— Impairment losses reversed —BELIRERIE (1,580)
New financial assets S EREE 1,359
As at 31 December 2023 122023 12831H 1,569
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B F20235F 12531 HIEFE
44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44. ERMIR (&
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HMFRAMEEBIEREER
policies (continued) (&
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) = g/fl /Zefe" R (E5E ﬂ?{ Cfég
Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables are BoEIWERGERGS
mainly due to: FERP

2023 2022

20234 20224
Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease)

in lifetime ECL in lifetime ECL
not credit- not credit-
impaired impaired
GFEATFEHEE REbEhEEa
B m GRl) EaEsEyNeeE)
FABRLEEERE EXEI-0AE
US$’°000 US$’000
F= FET

Settlement in full of trade debtors 2 E{45 HARBR E (446,587 T =TT

with a gross carrying amount (20224 : 70,297F =77) WE

of US$46,587,000 (2022: 5 FEURBR =X

US$70,297,000) (1,580) (1,299)
New trade receivables with i 4R AR I E 443,388 F E 7T

gross carrying amount of (20224 : 45,522F = 7tT) WE

US$43,388,000 5 e WUAR "R AL BR

(2022: US$45,522,000)

balances 1,359 1,129
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following table shows the reconciliation of loss,
allowances that has been recognised for other

44, £EMTH (&

(b) ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%iﬂﬁﬁ&&%
=

1= B /m 5 R BT (A

T &7 B HE SR H th 78 U BR
M EE R R

receivables.
Lifetime ECL
(credit-
12m ECL impaired Total
FIEEATEEA
EE/E
12 B (BREEE
EEEIE W AE) &%
US$'000 US$’000 US$’000
FTEx FET FE
As at 1 January 2022 12202251518 (& E75))

(Restated) 387 - 387
Impairment losses recognised T k&3 E & 518 38 - 38
Transfers g (38) 38 =
Write-offs b 67! - (38) (38)
As at 31 December 2022 20225128310 (KB&EZ)

(Restated) 387 - 387
Reversal of impairment B ZE D]

allowance (256) - (256)
As at 31 December 2023 20235 12831H 131 - 131

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in Notes 26 and 27 respectively.

298 NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

ERAAEBRERE S REME
WERTMASZNEERR 2
E—FTEEREDHNHENH
512627 ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management of the Group
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank
loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of the reporting period.

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B F20235F 12531 HIEFE

44, EFT A (&

(b)

MEREEREBERER
(&)

TEEZmEE

HEERDERAR ~&EE
EERMEFEEERARES
ZHRERREFEYKT L
RAEEZEERENES I
BERERERFZHE -F
EEEEREFRITERY
EAER-

TRFIEAEBERERZ
REREMWEIIB R - Z KT %
rEBAXNZRFE G
BEzeMEBRZRATRES

MEBHREHE - ARMS > ERE

TREAEEFTEEER:
BERBREEMRMOIERT

ll

BBt AR FHIR R E e
HithrfrrE &R e R 2 H
BOLERBENEEZBAM
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TREFMERETTRER
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B FE2023F 12831 HIFFE
44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44. EFMTH (&
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HFRAMEEBEREER
policies (continued) (#)
Liquidity risk (continued) HEELTERE (&

Weighted  On demand Total
average or within 1-2 2-5 Over 5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year years years years cash flows amount

REKEEH AHRE

IiEFRI= R—5R —EmF “ERE ERRE MERE WREfE
% US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
i TEr FEr TEr FEr Fin

At 31 December 2023 122023F12B31H

Non-derivative: E
Trade payables BREMRD - 39,445 - - - 39,445 39,445
Other payables EHEMRD - 18,321 - - - 18,321 18,321
Borrowings (R
- variable rate -%8 1.70 1,728 - - - 1,728 1,699
Lease liabllities HESR 6.08 2,021 1,445 2,440 - 5,906 5,231
61,515 1,445 2,440 - 65,400 64,696
Weighted On demand Total
average or within 1-2 2815 Over5  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year years years years cash flows amount
REREY KRR

MET % R—%R —EmME ZERE BBLE RELE REE
% USS$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

A TER TER TE0 TER S

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(&=7) (&=7) (&=3) (HEE5)) (EE5) (EE71)

At 31 December 2022 20225128310

Non-derivative: EZhe N
Trade payables EREAEN - 32,792 = = = 32,792 32,792
Other payables HtEMAERR - 12,574 - - - 12,574 12,574
Borrowings &
- fived rate -E8 3.60 35,635 - 5 - 35,635 34,397
- variable rate -%8 2.08 4,734 - - - 4,734 4,637
Lease liabilities HEaE 7.19 1,668 991 1,955 407 5,021 4,652
87,403 991 1,955 407 90,756 89,052
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The directors
of the Company have set up a valuation committee,
which is headed up by the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, to determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The valuation
committee works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer
reports the valuation committee’s findings to the directors
of the Company every quarter to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value.

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique and inputs used), as well as the level
of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active market for identical assets or
liabilities;

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B F20235F 12531 HIEFE

44, EFT A (&

(c)

TRIANAAEEE

rEBEDESHMIARYF
EHRENBARBEFE-F
AREFEMI—BBRER
AEREYHFERENMGEESZ
BEg URMAnRBEFEERE
BENMGER EREARE-

RESHRARBER  AEER
BEmMSHEIREHE -7
WEE -—ERBABENRS
NT AEREZEBE=5H
BEEMETHE -HEZE
CHGERIIBEEMNER
BFRUBEEBRANMGER
ERBABE -BEYHES
ZEMALABDEZTGERMG
BZEGHNERUBELR
BERIHHERERRA-

() FEFREEHEE
URRIEEHENE
BEERBEIDA
gE

rEBETERMEER
BREPRBAREE
stE- TRIEHARBRN
MEEZETMEEN
ARBE (LHZMA
HERERBABE)
MRt kEn pEES
ENBASHZIEREE
BREEDHNRAEES
EFfBAREBEEFRZ
mAl (B—REF=MR)
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

44,

(c)

(i)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

44, £EMTH (&

Fair value measurements of financial (c) EMIAMAREBE=E
instruments (continued) (&)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and (i) EF RS HEE

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a WURAREEEE

recurring basis (continued) HEEREENAA
EE (&

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those ° = NG ok
derived from inputs other than quoted B2 RBEEN
prices included within Level 1 that are E—RBEEH
observable for the assets or liabilities, wEBINFLE E DY
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly BENTHER
(i.e. derived from prices); and AR ME

mEE (BES
Bi) EE (B
REER) &

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those ° e NG R
derived from valuation techniques that BExtE2FRBE81E
included inputs for the assets or liabilities W IEE ] T ER
that are not based on observable market EHiEERNE
data (unobservable inputs). Exasmngm A

2 (FAER
A2 N
BEARZE.
Relationship of
Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
Line items Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
31 December
FIRRHAZHA
7B RUTREMAREE ARBESHR BESERAREASY BARTREZHASH ARBEMRG
128318
2023 2022
20235 2022
US$'000 US$'000
Assets Assets
(liabilities) (liabilities)
T£n TEn
BE () EEEEN)
Listed securities 3,939 4,327 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A N/A
held for trading market.
REEELHES i RERMRZRE. TER TR
Equity investments 1,808 1,967 Level 2 Quoted bid prices in a market N/A N/A
at FVTOCI with insignificant transaction
volume.
BRARBESAHMZE E_H RREEFANTHZRE. TER TER
WARRARE
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e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44, EMTH (&

(¢)  Fair value measurements of financial (c) EMIAMAREBE=E

instruments (continued) (#&)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and (i) EF R EHEE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a WURAAREEELE
recurring basis (continued) HEEREENAA

18 (&)
Relationship of
Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
Line items Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
31 December
FABRHAZHA
788 RUTEBNALER ARBEEER BEFERAREEASYH BARTRREASH ARBEMEG
128318
2023 2022
20235 20024
US$'000 US$'000
Assets Assets
(liabilities) (liabilities)
TE£r T£n
BE (8F) G
Equity investments 11 113 Level 3 Income approach - in this Discount rate, taking into A significant increase
at FVTOCI B approach, the discounted account weighted in the discount rate
BAABESALMZE cash flow method was average cost of would result in a
BARRERE used to capture the present capital determined significant decrease
value of the expected future using a Capital in the fair value
economic benefits to be Asset Pricing Model,
derived from the ownership ranging from 14% to
of this investee, based on an 16% (2022: 14% to
appropriate discount rate. 16%)
WNE-TRERET BANT HRB ZRIFERE  MREABRLARER
RREREEREBENT FEERERLRE RREEAETE
RERERBARE IR EMMETHERR
RERNMERTERNE o BEA14%E16%
BN GRE. (20226 : 14%%
16%)
Foreign currency forward - (1,068) Level 2 Discounted cash flow - Future N/A N/A
contracts B cash flows are estimated
SMEEHEN based on forward exchange
rates (from observable
forward exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period)
and contracted forward
rates, discounted at rate
that reflects the credit risk of
various counterparties.
TRREERE-FKRRLRER THEA TEH

There is no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 for

both years.

REEHER RERSHR
RFINEHER) kaR
BHEZ(E DRRRTRE
REHFERARNERS

Fo

PRMEEE BS—H 5K

T 56 = 4R 2 T8 b 4 R 4B o
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AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt E 20234512531 HIF F /&
44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44. EFTH &
(c)  Fair value measurements of financial (c) E=MIANAREBEE
instruments (continued) (#)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and () KEF L F I BE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a L ﬁ‘fz} /E fé' 57";% ﬂgﬁ‘

recurring basis (continued) /%'_ﬂﬁ E& E /,%Eﬂg Z‘ﬁ)

BlE (&
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements EoARAAIEEFER
#HER

Equity

investments at

FVTOCI

BARERE

stAHMEE

WA EZE

US$’000

TE=r

As at 1 January 2022 (Restated) 20221810 (EEF) 124

Exchange adjustments ERAE (11)

As at 31 December 2022 and 12022412831 H K%2023F181H
1 January 2023 (Restated) (&&E75) 113
Exchange adjustments PE AT (2)

As at 31 December 2023

(i)

liabilities that are not measure at fair value on

a recurring basis

The fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

Fair value of financial assets and financial

72023F12831H 111

It FERRAE B M B L
RAEE BN
BEREZHBERIZ
nIEE

WIER AL E R ELA
AHEEENHMERE
BEERERMEBENLAR
BEDERBEAREER
ARFFERSAREDN
HEE -

(ii)

KRB EFRDR R
BB HRRET AR
BEEREREENKRE
BRERAAAEEES



45.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

45. MEEHFFEERRIHKR

TERFINEEERETHMELESR
BEs aERERIFRELEFH-
METHELENEREREEREERE
EEHARARREAERNEERN
HREREAEXRTPHEARELTY
EENRERENERE-

Borrowings Lease liabilities Total

EE HEAaRE &%

US$’000 US$’000 US$’000

FET T =T F =T

At 1 January 2022 (Restated) 72202241818 (& &75) 6,279 7,096 13,375

Financing cash flow MERERE 31,363 (2,544) 28,819

Interest expenses FMERE 2,040 423 2,463
Non-cash movements JEIREEEF

Additions AE - 123 123

Exchange adjustments [E R R (648) (446) (1,094)

At 31 December 2022 12022F12831H

(Restated) (RE7F) 39,034 4,652 43,686

Financing cash flow MERERE (37,986) (1,883) (39,869)

Interest expenses FEMAZ 555 320 875
Non-cash movements FREEH

Additions NE - 2,169 2,169

Exchange adjustments B 72 5 B 96 (27) 69

At 31 December 2023 7R2023%F12H31H 1,699 5,231 6,930
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kR E M ERR M

2 o = |
For the

year ended 31 December 2023

B F20235F 12531 HIEFE

46.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Interest in an associate

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Due from subsidiaries
Prepayments and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Lease liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

5 Less than US$1,000

FEREBEE
ME--BERRHE
ERREE
RINBABNKRE
REE AT ED

FRBEEGS
MEBEE
& U B B 2 B RRIR

TR R H At FE U BR X
RERREEEY

MBEESE

il

REBAaRE
FEASB B~ BRI
HME R TARE A
HEERE

SEREaRE
HEEE
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46. BRFNMBRRRR B

2023 2022
20235 20224
US$’°000 US$’000
FET F=ET
(Restated)
€<==270))
132 230
414 51
134,120 130,516
154,735 117,473
289,401 248,270
165,955 196,459
1,571 1,577
43,577 29,896
211,103 227,932
127,937 148,532
5,696 4,877
199 55
133,832 153,464
77,271 74,468
366,672 322,738
266 -
364,406 322,738
1 -
355,405 322,738
366,406 322,738
D1FERT



46.

47.

48.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

46.

e M BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E 20234 12531 HIFFE

& A B M BRI R R 1

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (#&)
Movement in Company’s reserves AT EEES
Foreign
currency
Share Share Retained translation
Capital premium profits reserve Total
R R iEE BENE SMNERERE EE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEr T FTEx TEr TR
At 1 January 2022 (Restated) 72202281818 (&L E51) = 336,088 17,980 41 354,109
Loss for the year AEBE - - (9,559) - (9,553)
Other comprehensive expense AEE M2 EHE A
for the year - - - (21,818) (21,818)
At 31 December 2022 12022512831H
(Restated) (BE7) = 336,088 8,427 (21,777) 322,738
Issue of shares BIThRH 1 8,944 - - 8,945
Profit for the year FRFH - = 11,475 = 11,475
Other comprehensive income ~ AEEAM2EWRA
for the year = = = 23,248 23,248
At 31 December 2023 1R2023%F12831H 1 345,032 19,902 1,471 366,406
* Less than US$1,000 * L1 FET
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 47. ERIERER S
During the year ended 31 December 2023, dividends distributed REE2023F12B31HIEFEE @
to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary, amounted to B AT IEZEI MR IR E
US$515,000, was offset against its current account payable to S15F ETHEFREMNEEFED
the Group, resulting in no cash outflow for dividend distribution. FRikss > B W ER E D IRNIES N
4o
CONTINGENT LIABILITY 48. HEEE

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, a
subsidiary of the Group was involved in a legal dispute
concerning patent infringement, arising in the normal course of
business. At the end of the reporting period and up to the date
on which these consolidated financial statements are authorised
for issue, the directors of the Company are of the opinion,
taking into account of the advice from the Group’s external legal
counsel, that this legal dispute is still in a preliminary stage and
the expected outcome is uncertain. Therefore it is not practicable
for the directors of the Company to estimate reliably the amount
of the obligation that may arise from this dispute, and the timing
and any potential impact on the Group.

H E2023F K2022F 128318 1E4F
B2 AEBR—-BRBASBARER
EBEBREPBEN—FEFNREHEE
BUD -PHREBARRBELRGEH
WHRREETIZEDR KEERAEER
INEEEBEBNER KRB EFRD
BEREFRUDHBRYTIEE 8
HEREBETHEE Bt KA
EEBADFEMMGETAIYLD A SE
EENSESE LEFBAEARE
ERBEEE.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R I

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023412531 HIFFE

49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As announced on 8 March 2024, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed to
purchase 40% of total issued shares of NVC Lighting AB, a
partially-owned subsidiary of the Group, at a consideration of
SEK6,000,000 (equivalent to US$582,000). The transaction was
also completed on 8 March 2024.

Immediately before the transaction, NVC Lighting AB was a non
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and held as to 60% by
the Group and 40% by non-controlling shareholders. Upon the
completion of the transaction, NVC Lighting AB became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report

49.

BEFERFR

FIN2024FE3B8HFIAG  KEE
BILERBE BILELAEEBRER
BB ENVC Lighting AB (7<% [ HY &6
DERREBAR) BEITRMEHN
40% > KB %A6,000,00052 88 (BHE
582F EJT) c X5 INR2024FE388
H5eak o

B4 5 A1 NVC Lighting ABAZ
EENFEEENBAR AXAEERK
FEZEHIMREDBITFEC0%K40%
BN R B TME > NVC Lighting
ABRAXREBNEZEWBAG -



Definitions

E&

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following EARFEHR P > BFEXE R BFRIES > T =
words and expressions shall have the following meanings. FRHEZEEEMUTREZ

“Audit Committee”
EZEEg)

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

EEg)

“China”, “Mainland China” or “PRC”

FAA [

“CG Code” or “Corporate Governance Code”
Mg AFAL

“Company” or “our Company”

“Corresponding Period”

UEECH

“Director(s)”

==y

“Arcata” or “Shanghai Arcata”

MBI LB +~1F)

the audit committee of the Company.
KABEREEG -

the board of directors of the Company.

KABEEFG-

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where the context requires, references in
this annual report to “China” and the “PRC” do not apply to Taiwan, the Macau
Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong.

REARAENE BEREAFREMIBB2EMS  MXERBIEIN  REHRF
RBATHE 2 EEAEEEE  RPIRIITHREREE -

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

ERRAMERCIZ (R EERTFR) -

NVC International Holdings Limited (& T EFE#ERE A FRA B (formerly known
as NVC Lighting Holding Limited (E+HBEZERKRBRAE)), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 2 March 2006 and subsequently
redomiciled to the Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman lIslands. The shares of the
Company are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
BETEBRERERAE RIWHELTRB\ZERARAR) » —HKIK20065F382HTE
ABEBRESIMAIL BERN2010F3B30BRKZMBEREFHEZR
B UREBEHEEEEMEMA—KERRERAE  EROIEBMERL
o

the year ended 31 December 2022.
BISE E2022F12831HILLEE -

the director(s) of the Company.
/NS =

Shanghai Arcata Electronics Co., Ltd.* (&R FEEFAERAE), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on 22 September 2005 and our indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary.

FBMREEFAERRE  —KN2005FIA22HEFEFAMAINEREER
8 Z2RMNBEL2ENB AR -
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Definitions

2

EHNC:

“Group”
TREE)

UHK$U
=

“Hong Kong”
r&#)

“Huizhou NVC”

MEMEL)

“LED”
F'LEDJ

“Listing Rules”

(EHREID

“Model Code”

“Nomination Committee”
NERZEEE)

Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (ZHESZHEBRRMDBERAR) (formerly
known as Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (BEEREZHEBRKRMDBRAR)),
a PRC incorporated company whose shares are currently listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. It is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
ZHERHEERRHERAD FIBAERERHEEBRIRNERRS) > —
KO ERTERNBZBARRZM ETHNARBREMRIAT  HAXATNEER
o

Great Britain Sterling Pound, the lawful currency of the United Kingdom.
- HEEES -

the Company and its subsidiaries.
KRB REWB AT

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong.
B BEBEEGE-

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of PRC.
REARAMNBEEBFITHE -

Huizhou NVC Lighting Technology Co., Ltd.* (EME X EBEREBRA 7)), a
wholly foreign-owned enterprise with limited liability incorporated in the PRC on
29 April 2006 and our former direct wholly-owned subsidiary, 30% equity interest
of which is indirectly owned by us.

BINE LN BRI AERAT  —RP20065FE48 298 fEHE M AL EBE
BREEAE BREHRMUEEZENB RS HMIIBZTHEHI0%RKR#E -

Light-Emitting Diode.
BN IBE -

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
(BEBBEXZMAERRBHESF LHHRE)-

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.
(EMRADMRCIZA LT BEITAEZETESXZHRETE )

the nomination committee of the Company.
RABIRELEEG

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report



“ODM”

T ODM |

“Remuneration Committee”

FMEE S

“Reporting Period”
REFE

“RMB”
TAR

“SFO”
MEEHFRHAERA)

“SGD”
T3 5

“Share(s)”
TR 1

“Shareholder(s)”
TR 2R

“Stock Exchange”
TB# AT PR

“Subsidiary”
=N

“UK?
==A e

‘UK NvC”

“U.S.” or “United States”

M=

Definitions

E&

original design manufacturing, a type of manufacturing under which the
manufacturer is responsible for the design and production of the products and
the products are marketed and sold under the customer’s brand name.
RRFARE BREBER S NEHaEEMNRFANEE MERIUERS &
R SE I H & o

the remuneration committee of the Company.

KABHMEEG -

the year ended 31 December 2023.
HE2023F12B31HIEFE-

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC.

AR REEEEE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
(GEHFRBERA) EBEFFELT1HE) o

Singapore dollar, the lawful currency of Singapore.
N A E G o

ordinary share(s) of US$0.000001 each in the share capital of the Company.
AT RA RS EE0.000001 = oI E 5@ AS ©

holder(s) of Shares

[EUESE=PN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
BERMEXBMBRAT -

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules.
BB LHRABETENES-

the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland.
AAFNERICETEEES T

NVC Lighting Limited (formerly known as NVC (Manufacturing) Limited), a private
company incorporated in England and Wales on 31 May 2007, and our direct
wholly-owned subsidiary.

NVC Lighting Limited (JR& ANVC (Manufacturing) Limited) » —Z 22007458
STHAEEEEAEBELAMALNAARE BRMNEREL2ENB AR -

the United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all areas subject

to its jurisdiction.
EHEERE - HEL B RHEBENMEME -
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Definitions

2

“Us$”
S

“VND”
M &

3 » o«

we”, “us” or “our”

AN

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the U.S.

Emo XEEEER-

Vietnamese dong, the lawful currency of Vietnam

BrEE HEEEEE-

the Company or the Group (as the context may require).
RARFAEE REXEME) ©

“Zhejiang NVC” Zhejiang NVC Lamps Co., Ltd.* GiIE LB EBRAT), a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC on 28 September 2007, a 51% equity interest
of which is held by Huizhou NVC and the remaining 49% equity interest of which
is held by Zhejiang Tonking New Energy Group Co., Ltd.* Gif;L R S REE
BRAR).

M TIE L MIETEAEBRAR > —RNR2007F9B28HAEFEFAMAIINEREER
B BEMBELIFEHST1%RE R TH40%RERN IR SHERERERAT
FH-

* denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese company or ~ * ETPEATHNEBLBNEXESL K

entity, or vice versa, and is provided for identification purposes only 2R E R 2 B

NVC International Holdings Limited 2023 Annual Report
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